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Major awards won by the Group in the Financial Year 2015/16:
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HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BERAXBEBREERRLTF

POSITANO
B2

“10 YEARS PLUS CARING COMPANY” LOGO
10E PLUS[ 7 5 & B 128 1 15
Orgamiser F JE#E1E

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BET S REHS

BRONZE AWARD FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE
£ TEZFFHEM

Organiser = 3 # 1%

Social Welfare Department

HEEANE

GOOD MPF EMPLOYER 2014/15
201415 iFEE

Orgamiser = J# #1&

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

BEIMENERAEEER

HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED
BRREARLQA

THE OUTSTANDING DEVELOPER AWARDS 2015

&N H B R R K 382015

—  URBAN DESIGN & MASTER PLANNING
AWARD
W R AT R AR IR B K

—  GREEN DEVELOPMENT AWARD
RIRGLBERE

Organiser = 3} #5615
Capital and Capital Weekly magazines

INTERIORBEAUTE RESIDENTIAL DESIGN AND
HOME PRODUCTS BRAND AWARD 2015 (SHOW
FLAT CATEGORY)
WHZRXFTRIREMBE KK
(&8 )

Organiser = $# #41&

InteriorBeauté magazine

ib 7 2= 5 5

AUBERGE DISCOVERY BAY HONG KONG
BRMSEERE

2015 MOST LIKE WEDDING MESSAGE
AWARD

THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK

NO. 2 HOTEL IN THAILAND;
NO. 7 HOTEL IN ASIA;

NO. 23 HOTEL IN THE WORLD
Organiser F 3} ##
Institutional Investor magazine

2015 READER’S CHOICE AWARDS
— TOP 10 HOTELS IN BANGKOK
Organiser = 33 # 18

Condé Nast Traveler magazine

STAR AWARD WINNERS
— 4 STAR RATED HOTELS

Organiser = ## #41&
Forbes Travel Guide

CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 2015

20154 23} £ LIKE X & 15 = 48 Bl Orgamiser = 3 # 1%
— MOST LIKE ROMANTIC VENUE TripAdvisor
ZLKER 235 it
Orgamiser & ## 1 2015 THE BEST OF THAILAND AWARDS
Wedding Message magazine VOTED BY CHINESE TOURISTS
B B (5 5 5 W5EZHE AR —FEBEERF
R{EZRE

CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 2015 — TOP 10 BEST Lyz([JRY HOTEL
2015 &2 jil 38 BRETREBERE
Orgamiser = 3} 4 18 Organiser = 3} #4158
TripAdvisor Tourism Authority of Thailand
BOOKING.COM 2015 AWARD 2015 GUEST REVIEW AWARD WINNER
Organiser & 3} ¥ 18 Organmiser 3=t 1%

Booking.com Booking.com

DISCOVERY BAY MARINA CLUB AW A

o 538 33 fr Organiser = 3F #E#8

MR EERES Agoda.com

5 GOLD ANCHORS AWARD

Organiser + 3t #% 1%
The Yacht Harbour Association

GTA POWERING GLOBAL TRAVEL AWARD
2015

Organiser = ## #41&
GTA Powering Global Travel



THAILAND BEST RESTAURANT 2016
Organiser £ 3¢ # 1
Thailand Tatler magazine

CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 2015

Orgamiser = i # 1%
TripAdvisor

OFFICIAL SELECTION IN TOP TABLES 2016
BANGKOK

Organiser = 33 #18
BK Magazine

GOLD AWARD 2015 — TRUSTED BRAND IN
THE AMBULATORY — SPECIALTY CLINIC
CATEGORY

Orgamiser = 3 #1%
Reader’s Digest magazine
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ABOUT HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

FREEHEEEREEERRA

OUR VISION, MISSION & VALUES
RANWER - EaMEES

V|S|0N J?EE To be the pioneer of innovative living space
T HERLE BIEEEMH

M'SS'ON TQE—E We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience through
teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence
HERN BIFAL SHAX BEALY BHEASEETER

VALUES /B{&%&5  PIONEER RESPECT INNOVATION

2 Break new grounds Value the individual and Think outside the box
- PRI DE HE PR HE + cherish our environment —"_ AR T8 ]
BAET

INTEGRITY DEVOTION EXCELLENCE
Uphold high ethical Be committed and Consistency in the pursuit
standards —1— passionate —‘,— of our quality standards
B FiE OB 5 IERES

COMPANY HISTORY A T & =

-~

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder
and chairman of the Group, acquired the equity interest
of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“Hong Kong
Resort”) which is the registered owner and developer of
Discovery Bay on Lantau Island. The shares of Hong
Kong Resort and the other Group company were once
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) in 1987 and in 1988 and 1989
respectively. During the years 1988 and 1989, the Group
underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme of
arrangement and formed HKR International Limited (Stock
Code: 00480) in May 1989 as its new listed holding
company carrying on principally real estate development
and other related businesses.

Today, HKR International Limited (“HKRI” or the
“Company”) has diversified interests in real estate
development and investment, property management,
luxury hotels and serviced apartments, healthcare
services and other investments in Hong Kong, mainland
China and Asia.

R1977F  AEBEREABRAREEEERB L
ZREBABEAERERAE s EME B EE
BRARN(EBEE]) 2k A R - kg BE
FEHBRMERAEENS —RAANKRG @ &
D RIN1987 21988 E 1989 F E BB A KX 5
FTERAR([HRAT]) £ - f£1988 £ 1989
FHRE ANEEETT —ER2EBERW
T2l 19894 5 A IE =\ Ak 3 &/ 7 L 5

Bl R & B A R A 7] (A% 1 1 57 :00480) + I
RARNEBZH EMER AR - #HE%
REFZMMEREMBEREER -

FERXBABREEEARAA(E
BEEBRIRIARF])HRE
EEE PERMREMNES
ZTLER  BRERUEER
k& -MXEERE REH
EREREREE  BER
AR R EAM R ERR -
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SIGNATURE s« =i:nmsan
PROJECTS

HONG KONG & ;

HONG KONG % ;

MAINLAND CHINA
AR R A it
SHANGHAI L3

DISCOVERY BAY
=8
Approx. Total GFA #212H E &%

1,006,000n7

Located on Lantau Island,
Discovery Bay is the Group’s
flagship project comprising
garden houses, low-, mid-
and high-rise developments,
a 27-hole golf course, a
marina, two recreation clubs,
a manmade beach, a resort
hotel, two shopping malls and
international schools.

MARELHHREZES
WEEEE  BEREE
B - SEHNE-27TEAS
MRS EEE MES
Fi- NEDE - —RERB
EomEBNESRERES
o

AUBERGE DISCOVERY BAY
HONG KONG
ERENSEEE

No. of Rooms E B & H

325

Approx. Total GFA #2 12 T E 1& £

26,000m

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong
Kong, the resort hotel on the
waterfront of Yi Pak Bay,
comprises 325 rooms and
suites and a 16-metre tall
picture-perfect White Chapel
ideal for wedding.

EEMESEBELRA=-AE
B ERBERBEBHE
EMNEE, MEE16KS
VEEZEMNFEARE B
RITIERNRESH

HKRI TAIKOO HUI
HEXEE

Approx. Total Planned GFA
REPNEREEED

322,000n7

Located in Jing’an District,
Shanghai, HKRI Taikoo Hui
is a world-class mixed-use
development comprising
two premium Grade-A office
towers, three luxury hotels/
serviced apartments and a
prime retail mall. It is scheduled
for completion in phases from
the second half of 2016.

NMRESTHZEMNEEKX
hERHARAENGEERRERE
B -EHmEESEFRRNELD
B =EREEERB/E/RE
RABER—ESRBEUES
AR FBER2016FE T &
HREDPEETER ©



MAINLAND CHINA

EBEEEREEERADE 2015/2016 F3R

/ Japan B &
// Mainland China B i, //

// Hong Kong & &

Thailand %%
//

HR R A iH__L THAILAND Z= [ THAILAND 2= JAPAN H 7
JIAXING == 5 BANGKOK 272  BANGKOK 224  TOKYO =%
CITY ONE _ THE SUKHOTHAI THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK  PROUD ROPPONGI
BBHK o I8 RESIDENCES No. of Rooms E B & B Approx. Total Floor Area
Approx. Total GFA Approx. Total GFA #21 [ H & # 210 BEBED
HWEEEBED 2 2

83/ OOO/’]’]2 871 OOOm Approx. Total GFA # 2 HE E & X 5, OOOm

(plus approx. 30,000m? basement carpark)

(5 F#930,000F 5 K #th EEZ B 45)

City One is the first ever
residential project developed
by a Hong Kong-based
developer in Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province. Located at
the centre of the international
business district, it comprises
seven 18-storey apartment
blocks, one nine-storey
duplex-on-duplex apartment
block and 20 garden houses.

EETEEAABERRER
BN EEERE  URER
BAEEFR L - ZBEHLE
1BESAE - —EAEBSH
EEEAMER0ELER
EFHEMK -

Located next to The Sukhothai
Bangkok on South Sathorn
Road, The Sukhothai
Residences is a 41-storey
ultra-luxury condominium
tower comprising a total of
196 residential units.

The Sukhothai Residences
i A South Sathorn Road t &9
The Sukhothai Bangkok 3
B R-EBESME HiZ
HIBEEMHNBRZELD
EXEFEARE-

40,400n7

The Sukhothai Bangkok is a
world-renowned and award-
winning hotel in Central
Bangkok, highly regarded
by international travellers for
its unparalleled services and
facilities.

LR EARTHR O HNThe
Sukhothai Bangkok tt 52 1 %
ERE\Y HEFHRER
RIEEIRBIREES -

Situated in Roppongi, one
of Tokyo’s most sought-
after addresses, the project
is only steps away from the
hubs of business, culture and
entertainment like Roppongi
Hills and Tokyo Midtown. The
low-rise luxurious residential
apartments are scheduled for
completionin2017.

ZEBNRRRAEZIEON
WEZ— — SAAKE: X
AARURREPHSEE
AR LR OIEERR ©
kEERZEETEETR
2017 FE &R °
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE
YEAR FEASHE

e The Group acquired a residential site in >
Zhejiang Hangzhou Future Sci-Tech City,
mainland China.

S BRS — 18 E B M AR R B
W EE At o

e The Group revamped the corporate brand
identity with a view to building a clear and
consistent image across all activities.
SEBELHEHOCEREET RABET
BREILBW R —BNFER -

EKRI

JULY T3 2015

The Group’s joint venture project in Shanghai, >
mainland China with Swire Properties was officially
named HKRI Taikoo Hui.
SERARGHERPEALESSFEZRER EX
mEREENLE -




*“. . L ;i Ul

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong was
awarded a “Certificate of Excellence
2015” from TripAdvisor.

7 78 181 52 /8 5 5 % TripAdvisor % 2015
SRR

HREXEREEGR QT 2015/2016 Fik

SEPTEMBER
'LH =2015
The Group signed an HK$8
billion 5-year revolving credit
and term loan facility with
19 international and local
banks.
& B B9 B B K S b 8RR
THE—HOEBTZ
SEHRBMERR -
A\

SEPTEVBER Y08 3201
4 The Group acquired Souei Park Harajuku, an apartment building

located in Shibuya, Tokyo, Japan.
SEEE A —E A BARTSA » B ASouei Park Harajuku 19 {1 58 K4 o

JCIOUBER 5 0H =2015

The Group declared an interim dividend by distribution in specie of all
shares in Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) held by
HKRI, representing the Company’s entire interest in Hanison.
SEEUBY D IRE B EERR TG BEAIRZERARA R (THE )
RH FEERADBNES 22 M ER) cHABSRPHRE -

0/
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE
YEAR FEASHE

NOVEMBER 'li-i. 2015
The two office towers in HKRI Taikoo Hui, HKRI
Centre One and HKRI Centre Two, topped out.
BERNDEWERAE — BBEEPOL—ERE
BEERL_EFE -
A\ Z

DECENBER S0

The Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
to purchase 10 plots of land located by the Chaophraya
River in Bang Phongphang Subdistrict, Yannawa District,
Bangkok, Thailand.

SEFETEHGZ 0 BAMBREERT - LREA
Yannawal& #Bang Phongphang 7 E /Y 101G 38 o

A\

/A

‘AlN.‘A! -"
o/ =2016°

{ The new shopping

mall in CDW Building,

Tsuen Wan, Hong

Kong was named 8.

UREBEERREKX

BENBYEETmER

SD}K\/ o

ANUARY S 2016
The Group acquired a residential site in Jiaxing Economic
Development Zone Yaojiadang Area, Zhejiang Province,
mainland China.
SERE-RBUETEINIEEALERRERRS
W 1E = A it o
A\
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<< The new development project in
Tuen Mun, Hong Kong was named

2GETHER.
UREBEMNEHMBRERSD
EREF-

VIARCH = S2016°
HKRI was awarded the

“10 Years Plus Caring
Company” Logo by The

The Sukhothai Bangkok was named
“Star Award Winners — 4 Star Rated

: i Hong Kong Council of ears+
Hotels™ by Forbes Travel Guide. . . y
The Sukhothai Bangkok ¥ (Forb Social Service. carin n
T . ILcla 'ocl’ »%%g: dW?r e b e eyl ngwg’”*’!:”amg
ravel Guide) 7 Star Awerd Winers 8 HR10%FPuS 5
- r ° "
ar Rated Hotels [0 458 i o

VIARCH =5 S2016%

The low-density residential development >
in Kau To Shan, Sha Tin, Hong Kong
was officially named La Cresta.
NRAEBDPHAELNEREEEE
BEXmAREH -
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

ERRE

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson

Chairman

ES
ERMBELE




| am pleased to present the 2015/2016 (“the year”) Annual
Report in respect of HKR International Limited (“HKRI” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016 was HK$2,647.9 million,
representing a decrease of 22.3% against last year’s
HK$3,408.2 million (restated). Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year was HK$783.9 million, compared
with HK$910.0 million in 2014/2015. Earnings per share for
continuing and discontinued operations was HK58.1 cents,
compared with HK67.4 cents last year. As of 31 March 2016,
the net asset value attributable to shareholders of the Company
stood at HK$16,056.3 million (HK$11.9 per share), compared
with HK$16,727.7 million (HK$12.4 per share) last year.

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the year.
On 13 October 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend by
distribution in specie of all the shares in Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) held by the Company to its
shareholders, whose names appeared on the Company’s
register of members on 29 October 2015, on a pro-rata basis of
1.21639 Hanison shares for every five shares held. In
2014/2015, a total dividend of HK13 cents per share was paid
to shareholders.

QOverall Group performance remained steady, despite economic
growth in Hong Kong and mainland China slowing during the
year under review.

In Hong Kong, which remains the Group’s core business base,
the economy grew by a modest 2.4% in 2015. Overall, the
property market in Hong Kong remained stable with primary
market transactions dominating and exerting pressure on the
secondary market.

In mainland China, economic growth fell to 6.9% in 2015.
Elsewhere in Asia, regional economic growth continued to
outpace the rest of the world.

HREXEREEGR QT 2015/2016 Fik

AAMARREZEFBREXBAREEER QA
([BEERXBERIHL[ARF]) REKERF
(%= E1)2015/2016 F E ([ F & 1) 8 F [ &,

=

HE2016F3A3IBILHHRFEE  £EEFE
REEBNEEBE2B47TIOEEBT BE
F3,4082B 8B T (EN) R 22.3%  KAF
EARRIREEG N A783.9B EHE T
2014/2015F A) B910.0B B BT - HEKLE
MERIFEEER 2 BRABF B85 -
EF B A67.478L - R2016F3 A318 » AR
A A% R FE (G & EFE £ 16,056.38 &8 T (7
f&11.9% ) - =F A AB16,727.7EE B L (F
f&12.4787T)

EESWITERAFTERERABKE - K
201510 H13H ' EE= 2 MMK20154F 10 A
0B HBINARRBERM KR  ZEESF
5 0% B A7 7 9 K 1.21639 B 8 5 Al 32 122 A% B R
AR (TEBEDBROHHEE . NEDD KRAD
RRFERNMEEBERN 2SI R
B o 1R2014/2015F - EB AR ERIRENEF
B B A ERRA3HE -

REBFE BEEERTEAMBELHEELE
Wi SEERBRBRERETE -

ERINAEEROEBREE - 20156F K
BEERMIER24% - BEME - BEWE
MERBRE —FOEDTERHHEE

SFMENBLEE -

KA AR 2015F L BEER TNEEBC9I% °
o8 M b b [ A [ 15 45 75 186 R )0 A 48t S
fih 1h & o
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Chairman’s Statement = J& 3R &

The Group made steady progress during the year on a number
of previously-acquired development projects, as well as in the
renovation or conversion of established developments.

In Hong Kong'’s Discovery Bay, 12 of 18 remaining units were
sold at the Positano luxury residential development, and an
application was made to the Government to build further
developments of this kind, as part of the Group’s flagship resort-
style project.

Elsewhere in Hong Kong, site foundation works at La Cresta, a
luxury residential development in Kau To Shan, Sha Tin were
completed in May 2015, and progress was made on 2GETHER,
a premium residential development with retail podium located in
Tuen Mun. Refurbishment works at the CDW Building in Tsuen
Wan commenced in April 2015. The building will be converted
from industrial use to a commercial complex containing an office
tower and a retail mall. All three projects are scheduled for
completion in 2017.

In mainland China, Government officials, business partners and
other VIPs attended a topping out ceremony in November 2015
in respect of HKRI Centres at HKRI Taikoo Hui, a world-class
commercial complex in the heart of Shanghai. Pre-leasing has
gone well, with two-thirds of retail and office space either
committed to, or under active negotiation. Meanwhile, other
projects in Tianjin, Jiaxing and Hangzhou are advancing as
planned.

FASEEMEBENZEZRRERARE
RERBEMNEZSANETIRERIEF -

RESBMRE WRERETEHRBHRT 18R
BT IREEMEEHE  BEEED AR
FEFE-—PERFABER (FREEER
ANEEBEBZ 8D -

EREBHMME URAPHALLNSERE
FEREBEE NHTHOMETIEE R2015%F5 H
L MUREMNESEEERESERE
ESEEEMT - £ERXARENEEILE
R2015F4 AT B RNERITERGNE
BEEMAEAERBYRSENEERAKX
2o = EEBHFENR2017FRT -

FREASE BFEE ¥BBHEREM
EER20156F 1AL R TEHERLES SH
EPLHFEERN BENTERMRLE
OBt R A EELSAEE  HEAE
BRIF BER =Dz _WEERBAEEM
BEXNEEERARERBEIBER S - Bt F
B R B RN E AT B EiRst 2
& ©

Positano
iR



In Thailand, more than 90% of The Sukhothai Residences — an
ultra-luxury condominium tower in Bangkok — has been sold. In
Japan, construction has commenced on our Proud Roppongi, a
premium residential project in Tokyo. Investment properties in
Hong Kong, mainland China, Thailand and Japan have
continued to generate stable rental income for the Group.

In Hong Kong, our hospitality operation, the Auberge Discovery
Bay Hong Kong hotel, showed improved financial results.
Meanwhile, in Thailand, The Sukhothai Bangkok attracted
multiple accolades from the travel industry and media.

The short term outlook is unpredictable but we remain positive
regarding the medium and long term outlook.

The Group’s steady performance amid the economic challenges
of 2015/2016 could not have been achieved without the support
and counsel of our Board of Directors, along with the
commitment, teamwork and creativity of our hard-working
management and staff, for which | thank them.

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016

HKRI Taikoo Hui
FRAHE

HREXEREEGR QT 2015/2016 Fik

RER UREANBRZEAENEEKR
J& The Sukhothai Residences B ! & 2 #890%

BN BEMURBARRERNSmEETIEER
Proud RoppongiFI 2 T2 IR E RS - &
FEAR REERBRANREMERERS
BERBEMESUWA -

REE KMWBEER —BERMREBEE
ZUHBEBEBRNE - AR REEK

The Sukhothai Bangkok B & 1 15 ik #% 3 & 1%
BEAR B L IRIREE o

BEEHERASBHEN ERMAYTE
HIRT RIORFF 4 -

EEE2015/2016 F 7o m kB M AEIRIE T
MOREBERR 2BEESH T LE
HOUNREBREBMEIXHIE  20F
Bt BB BIERBIFTES  AARBUBIUR

Esy
ERE

201656 A17THERE B
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MANAGING

DIRECTOR’S

TIONS

REVIEW
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Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
BIERRE FAKE

BEREE



Group performance remained balanced and relatively stable
during the year, despite challenging global economic
developments. In December 2015, the United States raised
interest rates for the first time since 2006. The hike had been
largely anticipated, so any disruptive impact on real estate
markets in Asia Pacific proved minimal.

Mainland China’s economic slowdown during the year
dampened business performance across Asia. And depreciation
of the Renminbi in the second half of 2015, as well as stock
market volatility in early 2016, had a significant effect on market
sentiment. The PRC Government’s demand-side policy,
including reduced down-payment requirements and lower
mortgage rates, helped boost the property market and reduce
inventories, especially in Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities.

Hong Kong'’s economy also slowed during the year, with rents
trending downward, a reduction in tourist arrivals and restrictive
property measures implemented by the HKSAR Government
remaining in force. However, the number of first-hand project
launches rose during the year, with more new units in the
pipeline.

In September 2015, the Group acquired an HK$8 billion five-
year revolving credit and term loan facility with 19 international
and local banks to refinance a previous HK$5 billion credit facility
and provide general working capital. We continued to build our
land bank in the region by acquiring new plots for future
development in mainland China’s Hangzhou and Bangkok in
Thailand, as well as an investment property in Japan.

The Group also completed distribution in specie of all the shares
in Hanison held by the Company to its shareholders and
Hanison ceased to be a subsidiary in November 2015. This had
the effect of streamlining our business activities, thereby focusing
resources on the Group’s core portfolio of assets and reducing
exposure to risks and liabilities inherent in the construction
industry.

HREXEREEGR QT 2015/2016 Fik

RAFE BREEFNSERERFEHE
Bk SEMKRBMEEHERET - X
Bl 72015 4F 12 A 1E {1 B 2006 4 LA R #) & IR
e EMEHRANEERES  WEY
DARMERMEMSTEBRTE-

FRN RN EERE  EREMERE
¥R\ HEFE 20156F TEFARKE
ER2016FFVIHNBEMEBTEMEAR
EEHEFE - S—FE FEBNHN R
PIMETZRERENR  BRETAEMNLA R
B RIZIBFI R - BB B R REE ™ KRR E
T £ ZBHmBARLERHE-

R BEKETEMNE HE2 T8
o BRREARRL  BEFRBFHESE
MREmHEEEE AN FRA-FEBER
EEBRZ BZHMEMITBEEZK -

S BN 20159 A RS 19K BB R AN 0 R 17
BEROEBETHNOFHREEN - ZEXK
AR EREERS0E R TREERLAIER
FREESD MM AE LR AL 0L
e D RIR R B AT REE S8 KE
THAERKER XN AR -HRE
3%

AN - EBER2016F 11 A TR AREEY D
EARNRIEBWNATE SRS - At B
THESEMNHNEBAR - WBTEEHEER
BEERS BERERZLEEHES B
BERAREEETENEERRKEARE -
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Managing Director’s Operations Review = I35 48 &K 18 ¥ 3% o] BE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT

The Group’s core business sectors are property development
and investment. We create value and revenue by satisfying
market demand and conforming to the highest standards of
quality and professionalism. Our management of a diversified
portfolio of investment properties in Hong Kong, mainland China
and other parts of Asia routinely delivers steady rental income.

HONG KONG
Discovery Bay

The Group’s flagship development in Hong Kong is Discovery
Bay, a pioneering resort-style project and popular leisure
destination for families. Positano, the development’s most recent
luxury residential project, was launched in June 2014. Positano’s
show flats have received multiple awards for design excellence.

During the year under review, 12 of 18 remaining Positano units
were sold. In May 2015, Positano’s show flats received another
prestigious design accolade — the InteriorBeauté Residential
Design and Home Products Brand Award 2015 (show flat
category).

MEBRRRE

SENZLOEFEMEERREKRE - AR
NERDEMEFR EHERLREERER
HEKF RIEEERKRA - RMAEES
PEAMEEMNEMEREENSEREY
EREETRRENHEKA -

&%
e

BMEEAEENEENEEEREE  &E
BAGAHENERE  TREEIEAONRE
KB - IR ABEENENREFEE
B - R2014F6 ARE o IR K R E B R
EELHRTEEZ@EEE-

FA-pRIsESG NEMD EH 1210 K
B ER2016F5 ARE S — AR A
B—2016ZARARREMEARE(REE

fir) e



17

ERELEREEEFRAT 20152016 Fik

In a move to further improve facilities for residents, our subsidiary
— Hong Kong Resort Company Limited — formulated upgrade
plans for the Discovery Bay bus terminus and retail arcade. In
addition, an application has been made to the HKSAR
Government to build new residential developments in Discovery
Bay over the long term.

The Group holds 50% interest in the Discovery Bay
development.

La Cresta, Sha Tin

La Cresta is a 50:50 joint venture development between the
Group and Nan Fung Development Limited and comprises three
high-end residential towers and a number of villas. Total gross
floor area (“GFA”) is approximately 12,500 square metres. Site
formation and foundation works were completed in May 2015,
while project completion is expected in mid-2017.

2GETHER, Tuen Mun

2GETHER is a residential development project comprising a
residential tower of premium apartment units cum retail podium
with a total GFA of approximately 12,300 square metres.
Completion is scheduled for 2017. The Group owns 75%
interest in the development.
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Kap Pin Long Project, Sai Kung

This is an idyllic garden house project with a GFA of
approximately 350 square metres. Completion is expected
in Q2 2016.

DANG, Tsuen Wan

DANB, a 20-storey industrial building in Tsuen Wan, has been
substantially sold.

DB Plaza and DB North Plaza, Discovery Bay

DB Plaza boasts a wide array of shops along with the D’Deck
alfresco dining hotspot, while DB North Plaza offers multiple
shopping and dining outlets, office space as well as an open
piazza. As of 31 March 2016, DB Plaza and DB North Plaza
achieved occupancy rates of 97% and 87% respectively, and
continue to generate stable rental income.

The Group holds 50% interest in both DB Plaza and DB North
Plaza.
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CDW Building, Tsuen Wan B K E

CDW Building enjoys prime location in the centre of Tsuen AR EAREZ B OHE IR BEM -
Wan. The Group has obtained approval to convert the BEBFOELLERE EEEREAELITE
building from industrial to commercial use under government AREXRBEAEERNE -BEIRB TR &K
revitalisation policies. On completion, it will comprise an office E #8687 — & [ & £966,400 F J7 K 89 3 A Kk
tower of approximately 66,400 square metres and a KETE#)25,000F K - £ ABSKENZTER
25,000-square-metre retail mall to be called 8%5. BB IR, =BT ER2015F48%)
Refurbishment works, in three phases, commenced in April T JEEHR2017F FHZK - REMTBHB R
2015 and the project is expected to complete by early 2017. R 1T o

Pre-leasing is proving positive.

West Gate Tower, Cheung Sha Wan A EmBE D

During the year under review, West Gate Tower achieved an FA-ABEHEROFHEHBEEREMY  FE
average occupancy rate of 94%, generating stable rental EIRBTHHES WA -

income.

Tuen Mun Central Square Public Car Park, Tuen Mun B R ES AL IEEE

This public car park consists of 325 parking spaces at Tuen ZALIEESMREPRES  RE325[EF
Mun Central Square and generates a steady rental yield for B BREBETEREBETHHES KA -

the Group.
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MAINLAND CHINA
HKRI Taikoo Hui, Shanghai

HKRI Taikoo Hui is located on Nanjing Road (West) in Jing’an
District, one of Shanghai’s most prestigious retail and business
hubs, and will become a world-class mixed-use commercial
complex. The project commands a planned GFA of
approximately 322,000 square metres and comprises two
premium Grade-A office towers (HKRI Centres One and Two),
three luxury hotels/serviced apartments, a high-end retail mall
and ample parking.

HKRI Taikoo Hui will enjoy excellent connectivity via key metro
lines — including that linking Shanghai’s two airports plus two
recently completed lines — as well as the Yan’an Expressway
and North-South Elevated Highway. The new West Nanjing
Road Station of Metro Line 13 opened in December 2015 and
connects directly with the retail mall.

Pre-leasing has been positive, with two-thirds of retail and office
space either committed to, or under active negotiation. Key
anchor tenants include the largest CitySuper supermarket in
mainland China and the first Page One bookstore in Shanghai,
along with the Space Cycle yoga, spinning and fithess operator.
Secured F&B tenants include the popular Jade Garden and Din
Tai Fung restaurant brands.

The project will be completed in phases from the second half of
2016 and is poised to become one of Shanghai’s most sought-
after commercial and leisure properties. Construction and
fitting-out works for Phase 1 - retail mall and HKRI Centre One
— are close to completion and the inspection process to obtain
occupation permits is underway.

The Group holds 50% interest in HKRI Taikoo Hui.
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City One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

This large-scale residential development is the first project
undertaken in Jiaxing City by a Hong Kong-based developer and
is distinguished by state-of-the-art design and lavish clubhouse
facilities unique to the area. City One comprises approximately
600 residential units with a total GFA of approximately 83,000
square metres. The project occupies a premium location in the
centre of the international business district and is in the vicinity
of a 53-hectare wetland park. All construction works were
completed in November 2015 and units started to be handed
over to buyers in January 2016.

Future Sci-Tech City Project, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang
Province

In June 2015, the Group acquired a low-density residential site
of approximately 51,000 square metres in Zhejiang Hangzhou
Future Sci-Tech City. A total of 400 units, including villas and
apartments, are planned and the statutory submission stage
approval process has been completed. Site foundation works
have commenced in May 2016 and pre-sale is expected in late
2016 or early 2017.

New Residential Project, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

In January 2016, the Group acquired a prime residential site of
approximately 47,000 square metres adjacent to its existing City
One residential project in Jiaxing City. The site will be developed
into a luxury residential project comprising approximately 700
low- and high-rise apartment units. Pre-sale is scheduled in Q2
2017.
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The Exchange, Tianjin

The Exchange is the Group’s 15%-owned investment property
in Tianjin, comprising two Grade-A office towers, a retail mall
and a five-star hotel. The property has maintained a healthy
occupancy rate and generated stable rental income.
Management of the mall was outsourced to Joy City (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. in the second half of 2015. The property was renamed
Heping Joy City — Tianjin. This development is currently under
renovation and is scheduled for reopening in late 2016.

Elite House, Shanghai

This 30-storey residential building in Shanghai’s popular
Changning District comprises 120 units with a total GFA of
approximately 21,700 square metres. The property achieved an
occupancy rate of 86% as of 31 March 2016, thereby continuing
to generate stable rental income.

THAILAND
The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok

More than 90% of the 196-unit ultra-luxury condominium tower
at Sathorn Road in Bangkok has been sold. This development
continues to lead the high-end residential market in the Thai
capital, both in terms of unit price and design excellence.
Construction of Phase 2 is under active planning.

Wireless Road Project, Bangkok

The Group’s freehold land at Wireless Road, Bangkok covers a
site area of approximately 12,600 square metres and master
planning is underway. The Group holds 49% interest in the
Wireless Road project.
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Rama 3 Road Project, Yannawa District, Bangkok

The Group acquired 10 land plots at Rama 3 Road by the
Chaophraya River in Bang Phongphang Subdistrict, Yannawa
District, Bangkok in December 2015. Development planning is in
progress.

JAPAN
Proud Roppongi, Tokyo

The Group, together with Nomura Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. — which acquired a 49% interest in the site at Roppongi 4
Chome in Tokyo — is developing the site into a premium
residential project to be called Proud Roppongi. Construction of
the main building has commenced and is expected to complete
by end 2017.

Niseko Project, Hokkaido

The Group holds residential plots at Niseko, Hokkaido — close to
the popular Niseko Annupuri Ski Village — with a total site area of
approximately 60,000 square metres as land bank.

Investment Properties in Tokyo

As of 31 March 2016, the Group’s two investment properties in
Tokyo — Horizon Place Akasaka, a high-rise residential block in
Akasaka, and Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, an office building in
central Shinjuku — achieved occupancy rates of 97% and 100%
respectively. In September 2015, the Group acquired another
Tokyo investment property, Souei Park Harajuku. This 22-unit
en-bloc residential apartment building in Shibuya achieved an
occupancy rate of 100% as of 31 March 2016.
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SERVICES PROVIDED

The Group’s four clubs in Discovery Bay — Discovery Bay Golf
Club, Discovery Bay Marina Club, Discovery Bay Recreation
Club and Club Siena - recorded moderate increases in turnover
during the year, while facility upgrades continued to maximise
satisfaction among members. Discovery Bay Marina Club again
won the “5 Gold Anchors Award” from The Yacht Harbour
Association.

Our subsidiaries offer various modes of transport in Discovery
Bay including ferry, land and tunnel services. To enhance
transportation, six double-decker buses were acquired and
deployed in August 2015. Four more will be procured in
2016/2017. Our property management service companies in
Discovery Bay and other locations in Hong Kong continued to
operate satisfactorily during the year.

The Group holds 50% interest in these Discovery Bay service
providers.

HOSPITALITY
HONG KONG
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong

Since opening in March 2013, Auberge Discovery Bay Hong
Kong (“Auberge DB”) resort hotel has continued to enhance its
service offerings. The 325-room hotel recorded an improved
average occupancy rate of approximately 75% during the year,
despite a drop in overseas visitors to Hong Kong. The hotel
mainly caters to leisure or long-stay travellers and remains a
popular venue for events. This is largely thanks to a unique
seaside pavilion, along with a tall-ship called The Bounty and a
European-style horse-drawn carriage.

The Group holds 50% interest in Auberge DB.
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THAILAND
The Sukhothai Bangkok

The Sukhothai Bangkok achieved improvement in average
occupancy rate to 64% during the year and attracted a
succession of awards. These included the “Second best hotel in
Bangkok”, “Seventh best in Asia” and “23rd best in the world”
titles from Institutional Investor magazine. Condé Nast Traveler
magazine placed The Sukhothai Bangkok on its “Top 10 Hotels
in Bangkok” list and the property received a “Certificate of
Excellence 2015” from TripAdvisor. The Sukhothai Bangkok was
also among the “Top 10 Best Luxury Hotels” in the Tourism
Authority of Thailand’s 2015 The Best of Thailand Awards Voted
by Chinese Tourists. Various other media accolades were
received for outstanding F&B services.

HEALTHCARE

The Philippines operations of GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”),
under the brand name Healthway Medical, saw significant
improvement during the year in terms of net contribution to the
Group. Healthway Medical won the “Gold Award — Trusted
Brand in the Ambulatory — Specialty Clinic Category” from
Reader’s Digest magazine in 2015. This was its third consecutive
year of recognition for outstanding medical services in the
Philippines. GenRx will continue to draw on a wealth of
experience, expertise and an established network to explore
secondary and tertiary healthcare development opportunities in
the region. Meanwhile, business performance in the Hong Kong
and Macau markets has been enhanced by sustained efforts to
improve operational efficiency.
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GenRx runs a comprehensive healthcare service network,
comprising diabetic and cardiovascular centres, a cancer centre,
imaging facility, dental clinics, Chinese-medicine outlets and
multi-specialty outpatient centres in Hong Kong, Macau and
Manila. With the exception of dental clinics and diabetic and
cardiovascular centres that involve third-party interests of 43%
and 20% respectively, businesses under the GenRx umbrella are
100% owned by the Group.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group continues to undergo digital transformation, and a
new workflow approval system was implemented to eliminate
paper forms and streamline approval processes. In addition, a
new intranet portal was developed to improve internal
communications such that notices and announcements can be
posted for the benefit of staff.

New technologies were adopted in the Philippines to boost
productivity and efficiency. These included tablet computers
connected via mobile networks for staff working in remote
locations. Pocket computers (stick PCs) have also been
deployed to save energy and space in back office and clinic
operations.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
COMMUNITY SUPPORT

HKRI is committed to contributing to society and this is done
through sustainable CSR programmes, with particular focus on
the elderly and children. In March 2016, HKRI received the “10
Years Plus Caring Company” logo from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service, acknowledging our contributions as a
responsible corporate citizen.
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During the year, the HKRI Care & Share corporate volunteer
team organised volunteer activities in partnership with NGOs
that included the Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian
Association, the Agency for Volunteer Service, Food Grace and
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (TWGHs). Activities featured a visit
to the Y Farm of Healthy Ageing and a food collection experience
day, as well as a Chinese New Year gathering for the elderly
organised jointly with the TWGHSs Foster Care Service. Our staff
members were encouraged to involve their family members in
the various activities.

In Discovery Bay, we funded various community events under
the Love.Together@DB community programme.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives to manage and minimise any negative
environmental impact our operations might have. Measures such
as encouraging staff to print less and conserve resources have
been implemented, and our office lighting has been upgraded to
energy-efficient hardware in pursuit of an energy saving of
approximately 10%. Adoption of LED lighting is being rolled out
throughout the Group. For example, our City Management
operation not only employs LED and T5 lighting, but also uses
electrical appliances with energy-efficiency labels. These
initiatives are in line with the Group’s commitment to the Green
Office Charter and governed by the overarching Sustainability
Policy under Discovery Bay operations. Meanwhile hotel
management operations have adopted a building management
system to control and monitor air-conditioning, while minimising
energy consumption.
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Diesel exhaust fluid (DEF) is widely used in our hotel and club
operations to break down dangerous NOx emissions into
harmless nitrogen and water. And all our ferries serving
Discovery Bay use Marine Light Diesel with a sulphur content of
less than 0.05%. The Group’s environmental commitment has
been further demonstrated by the acquisition of six double-
decker buses powered by Euro V engines and use of Euro V, or
unleaded fuel, in all Discovery Bay vehicles.

In addition, the Group’s healthcare operation complies with the
Waste Disposal Ordinance, Cap. 354 procedures for the proper
management of clinical waste in Hong Kong. In order to ensure
effective management of environmental impact arising from
projects, a comprehensive checklist has been included in our
Project Manager’s Handbook. This instructs project managers
to incorporate “green” design elements, as well as cost-
efficiency, at every opportunity.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group upholds the highest standards of business ethics in
all our dealings with important stakeholders such as employees,
customers, suppliers and contractors.
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EMPLOYEES

As of 31 March 2016, the Group’s business was served by 2,429
employees. Our employees constitute the Group’s most valuable
asset and are rewarded with competitive remuneration
packages. We strive to cultivate a harmonious working
environment free from discrimination and harassment. We are
proud to be an equal opportunities employer by not
discriminating against race, colour, religion or gender — among
other criteria — at all stages of employment. All staff are required
to observe directives specified in the Employee Handbook and
Code of Practice, and are expected to discharge their duties
with the highest integrity and professionalism. Confidential
“whistle-blowing” platforms are available for reporting
improprieties. Procedures are also in place for employees to
raise grievances and have them handled in a professional
manner.

Health and safety of staff is one of our highest concemns.
Occupational Safety and Health Committee in our City
Management operation conduct regular safety audits. And all
staff are required to follow working practices and behaviours
outlined in the Occupational Safety and Health Manual, which
governs operation of the Group’s transport services.

We offer a broad range of staff training and development
opportunities. A key Human Resources priority during the year
under review was to reinforce Discovery Bay’s service culture.
Commencing July 2015, a dedicated programme was tailored to
the 900 or so employees in Discovery Bay, including staff
briefings, focus-group interviews, customer surveys, video
demonstrations and training workshops. The aim is not only to
uplift existing service standards, but also to ensure consistent
service levels across units. The service concept “PASS” —
Proactive, Approachable, Smile and Sincere — has been well
received and translated into action by frontline staff.
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The annual PRIPDE Outstanding Employee Awards scheme
again recognised and motivated exceptional performers from
local and overseas offices. The Group also participated in the
Work-Life Balance Week organised by Community Business for
the eighth consecutive year. Various events staged for our
employees and their family members included a Christmas
Party, outings and a Long Service Award Ceremony.

CUSTOMERS

We pride ourselves on the high-quality services enjoyed by our
customers. In Discovery Bay, we provide several communication
channels. These include suggestion boxes, a 24-hour customer
service hotline and a walk-in facility at the business centre and
local management offices designed to collect feedback and
suggestions. These are recorded electronically to ensure timely
investigation, follow-up and response. Our healthcare operations
operate under clear guidelines for general nursing and treatment
to ensure consistency and standardisation. Periodic customer
satisfaction surveys are conducted at our medical service units
- namely Qualigenics and Health & Care Dental Clinic — to help
us keep track of feedback from customers and enhance our
services at every opportunity.
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SUPPLIERS

The Group values collaborative partnerships established with
contractors and suppliers, which are recorded in our Contractor
System. Environmental considerations form part of the criteria
for tender evaluation. We also seek to influence our contractors
to manage any environmental impact arising from projects, and
practise sound governance of supply chain management. The
Group upholds the concept of fair competition by which
suppliers are selected impartially on the basis of experience,
competence and quality. Monitoring and management controls
are also in place to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
malpractice in the process of procurement and tendering.

COMPLIANCE STATUS WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS HAVING SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
BUSINESS

No cases of non-compliance were recorded during the year
under review in respect of relevant standards, laws and
regulations on the environment, occupational health and safety
and data privacy.

OUTLOOK

In general, the Group is cautiously optimistic about 2016/2017,
though this sentiment is tempered by an expectation of
significant challenges ahead. “Unpredictability” and “change” are
the watchwords we would apply to Hong Kong’s property
market against a backdrop of a slowing economy, supply
pressures and the possibility of rate rises. On the positive side,
however, the high end of the market should be less affected by
vacillating sentiment. We therefore anticipate ongoing demand
for residential properties. Accordingly, all new projects will forge
ahead as planned.
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Looking to the medium and long term — and with GDP growth in
mainland China predicted to remain below 7% in 2016 — the
Group remains positive but vigilant. We believe the property
market will stay relatively energetic in Shanghai, where a
continuing hunger for premium commercial and retail premises
is encouraging. Furthermore, progress on HKRI Taikoo Hui in
Shanghai’s Jing’an commercial and retail hub, completion of
which is imminent, positions the Group perfectly to profit from
long-term growth.

The Group will continue to pursue the strategy of splitting its
business equally among the three geographical areas of Hong
Kong, mainland China and the rest of Asia. The Group is also
mindful that the apparent slowing of the global economy will
require us to adopt sound housekeeping practices in every
aspect of our business.

Our property interests are subject to certain risks. These include
— but are not limited to — the cyclical nature of property markets,
availability of land in Hong Kong for property development and
investment, changes in general economic, business and credit
conditions, changes in government policies or regulations
affecting real estate, shortages in building and other raw
materials, fluctuations in interest rates and the cost of labour and
materials. The Group’s property interests are also affected by
the strength of the local economy.

As an increasing proportion of our turnover comes from property
development and investment in mainland China, the Group’s
performance will be subject to economic, political and legal
developments in mainland China, as well as other geographies
in the region.
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The Group will continue to seek investment opportunities in
Hong Kong, mainland China and other parts of Asia. We will
invest in new technologies designed to boost efficiency, while
proactively engaging stakeholders and the community via
effective public relations and CSR programmes. At the same
time, we acknowledge the need to reduce costs, and will
implement initiatives accordingly.

Lastly, | wish to express my gratitude to our Board of Directors
for their guidance during the year, as well as to our valued
business partners, customers and staff for their resolute belief
and hard work in achieving our goals. Most of all, | would like to
thank our shareholders sincerely for their unrelenting support.

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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CHAIRMAN X fE

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson ,p, pssc (Hons), aged 73, was appointed Executive Director and the Chairman
in 1989 and 2007 respectively. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a director of some
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has over 45 years of extensive experience in property development and
investment. He is the chairman and non-executive director (“NED”) of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“Hanison”), executive chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), independent non-executive director (“INED”) of
New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”), and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited. Hanison,
NWD and CREIT are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr CHA is a member of One Country Two Systems Research Institute Limited, governing board member of
China-United States Exchange Foundation, board member of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong
Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation (“Qiu Shi Foundation”), trustee of Sang Ma
Trust Fund (“Sang Ma”) and honorary trustee of Oregon State University Foundation. He is a sibling to Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA. Mr CHA is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ Regents”), both are substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and together whose interests in the
Company represent the substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.
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DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR &/ = fEFRESHKE

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor s, vsa, aged 66, was appointed Executive Director, the Managing Director
and the Deputy Chairman in 1989, 2001 and 2007 respectively. He is a member of the Remuneration Committee
and director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-to-day
management of the Group. He has over 35 years of extensive experience in real estate development and textile
manufacturing. Mr CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited, alternate INED of NWD, both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange, and NED of Mingly. He has been appointed as the chairman of Hong Kong Arts Festival
Society Limited (“HKAFSL”) in October 2015 and is also a member of the board of trustees of The Better Hong
Kong Foundation (“BHKF”) and trustee of Sang Ma. Mr CHA is a sibling to Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA
and Mr Johnson CHA.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 11T £

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham e, aged 70, was appointed Executive Director in 1994 and is also
a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1978 and is now the
head of finance and group operations overseeing the Group’s finance, accounting, tax, insurance, information
technology functions, all operating units in Discovery Bay and hospitality operation. Mr CHUNG is a certified
public accountant, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 40 years of extensive
experience in financial management and property development in Hong Kong.

EOHE ST Erora 708 R1994GEZ T AR ARNNTES  MARAAETHBARZESE -

BE178FRENALERY BAVGREELBLE AELESASENHE 5 B 2K
EAREBE FARNSENLEENRBEEL BEECARESHT BASHHAS(EEE
HEAEEREE REKHREBIETEHNHASEE AR EEREREAYERRSEA
BRAOFLERR

o/

Mr TANG Moon Wah s pch studies), aron, aged 62, was appointed Executive Director in December 2004
and is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1985 and is
now the head of group projects responsible for project management of real estate development in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Asia-Pacific and for oversight of master planning, conceptual and
major designs and technical advice on acquisitions. Mr TANG has over 35 years of extensive experience in
property development. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and has been the
Authorised Person and Registered Architect since 1982 and 1991 respectively.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 3E#1TE S

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI ¢su;, cvo, eas, 0se sp, aged 77, joined the Board in
1989 and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in June 2005. He is a senior partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung Properties Limited, NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (as trustee-
manager of HK Electric Investments) and HK Electric Investments Limited. He retired as an INED of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and SCMP Group Limited in April 2013 and June 2014 respectively.

He also ceased as a NED of each of Power Assets Holdings Limited and Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited (renamed
as China Oceanwide Holdings Limited on 29 December 2014) in January and December 2014 respectively. Save
for HK Electric Investments Manager Limited, all the aforesaid companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr ARCULLI retired as the chairman of the HKAFSL in October 2015. He is now the chairman of FWD Group,
honorary fellow of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and vice patron and former directors committee
member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong. Mr ARCULLI is also a board member and the vice chairman of
the board of The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and chairs its executive committee and development
committee. He holds directorships in other public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
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Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson ss, uss, aged 64, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA
has nearly 40 years experience in venture capital and investment management. He is a NED of Mingly, Hanison
and China International Capital Corporation Limited (“CICCL”). Hanison and CICCL are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr CHA is also an INED of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and director of a number of other
companies in Hong Kong and overseas including LBJ Regents. He is active in non-profit organisations including
Qiu Shi Foundation and Moral Education Concern Group and is also a member of the finance committee and of
the council of the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, and past member of the council, finance
committee and investment sub-committee of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a sibling to Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Victor CHA.
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, aged 76, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated
as Non-executive Director in December 2004. She is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms WONG is the deputy chairman of Mingly and also a director or NED of a number of public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including CCM Trust and LBJ Regents. She retired as a NED of

Hon Kwok Land Investment Company, Limited and Chinney Investments, Limited in August 2014 and

August 2015 respectively, both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms WONG is the chairwoman and
a trustee of Sang Ma. She is a sibling to Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS & M HITES

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry css, a4, 184, 084 (Hons), LLD (Hons), aged 69, joined the Board in 1989 and
was re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director in 1993. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Dr CHENG is the chairman and executive director of NWD, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited, NWS Holdings Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and managing
director of New World China Land Limited, chairman and NED of New World Department Store China Limited
and Newton Resources Ltd, NED of SJM Holdings Limited and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, and INED of
Hang Seng Bank Limited. He ceased as a NED of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited in May 2015. All the
aforesaid companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr CHENG is also a director of a number of private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is the chairman of the advisory council of BHKF, non-official member
of Commission on Poverty and member of the Twelfth National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the PRC. Dr CHENG was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2001.
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Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus sssc, Jr, aged 68, joined the Board in January 2006 and was re-
designated as Independent Non-executive Director on 26 March 2012. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr CHEUNG was the chief executive of Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited (later “Cable & Wireless HKT Limited” (“Cable”)) from 1994 to 2000, deputy
chairman of PCCW Limited (following a merger with Cable) from August 2000 to February 2004 and INED of
Taikang Life Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011. He is an INED of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited which is
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHEUNG is a member of the board of governors of Centennial College.
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Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta o (eiieg), aged 69, was re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to her re-designation, she was an Executive Director in 1994 and
re-designated as Non-executive Director on 10 April 2008 upon her retirement from all executive roles in the
Group. Ms HO is also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is a
retired member of the Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch and has over 40 years of extensive
experience in property development, property investment and management. Ms HO ceased to be a member of
the supervisory board, the special committee on elderly housing and the remuneration commmittee of the Hong
Kong Housing Society with effect from 8 September 2015.
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Mr TANG Kwai Chang FCCA, FCPA, aged 63, was appointed Independent Non-executive Director in
September 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr TANG is a fellow member of both of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the HKICPA. He was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) with extensive experience in auditing and
audit risk management, the vice chairman of Deloitte China and board member of Deloitte Global when he retired
in May 2013. Mr TANG is currently a court member of the Hong Kong Baptist University and member of the
disciplinary panel of the HKICPA.
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The directors of HKR International Limited (the “Company”) (the
“Board” or the “Directors”) announce the audited final results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 175 to 187.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 81.

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend to its
shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2016, noting that an
interim dividend by distribution in specie of all the shares held by
the Company in Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“Hanison”) was made in November 2015.

Apart from the interim dividend by distribution in specie of all the
shares held in Hanison in November 2015, the Company did not
declare any other interim dividend(s) to the shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2016.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTERS

2016 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on
24 August 2016 (“2016 AGM”). The main and branch Registers
of Members of the Company will be closed from 22 to 24 August
2016 (both days inclusive) for the 2016 AGM. During the period,
no transfer of shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2016 AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on

19 August 2016. The notice of the 2016 AGM will be published
on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and despatched to
the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during
the year, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of the likely future
development of the Group’s business are provided in the
sections of this Annual Report headed “Chairman’s Statement” (on
pages 10 to 13), “Managing Director’s Operations Review” (on
pages 14 to 33), “Financial Highlights” (on page 75), “Financial
Review” (on pages 76 to 78), “Five-year Financial Summary” (on
page 192) and in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. For review of the development, performance or
position of the Group’s business, the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
understanding of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group, please see sections of this
Annual Report headed “Managing Director’s Operations Review”
(on pages 14 to 33), “Directors’ Report” (on pages 41 to 60) and
“Corporate Governance Report” (on pages 61 to 74).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements on page 158.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2016
and at the date of this report were and are those set out on
pages 34 and 35.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”) and the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), Mr Abraham CHUNG,

Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Johnson CHA and Dr Henry CHENG
will retire by rotation at the 2016 AGM. All the retiring Directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
2016 AGM. Other remaining Directors will continue in office. The
rotation clause sets up a mechanism to ensure that all Directors
shall retire at least once every three (3) years.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2016 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one (1) year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) and all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of
the Company has confirmed his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all INEDs of the Company meet the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules and are independent accordingly.

Assisted by heads of functional units, the Executive Directors
(“EDs”) of the Company have the responsibility for the business
and operations of the Group. EDs of the Company are part of
the Company’s senior management. Biographical details of
Directors are set out on pages 36 to 40. Details of the Directors’
emoluments are also provided under note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 131 to 132.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in carrying out
their duties or otherwise in relation thereto. Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance Policy is in place to protect the
Directors against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company
were as follows:
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The Company VAT

Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each REFREE0.258 TR 17 2 #f B

Number of ordinary shares

LERYE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
Personal Family Corporate Other share capital
Name of Director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests Total hEBHTRAK
E=EB 56 BAREZ XKEEzE AFESR HiE s By ZHABEI
Payson CHA Beneficial owner, interests of a controlled 3,113,113 - 16,867,074' 618,895,387° 638,875,574 47.31
EE corporation and beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
BEnMAA  XEEEREREE
BErEEEmA
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary of 1,140,253 - - 629,498,383° 630,638,636 46.70
B discretionary trusts
ERBAARBBEER A
Johnson CHA Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 628,200,885% 628,200,885 46.52
EHE MIFETXEA
Madeline WONG Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - B627,487,463%¢ 627,487,463 46.47
FTEXE discretionary trusts
BB EFtAI AR/SZamA
Ronald ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 241,472 - - - 241,472 0.02
BEE EEREA
Abraham CHUNG Beneficial owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 0.02
&0 H BE=lBA
Loretta HO Beneficial owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 0.01
fHE ERBAA
TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 0.01
B 2= BE=AA

The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited (“Accomplished”), a corporation 100% owned by Mr Payson CHA.

U ZERMD T REME KA 2 BB A 2 A 5 Accomplished Investments Limited ([ Accomplished 1) # 4

2 The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ
Regents”) were the corporate trustees and the relevant Directors were among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.
2 ZERMBNA TAEEE(E &B B ACCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM Trust |) 5 LBJ Regents Limited ([LBJ Regents]) 2 /A @ 5 5T A 3%

EMABEEBNEI

E
EZmA e

3 577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees and
the Director was among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.
¢ 577,842,756 Bty BN E T T RBIE

EFER BB ACCMTrust X LBJRegents Z EBIZ AR B MZEETBRRBEXEA ©

4 The Director was, under two (2) separate discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be interested in 49,644,707 shares in aggregate.

Y ZEEABBACCMTrust X LBJRegents ZZBZEAFMBZMQE TR BB ELMAZIARERNRBEZREA

& $£49,644,707 R R 10 2 HERS o

CREEFENERER
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Associated Corporation — Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited®

a) Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each

Number of ordinary shares

EERYE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
Personal Family Corporate Other share capital
Name of Director Capacity interests interests interests interests Total {HEBITRA
EExERB 514 BARZ XikEZR A/RER Hit s BY ZzHYBEDE
Payson CHA Beneficial owner, interests of a controlled 919,639 - 4,467,840° 144,582,585 149,970,064 2212
aHE corporation and beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
BEnlia A i ERE RIS
B @A
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary of 224,586 - - 147,331,523" 147,556,109 21.77
IR discretionary trusts
EnBAEARBBEERR
Johnson CHA Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 147,331,523" 147,331,523 21.74
EME BIEETEXZEA
Madeline WONG Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 147,120,767%%° 147,120,767 21.70
TEERE discretionary trusts
BRI AR/SEZEA
Ronald ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 72,500 - - - 72,500 0.01
ERESE BErER@mA
Abraham CHUNG Beneficial owner 79,773 - - - 79,773 0.01
%0 H EnBAA
Loretta HO Beneficial owner 16,073 - - - 16,073 0.002
e EnBmAA

5

Hanison ceased to be a subsidiary and an associated corporation of the Company with effect from 3 November 2015 upon distribution in specie of
Hanison shares held by the Company to its shareholders as an interim dividend. All figures at the above table refer to the figures as at 3 November 2015.
S RARFAEYDIREAmERRIRMNMAFEZ @ BROESPHREE EBEE2016F 11 ASARTB /AR A M B2 R RAaH
c FRATEZTEBFTHIENR2015F11ABHEZHEF -

% The shares were held by Accomplished.
® ZZ R {5 Ty B Accomplished # & ©

7

Directors were among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

T ZERMBRETTRBMBEREERBEEAHCCMTrust RLBJRegents EBE XA EMEBREFTERNHER =
8 144,582,585 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees and
the Director was among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

® 144,582,585 BN BRE T ARBEETLRHAEABCCMTrust XLBJRegents Z A BZ AR EMZESTBERBBEZHA

 The Director was, under another discretionary trust of which LBJ Regents was the corporate trustee, the founder and member of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trust was deemed to be interested in 2,538,182 shares.
* REERAERALBIRegents L EERRAAMBHN S — B EREZALAREFOMBERREA - 28R R % H2,5638,18288 88 1) 2 #

¢
m °

The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees and the relevant
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b) Share options

Some Directors have been granted share options in Hanison,
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Schemes” below.

Save as disclosed above and for certain Directors holding
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company as the nominee shareholders, as at
31 March 2016, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year, all Hanison shares held by the Company were
distributed to the Company’s shareholders as an interim
dividend by distribution in specie and Hanison ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company with effect from 3 November 2015.
The Company and Hanison have adopted their own share
option schemes, namely 2011 HKRI Scheme and 2011 Hanison
Scheme respectively. Shares issued (if any) under these
schemes are approved for conditional listing on the Stock
Exchange.

Summary of the option schemes

Save as disclosed separately below, particulars of the 2011
HKRI Scheme and 2011 Hanison Scheme are identical and are
set out below pursuant to the requirements under the Listing
Rules:

a) Purpose

To provide the participants who have been granted options to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company/Hanison with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company/
Hanison and to encourage the participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company/Hanison and its shares for
the benefit of the Company/Hanison and its shareholders as a
whole.

b) Participants

All Directors, full-time employees and any consultants (employed
on a contract basis) of the Company/Hanison, its subsidiaries
and/or its associated companies/associates are eligible to
participate in the 2011 HKRI Scheme/2011 Hanison Scheme.

b) B 17 B
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¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue

A maximum number of 135,027,436/48,755,967 shares of the
Company/Hanison may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted or to be granted under the 2011 HKRI Scheme/2011
Hanison Scheme respectively.

d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company/Hanison issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the 2011 HKRI Scheme/2011
Hanison Scheme or any other share option scheme (if any)
adopted by the Company/Hanison in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company/Hanison in issue
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company/
Hanison respectively.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
INED of the Company/Hanison, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the
shares of the Company/Hanison issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted to such
person in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:

— representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company/Hanison in issue; and

— having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company/Hanison as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company/Hanison who are not connected
persons of the Company/Hanison as defined in the Listing
Rules.

e) Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within ten (10) years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board/board
of directors of Hanison (or the relevant committee thereof) may
specify at the time of grant.

1) Minimum period and requirement, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised

For the 2011 HKRI Scheme, at the time of the grant of an
option, the Board (or the relevant committee thereof) must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.
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For the 2011 Hanison Scheme, at the time of the grant of an
option, the board of directors of Hanison (or the relevant
committee thereof) must specify the minimum period(s), if any,
and the minimum performance target(s), if any, that must be
reached before it can be exercised in whole or in part.

g) Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

For the 2011 HKRI Scheme, the offer of the grant of an option (of
which the date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days from the date on
which the offer letter is delivered to the participant and a
consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

For the 2011 Hanison Scheme, the offer of the grant of an
option (of which the date of grant must be a business day of the
Stock Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days after the
date of grant and a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon
acceptance.

h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less than the
higher of:

— the closing price of the shares of the Company/Hanison as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

— the average closing price of the shares of the Company/
Hanison as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five (5) business days of the Stock
Exchange immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a share of the Company/Hanison on the
date of grant.

i) Remaining life

Each of the 2011 HKRI Scheme and 2011 Hanison Scheme has
a life of ten (10) years and will expire on 7 September 2021 and
20 September 2021 respectively unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the 2011 HKRI Scheme/2011
Hanison Scheme.

Details of options granted and available for grant

No option has been granted under the 2011 HKRI Scheme
since its adoption. The total number of shares in the Company
available for grant of options under the 2011 HKRI Scheme is
135,027,436 shares which represents 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this Annual Report (i.e. 17
June 2016).
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The total number of shares in Hanison available for grant of
options under the 2011 Hanison Scheme is 48,755,967 shares
which represents 10% of the issued share capital of Hanison as
at the date on which the 2011 Hanison Scheme was adopted
and represents 7.19% of the issued share capital of Hanison as
at 3 November 2015 (i.e. the date of which Hanison ceased as a
subsidiary and associated corporation of the Company).

On 16 September 2015, Hanison issued bonus shares on the
basis of 1 bonus share for every 4 existing shares then held by
its qualifying shareholders. As a result of the issuance of bonus
shares, an adjustment was made to the exercise price and the
number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to its directors (some are also the Directors of
the Company) and employees under the 2011 Hanison Scheme
which remain outstanding. As at 3 November 2015, the
Directors of the Company individually and other eligible
participants in aggregate had the following interests in share
options to subscribe shares in Hanison:
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Number of share options

R4 BAERAR
Exercised
during
Balance 1Aprilto  Adjustment Balance
Exercisable asat 3 November as aresult of as at
price per 1 April 2015 theissuance 3 November
Name or share™ 2015 20154 of bonus 2015
category of (HK$) Exercisable 20155 4818 % shares 20155
participant Date of grant BRTEE period 4818 11838 BERTAR 11830
SHEHEHARES BHAH (&) T8 =32 HRBTE MmELHAE =32
Payson CHA™ 26 November 2014 1.08 26 November 2014 to 5,360,000 - 1,340,000 6,700,000
g 2014411 A26H 25 November 2019
201411 H26HZ
201911 A25H
Johnson CHA™ 26 November 2014 1.08 26 November 2014 to 2,680,000 - 670,000 3,350,000
EME? 2014411 A26H 25 November 2019
2014F11 A26R &
2019411 A25H
Other eligible participants 26 November 2014 1.08 26 November 2014 to 20,736,000 5,830,000 3,726,500 18,632,500
in aggregate'® 2014511 A26H 25 November 2019
Hth 5 BERSHE 201411 A26B %
EEY T 2019411 A25H
Total 45t 28,776,000 5,830,000 5,736,500 28,682,500

10

bonus share for every 4 shares then held.
1 R2015F9R 6B AABIRER S EARBRO B VRAR I ELEFTARMELHARE 2 EBERNITESE -

¥ RARFAREBZHAEESE-

Y BEABHMEENES -

Being common directors of the Company and Hanison.

Including other directors and employees of Hanison.

Being the adjusted exercisable price of Hanison’s share as a result of issuance of bonus shares by Hanison on 16 September 2015 on the basis of 1

The weighted average closing price of the Hanison’s shares immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was HK$2.8067 per share.
BRI N B IR BARE 1T B BRI 2 A T T (B R B AR 2.8067 T ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Schemes”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are as follows:

a) The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLP”) and also NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (“SHH”), Sino Land Company Limited (“SLC”) and Tsim
Sha Tsui Properties Limited (“TSTP”). The businesses of HLP,
SHH, SLC and TSTP involve at least some of property
investment, property development, property management and
hotel management and ownership. HLP, SHH, SLC and TSTP
are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

b) Mr Payson CHA is the chairman and NED of Hanison and
INED of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”),
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (“EAM”) being manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”) and
Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited (“HITP”) being
owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort. The
businesses of Hanison, NWD, EAM, CREIT and HITP involve at
least some of property investment, property development,
property management, healthcare services and hotel
management and ownership. Hanison, NWD and CREIT are all
listed on the Stock Exchange.

c) Mr Victor CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited (“SOHQO”)
and alternate INED of NWD. The businesses of SOHO and NWD
involve at least some of property investment, property
development, property management and hotel management
and ownership. SOHO and NWD are both listed on the Stock
Exchange.

d) Mr Johnson CHA is a NED of Hanison whose group’s
businesses consist of property investment, property
development, property management and healthcare services.
Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

e) Ms Madeline WONG is a NED of Chinney Investments,
Limited (“Chinney”) until 27 August 2015. Chinney is listed on
the Stock Exchange whose groups’ businesses consist of
property development, property investment, property
management and hotel management and ownership.
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Save for the INEDs of the Company and save as disclosed BAANBBEL EXHBEEIN EERENRN
above, none of the Directors was interested in any business BEANARNEBEK UM MERERERKE
apart from the Group’s businesses which competed or was B ERER T ESFCERYER
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses FER o

of the Group during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons (other than the M 201643 A 31 B RIEARRDQ R IREHFED
Directors) had interests or short positions in the shares and EIRRMEEFE 2 E LM T
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register AL (KRB EERINRA DR Z 0D K
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO: RO FREE 2 ERZIAEDT -

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25 KRR AR EE0.258 LIk

each MR
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of _capital
Name of shareholder Caéacity ordinary shares 14 E?é?‘rﬂﬁzlﬁz
REREH & ZBERYE IR
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee 560,153,905 41.48
EBEIEFEA
LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee 91,894,801% 6.81
EEZFEA
Invesco Asset Management Limited  Investment manager/ 121,688,399 9.01

advisor of various accounts

RERIE/ZERP 2 B

560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.
' 560,153,905 R M THECCM Trust A B R A S D RE TARABBERERE MZENBEIEAREEREERE L 2&M -

91,894,801 shares were held by LBJ Regents as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes
of discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.
* 91,804,801 A& 10 Ty HLBJRegents UEBEIZ SEA G M AE TTARAMNEEEHE  MZEHNBIaABLRECHEERIE L 2%

6 121,688,399 shares were disclosed on the website of the Stock Exchange as being held by Invesco Asset Management Limited as investment

manager and/or advisor of various accounts.
® 121,688,399 f% B {5 T 7 B <2 B 59 49 Ut 3 5 m Invesco Asset Management Limited {E 218 & E IR F /s Z R 2 BAR#HE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no other B BB TEEIN  R2016F3A31 8 @ &
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of RARBRMDFEERGD c EERIOXE
the Company were recorded in the register required to be kept AR AR RIRIBEEFIKPIEI6CIEETE
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO. ZERMA-

DEBT SECURITIES BEESE

As at 31 March 2016, principal amount of unlisted notes issued M2016F3 A31H » RAFEHITH20204 5|
by the Company which due 2020 amounted to HK$798.0 million HZIEITTEEEH KRS EEBEAET7IB0RE
in aggregate. Details of the debt securities are disclosed in note BT -BEBREFZFBEHNEI6E 2R A

32 to the consolidated financial statements on page 156. B SRR BT EE327 ©
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is the information in relation to the connected
transactions involving the Company and/or its subsidiaries
during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

a) On 19 March 2015, Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited (“Hanison BVI”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
Hanison and then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Sky Champion International Limited (“Sky
Champion”), an indirect majority owned subsidiary of Mingly
Corporation (“Mingly”), Mingly and an independent purchaser (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Hanison BVI and Sky Champion conditionally
agreed to sell the sale shares and to assign the shareholder
loans to the Purchaser at a total cash consideration of HK$550.0
million (subject to adjustment, if any) which should be divided in
the proportion of 60:40 for Hanison BVI and Sky Champion
respectively (the “Disposal”).

Mingly is indirectly majority owned by CCM Trust which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and Hanison and hence
Sky Champion is a connected person of the Company and
Hanison respectively for the purpose of the Listing Rules and the
Disposal constitutes a connected transaction on the part of the
Company and Hanison which is subject to the independent
shareholders’ approval of both the Company and Hanison.

The Disposal and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were duly approved, ratified and confirmed by the independent
shareholders of each of the Company and Hanison on 19 May
2015. Completion of the Disposal took place on 7 July 2015.

b) On 15 July 2015, Emwell Limited, a then indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into two (2) sale and
purchase agreements with Polytime International Limited
(“Polytime”), a company of which Mr TANG Moon Wah together
with his associate is beneficial owner, for the disposal of two (2)
industrial units located at Shatin (the “Properties”) to Polytime for
a total consideration of HK$10.95 million. Mr TANG is an ED of
the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The consideration was
based on the valuation of the Properties done by an independent
valuer. The disposal was completed on 29 February 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group (including

Hanison and its subsidiaries (collectively “Hanison group”), which

ceased to be a subsidiary group of the Company with effect
from 3 November 2015) entered into the following transactions
which constituted continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (the “Continuing

Connected Transactions”) and are required under the Listing
Rules to be disclosed in this Annual Report and consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Details of the relevant
Continuing Connected Transactions can be found on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Construction and Renovation Services between the
Group (excluding Hanison group) and Hanison group

The Company and Hanison entered into the Construction and

Renovation Services Framework Agreement dated 20 December

2012 (the “C&R Agreement”) which governs the outline terms
upon which members of the Group (excluding Hanision group)
and Hanison group proposed to be engaged in various
construction projects (the “Construction Transactions”) and
various interior and renovation projects (the “Renovation
Transactions”) during the three (3) financial years ended

31 March 2016 with total values to be subject to the following
annual caps respectively:

Annual caps

The total values of the Construction Transactions in terms of
certified amount of work done shall not exceed the following
amounts respectively:

1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 HK$320.0 million

1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015 HK$430.0 million

1 April 2015 — 31 March 2016 HK$610.0 million

The total values of the Renovation Transactions in terms of
certified or agreed amount of work done shall not exceed the
following amounts respectively:

1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 HK$50.0 million

The C&R Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps on the total
values of the Construction Transactions and the Renovation
Transactions (as set out above) were approved by an ordinary
resolution passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on

4 February 2013.
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In the event that the total value of the Construction Transactions
or the Renovation Transactions exceeds the relevant annual cap
amount set out above for any respective years, such
transactions and their total value will be subject to review and re-
approval by the independent shareholders of the Company at
the general meeting convened for this specific purpose.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate transaction
value in respect of the Construction Transactions under the C&R
Agreement amounted to HK$32.3 million (2015: HK$81.5 million)
and Renovation Transactions was nil (2015: nil).

Services provided to Haining group by Hanison group

On 31 March 2015, Hanison Project Management Limited
(“HPML"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanison, and /&% 5 &
EH#ESBR AT (“Haining Jiafeng”) and J8E SR EHESR
A a) (“Haining Fusheng”), both are indirectly majority owned by
CCM Trust, have entered into the Site Supervision Agreements
respectively for providing site supervision services to Haining
project (the “Site Supervision Services”). On the even date,
HPML also entered into the Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreement and the Non-PRC Project Management
Service Agreement with Haining Jiafeng for providing project
management services to Haining project in Hong Kong and
Mainland China (the “Project Management Services”) (the Site
Supervision Agreements, the Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreement and the Non-PRC Project Management
Service Agreement collectively the “PM Agreements”).

The transactions for the provision of the Site Supervision
Services and the Project Management Services to Haining
project under the PM Agreements are only subject to
announcement and reporting requirements and no independent
shareholders’ approvals of both Hanison and the Company are
required under the Listing Rules. The PM Agreements, the terms
thereof, the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
annual caps on the total value of the continuing connected
transactions during the three (3) financial years ending 31 March
2018 were approved by the boards of directors of both Hanison
and the Company and a joint announcement in relation thereto
was made on 31 March 2015.

The annual caps for the provision of the Site Supervision
Services and the Project Management Services by HPML to

Haining project under the PM Agreements are as follows:

Site Supervision Services

1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

RMB3.552 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.44 million)

1 April 2016 -
31 March 2017

RMB3.552 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.44 million)

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

RMB3.552 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.44 million)
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Project Management Services

1 April 2015 -
31 March 2016

RMB768,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$960,000)

1 April 2016 —
31 March 2017

RMB768,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$960,000)

1 April 2017 -
31 March 2018

RMB768,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$960,000)

In the event that the total value of the Site Supervision Services
or the Project Management Services under the PM Agreements
exceeds the relevant annual cap amount set out above for any
respective years, such transactions and the cap(s) will be subject
to review, as necessary, re-appraised in the context of the
ongoing requirements of the Listing Rules.

As Hanison group ceased to be a subsidiary group of the
Company with effect from 3 November 2015, the transactions
contemplated under the PM Agreements also ceased as
continuing connected transactions of the Group since then. For
the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015, the aggregate
transaction value contributed to the Group in respect of each of
the Site Supervision Services and the Project Management
Services under the PM Agreements amounted to HK$2.2 million
(for the year ended 31 March 2015: HK$3.4 million) and HK$0.4
million (for the year ended 31 March 2015: HK$2.2 million)
respectively.

Services provided to Haining group by the Group
(excluding Hanison group)

The Company and Clear Shine International Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCM Trust, entered into a
Framework Agreement dated 13 December 2013 (the “Haining
Agreement”) which governs the outline terms for the provision of
the services by members of the Group (excluding Hanison
group) to Haining group in relation to Haining project. The annual
caps for the provision of the services by the Group (excluding
Hanison group) to Haining project during the three (3) financial
years ended 31 March 2016 pursuant to the Haining Agreement
are as follows:

1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014 HK$2.8 million
1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015 HK$5.6 million
1 April 2015 — 31 March 2016 HK$3.5 million

The Haining Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps (as set out above)
on the total value of the continuing connected transactions
during the three (3) financial years ended 31 March 2016 were
approved by the Board and an announcement in relation thereto
was made on 13 December 2013.

55

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

BB ERRS

2015F4H1HE AERM7680007T
201643 A31H (18 7 #7960,0007 7T)

2016F4H1HE  AEK768,0007T
201743 F31H (8% 1 47960,0007% 7T)

2017F4A1HE  AR¥768,0007T

201843 A 31H (8% 1 47960,0007%5 7T)
HBEEEH:EETOBREERSKIER
EIERIS 2 AELB EXXATH T AEEE
EERZeHE AZERXHRE ERAER
WA M ERR ETRRM A E K E
BHESTE-

MR EBEEB2015F11 ASHRERTB AR
ARIZHBER HENBEEERR M
BIZRINMTBAAEEZHEBRER
5 E2015F4 A1 B E2015%11 A3HH
M HEEEHEE O EEE RS KE
EEERESAEABAEEETR IR SBES
Rl A22AEER T (HE20156F3A31H IEF
E:34E 8B R04EE BT (HZE2015
FIASIHLEFE :22B8ETT) °

A E (R 4% LB o8 ) 1R 6
T8 E R R

X &) & Clear Shine International Limited (—
RCCM Trust@#ZH B 22 EMB R E) R
201312 A13BEF —HIER M= ([BE
W&l UREARAEERKE QG (TEIEHE
BEB)MESEHEEMSEEEIRERSE 2
REER - AEB (T EEEBEE) BRE
E20164F3 A31 H It ZQ)EAM K FEE AR E
HEGEAESEBEBRERE ZFEE LR
T

2013F4A1HE2014F3A31H 28B&ATT
20144 A1H22015F3A31H S56BE&ATT
20154 A1H220165F3A31H 35BH&ATT

BERE HEF HBETHRETZRS

KRB ZE2016F 3831 B IE=Q)EFHFE
HREBERERFBBEFE FR (0 EXFT
FEEEE=SBRE HBEASTIER2013
F£12 5138 I3 -



56

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2015/2016

Directors’ Report EE 2 R &

Pursuant to the Haining Agreement, in the event that the value
of the services provided by the Group (including Hanison group)
to Haining project exceeds the amount of the total annual cap
under the PM Agreements and the Haining Agreement for the
year ended 31 March 2016, such transactions and the cap(s)
will be subject to review, in conjunction with Hanison, and, as
necessary, re-appraised in the context of the ongoing
requirements of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate transaction
value in respect of the services provided by the Group (excluding
Hanison group) under the Haining Agreement amounted to
HK$0.5 million (2015: HK$3.6 million).

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Directors have duly approved, and the INEDs of the Company
have reviewed the Internal Auditor’s report, the confirmation
from management of Hanison, and also considered the
Independent Auditor’s report pursuant to Rule 14A.56 and
confirmed that the aforesaid Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 March 2016 were carried out in
accordance with the following principles:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions for judging whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms better than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and

¢) in all material aspects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected Transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the Independent Auditor of the
Company to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions
pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Independent
Auditor of the Company has provided a report to the Board
confirming that:

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions have not
been approved by the Directors;

b) for the transactions involving the provision of services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;
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c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
Continuing Connected Transactions set out above, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
Continuing Connected Transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual values as disclosed in the previous
announcements made by the Company and Hanison in respect
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

With respect to the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, those
transactions which constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions have been disclosed above
or constitute fully exempted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company as all the
applicable percentage ratios are less than 0.1%. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the above connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract, transactions or
arrangements of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in Rule
13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the
details of the loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance on the controlling shareholders of the Company as
at 31 March 2016 pursuant to Rule 13.18 thereof. There existed
no reporting obligation by the Company under Rules 13.17 and
13.19 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into
on 8 September 2015 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a transferable
term loan and revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$8.0 billion with final maturity date falling five (5)
years from the date of the Loan Agreement.

Under the Loan Agreement, among others, an event of default is
triggered when the existing individual shareholder of the
Company (together with his associate(s)) holding the single
largest shareholding (direct or indirect) in the Company on the
date of the Loan Agreement ceases to be the Company’s single
largest beneficial shareholder at any time during the term of the
Loan Agreement.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Company, who personally and together with his
associates including a controlled corporation and certain
companies acting as corporate trustees of certain discretionary
family trusts of which Mr Payson CHA (to his knowledge) was
among the discretionary beneficiaries, held direct and indirect an
aggregate interest in 638,875,574 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 47.31% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he was treated as the individual beneficial
shareholder holding the single largest shareholding in the
Company under the Loan Agreement.

As at the date of this report, the shareholding in the Company
held by Mr Payson CHA remains unchanged and he is still
treated as the single largest individual beneficial shareholder of
the Company.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following were the details of financial
assistances and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies of the Company as at 31 March 2016
pursuant to Rule 13.16 thereof.

a) The Group advanced to Tung Chung Station Development
Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) an aggregate amount of
HK$595.1 million.

TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung Station
Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong in which the
Group has 31% interest. The last phase of the development was
completed in 2009 and all properties were sold out in 2013. The
advances were provided by the Group in the form of
shareholder’s loans in proportion to its shareholding interest in
TCSDCL, for the purpose of funding the working capital
requirements of TCSDCL. The advances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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b) The Group advanced to Dazhongli Properties Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) an aggregate amount of
HK$4,630.6 million.

Dazhongli group is engaged in the development of certain
properties in Jingan District, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of
China in which the Group has 50% interest. The advances were
provided by the Group in the form of equity and loans in
proportion to its shareholding interest therein, for the purpose of
financing the development expenditure of Dazhongli group. The
advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

c) The Group also advanced to several affiliated companies an
aggregate amount of HK$1,073.6 million. The Group has
interests ranging from 31% to 50% in these affiliated companies.

The aggregate amount of advances provided to and guarantees
given for these affiliated companies by the Group amounted to
HK$6,299.3 million representing 39.2% of the consolidated net
tangible assets of the Group of HK$16,056.3 million as at

31 March 2016.

The financial information of these affiliated companies as at 31
March 2016 are set out in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 141 to 146.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five (5) largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five (5)
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the
Group’s purchases.
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None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five (5) largest customers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$1.0 million (2015: approximately
HK$1.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information available to the Company, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands of
the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2016
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the 2016 AGM of the Company
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible and
offering themselves for re-appointment as the Independent
Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
REEED

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
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Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to good corporate governance
which it believes is core to the success of its business and
operations.

The corporate governance functions are undertaken by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) as prescribed by code provision
D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) which are included in the
Board’s terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company fully
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code save for two (2)
deviations: (1) A.4.1 (Non-executive Director (“NED”) should be
appointed for a specific term); and (2) E.1.2 (Chairman of the
Board’s attendance of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)).
Details and reasons for the deviations are set out below in the
paragraphs headed “Non-executive Directors” and “Attendances
of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board comprises eleven (11) Directors of which four (4) are
Executive Directors (“EDs”) and seven (7) are NEDs. More than
one-third of the Board, are Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”). Each Director possesses skills and experience
appropriate to the business of the Group and the particulars of
Directors are duly set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 36 to 40 of 2015/2016 Annual
Report.

Save for Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA, Mr Johnson CHA and
Ms Madeline WONG who are siblings, all other Directors have
no family relationship with each other.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board has the responsibility for strategic leadership, control
and providing guidance to Management to ensure the
Company’s objectives are achieved.

Upon appointment to the Board, every Director is given
comprehensive and formal induction documentation of the
business operation of the Group and information for his/her
understanding and awareness of his/her responsibilities as
Director under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory and
statutory requirements together, if required, with brief meetings
with senior executives and department heads of the Group.
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Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group and has informed the
Company in a timely manner for any change, the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments. Details of Directors’ other
appointments are shown in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 36 to 40 of 2015/2016 Annual
Report.

A list of the Directors, their roles and functions and, in particular
whether they are INEDs, is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and is updated as and when
required.

Board Procedures

The dates of the regular Board meetings in a particular year are
scheduled ahead to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend meetings. There are four (4) regular Board
meetings in a year which are held on a quarterly basis and ad
hoc Board meetings will also be held as and when required. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, six (6) Board meetings were
held and attendance records of the Board meetings held during
the year are set out in the below paragraph headed “Attendances
of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
regular Board meeting and reasonable advance notice would
also be given for other Board meetings. All Directors are
consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in the
agenda and the Chairman of the Board would review and
approve the agenda before the agenda for each Board meeting
is issued.

Agendas and accompanying Board papers are sent to all
Directors/Board Committees members at least three (3) days (or
such other period as agreed) before meetings. With the
assistance of the EDs, the Chairman of the Board seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings and receive adequate documents and
information about the Group in a timely manner. The Chairman
of the Board, or in his absence, the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director, leads meetings and ensures that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Directors in a timely
manner. Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion on
issues in the meetings and encouraged to express their
viewpoints to the Board’s affairs and voice their concerns, if any.
The Chairman directs discussion in the meetings in reaching a
consensus and consolidates discussion with conclusions.
Minutes of Board/Board Committees meetings record matters
considered and decisions reached. Draft and final signed
minutes of Board/Board Committees meetings are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively.
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Where necessary, INEDs meet privately to discuss matters
which are their specific responsibilities. One such meeting was
held in April 2015 with the details set out in the below paragraph
headed “Board Committees”.

The Chairman of the Board meets at least once annually with
the NEDs (including INEDs) without the presence of EDs. In
March 2016, the Chairman of the Board met the NEDs without
the presence of EDs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and not be performed by
the same individual to ensure there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the Board and the executives who run
the business.

The roles of Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company have been taken up by two (2) different
individuals who are brothers. Mr Payson CHA is the Chairman
and Mr Victor CHA is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. Their respective roles and
responsibilities are clearly separated and set out in writing.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for setting the Company’s
direction in consultation with the Board and for the marco
oversight of the Management. With the support of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman also takes primary responsibility to
establish good corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Company. The Managing Director, with the support of
EDs (who in charge of different businesses and functional
divisions in accordance with their respective areas of expertise)
is responsible for strategic planning of different business
functions and day-to-day management and operation of the
Group.

Non-executive Directors (Including Independent Non-
executive Directors)

During the year under review, NEDs of the Company were not
appointed with specific term as the mechanism for rotation,
retirement and re-election of Directors under the Articles of
Associations of the Company (the “Articles”) ensures that no
Director would serve more than three (3) years. Details of the
mechanism are set out in below paragraph headed
“Appointments, Re-election and Removal”.

The roles and responsibilities of NEDs are clearly set out in
writing. NEDs are not involved in the day-to-day management of
the Group’s businesses but participate in Board/Board
Committee meetings where they bring independent views and
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct.
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INEDs, in particular, will oversee the Management and the
Company implementing the rules, procedures and plans
established and help ensure that the interests of the
shareholders as a whole are taken into account by the Board.
Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of them
continue to be independent with reference to the terms of
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal

The Articles stipulate that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three (3) or
a multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three (3) years and any Director appointed by the
Directors shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following AGM (in the case of a new
appointment to the Board) and be eligible to offer for re-election.

Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to be approved by

shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest
changes or material development in laws, the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices relating to the duties and
responsibilities of Directors and are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development seminars to update their
knowledge for discharging directors’ responsibilities.

During the year, Directors have participated in the following
various continuous professional development activities in order
to develop and refresh their skills and knowledge. Each Director
has provided his/her training record to the Company with
particulars set out as follows:
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Type of training(s)
Name of Director EENR EINER
Payson CHA s A
Victor CHA B A
Abraham CHUNG §5.0 [ A B
TANG Moon Wah B A
Ronald ARCULLI JoRES ABC
Johnson CHA EHE A, B
Madeline WONG FTEXE A
Henry CHENG BSR4 A
Linus CHEUNG 3R IK R A B
Loretta HO CEiEI= A
TANG Kwai Chang HEY A B



Notes:
A. Reading materials/articles in relation to updates on the statutory and
regulatory requirements.

B. Attending seminars/workshops/forums in relation to updates on the statutory
and regulatory requirements and developments on financial, commercial, legal and
economic environments.

C. Speaking topic(s) in relation to leadership development.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated and set out levels of authority and
expressed terms of reference for the Board Committees and
reserves the rights to oversee and decide all other non-
delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals
and connected transactions. The Board also delegates certain
management and administration functions to the Management
as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as
to the powers of Management including circumstances where
Management shall report to and obtain prior approval from the
Board.

Board Committees

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and other committees,
namely Finance Committee, Investment/Divestment Committee,
Buy-back, Reissue and Transfer of Shares Committee and
Inside Information Committee. The Board will from time to time
review the terms of references or relevant policies of such
Committees.

The Board may on need basis set up special committees with
clear terms of reference to deal with specific transactions or
matters of the Company. During the year, two (2) special board
committees were set up: (a) comprising four (4) INEDs to
consider the fairmess and reasonableness of a discloseable and
connected transaction which involves certain associates of the
substantial shareholder of the Company for the disposal of a
property by Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”),
the then subsidiary of the Company, to an independent third
party (the “Disposal”) at the advice of the independent financial
adviser; and (b) comprising two (2) EDs, a NED and two (2)
INEDs to consider and recommend to the Board the declaration
of an interim dividend by distribution in specie of all the
Company’s shareholding, representing approximately 48.47%
interest, in Hanison.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
26 March 2012 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee require,
inter alia, that the Nomination Committee comprises no less than
three (3) members with a majority of INEDs and the Chairman
must be either an INED or the Chairman of the Board. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3) members,
namely Mr Payson CHA, the Chairman of the Board, Ms Loretta
HO and Mr TANG Kwai Chang. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Mr Payson CHA.

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee is
to identify and recommend to the Board suitably qualified
persons to become members of the Board, to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and to maintain a policy concerning diversity of Board members
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and consider the measurable
objectives, if required, for recommending to the Board for
adoption. The Nomination Committee is entitled to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if
it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in March
2018. Pursuant to the policy, the Nomination Committee will
review, discuss and agree annually all measurable objectives in
accordance with the structure, size and composition of the
Board for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend
them, if any, to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee also monitors the progress and its policy
implementation for annual reporting in the corporate governance
report. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The policy will be
reviewed by the Nomination Committee on annual basis and
when required to ensure effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting in
March 2016 and (a) reviewed the retirement of Directors and will
recommend to the Board the re-election of Mr Abraham
CHUNG, Mr Johnson CHA, Ms Madeline WONG and Dr Henry
CHENG at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held in
August 2016; (b) reviewed, assessed and considered all INEDs
are independent; (c) reviewed, assessed and considered the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy;

(d) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
during the year of 2015/2016 and considered that the current
diversity of the Board appropriate and it was not necessary to
set out any measurable objectives for enhancing the diversity of
the Board for the year of 2016/2017; and (e) adopted a standard
appointment letter template for the appointment of NEDs on
three (3) years terms (subject to retirement and re-election
pursuant to the Articles).
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting
held during the year is set out in the below paragraph headed
“Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings”.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 2 December 2004 and its terms of reference follow closely
the requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee require,
inter alia, that the Remuneration Committee comprises no less
than three (8) members with a majority of INEDs. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three (3) members, namely
Dr Henry CHENG, Mr Linus CHEUNG and Mr Victor CHA with
Dr Henry CHENG who is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
is to exercise the powers of the Board to review and determine
the remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior
management, if any, including salaries, bonuses, benefits in
kind, share options and other plans. Such factors as
remuneration paid for comparable positions, time commitment
and responsibilities of the EDs and senior management as well
as the Company’s remuneration policy will be considered. The
Remuneration Committee is entitled to seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it considers
necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the year, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held
but the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved

(@) 2015/2016 salary increment for the EDs and senior
management; and (b) 2015/2016 bonus proposal for the EDs by
means of circulation. The records of circulated electronic
communication of the Remuneration Committee during the year
are duly set out in the below paragraph headed “Attendances of
General Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on

17 July 1998 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. In November 2015, the Board
approved and adopted a revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee to include risk management control system, to
comply with the new Listing Rules requirements on risk
management. The full text of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require, inter alia,
that the Audit Committee comprises not less than three (3)
members who are NEDs and a majority of them must be INEDs
of the Company. The Audit Committee comprises three (3)
members, namely Mr TANG Kwai Chang, Mr Linus CHEUNG
and Ms Loretta HO with Mr TANG Kwai Chang leading the Audit
Committee as the Chairman.

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an
effective systems of risk management and internal controls and
compliance, and in meeting its external financial reporting
objectives. The Audit Committee is entitled to seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it considers
necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the year, four (4) Audit Committee meetings were held, of
which two (2) meetings were held with senior management and
the Independent Auditor. The Audit Committee has

(a) considered the Independent Auditor’s projected audit and
non-audit services fees; (b) reviewed the independence of the
Independent Auditor, the nature and scope of the audit and
recommended the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Independent Auditor of the
Company; and (c) reviewed and discussed the continuing
connected transactions and internal controls, the interim and
final financial statements together with the Management’s
findings and responses and the Independent Auditor’s reviews
and reports for the Board’s approval. Two (2) other Audit
Committee meetings were also held in early 2016 to (a) consider
property management issues in relation to Discovery Bay; and
(b) assess risk management and internal control systems after a
site visit to Discovery Bay.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings held
during the year are set out in the below paragraph headed
“Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings”.
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ATTENDANCES OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee held during the year are set out below:

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

BEAR EFRRESE
ZRBREZHEE

RERN BRAGREFE FERZEBEE -
FHEZEERREZEEERCEFTLRER
#;omT

Remuneration EGM AGM

Audit Committee Nomination held on held on

Board Committee circulated Committee 19May 26 August

meeting meeting communications meeting 2015 2015
R2015F

Exe ERZEE

58198 R2015F
212 8H26H
FMHZEEE REZEEE RIRER 272

Name of Director EEHE 23 2% EREN 2% g REE®
Payson CHA® BHmEC 5/6 - - 1/1 X X
Victor CHA* B 6/6 - 2/2 - X N
Abraham CHUNG &0 6/6 - - - \ V
TANG Moon Wah BmE 6/6 - - - X N
Ronald ARCULLI BfE 5/6 - - - N X
Johnson CHA BiHE 3/6 - - - N X
Madeline WONG TEES 3/6 - - - X X
Henry CHENG" MR 4/6 - 2/2 - X X
Linus CHEUNG** RAK TR 4/6 4/4 2/2 - X X
Loretta HO*® famE 6/6 4/4 - 1/1 X X
TANG Kwai Chang*® B3 & &*° 6/6 4/4 - 11 N N
Notes: M5 -

. ERFEERE

members of Audit Committee
members of Remuneration Committee
members of Nomination Committee

- not applicable

#

@

Due to the other business engagements, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company could not attend the AGM of the
Company held on 26 August 2015. However, Mr Victor CHA,
the Deputy Chairman of the Board and Managing Director of the
Company, who is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee took the chair of that meeting and Mr TANG Kwai
Chang, who is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee, all other EDs of the
Company and the representative of the Company’s Independent
Auditor, Deloitte, were present to answer question from
shareholders.

An Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) was held on 19 May
2015 to obtain shareholders’ approval on the Disposal. An
Independent Board Committee (“IBC”) comprising four (4)
INEDs, namely Mr TANG Kwai Chang, Dr Henry CHENG,

Mr Linus CHEUNG and Ms Loretta HO was set up to make
recommendations to the independent shareholders in respect of
the Disposal. Mr TANG Kwai Chang, who is the Chairman of the
IBC, attended and took the chair of that meeting and be
available thereat to answer questions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge they are responsible for the
preparation of accounts for financial year which is required to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group, its results and the cash flows for the Group. For
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Directors selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimations that are prudent and reasonable,
and prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The
statement of the Company’s Independent Auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 is contained in
the Independent Auditor’s report of 2015/2016 Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
systems of risk management and internal controls, which include
financial, operational and compliance controls.

Key procedures are being established and implemented to
ensure there are appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems which includes (a) setting core values
and beliefs which form the basis of the Group’s overall risk
philosophy and appetite; (b) having an organisational structure in
place with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority which hold individuals accountable for their risk
management and internal control responsibilities; (c) imposing
an organisational structure which provides necessary information
flow for risk analysis and management decision-making; (d)
imposing budgetary and management accounting controls to
efficiently allocate resources and providing timely financial and
operational performance indicators to manage business activities
and risks; (e) ensuring effective financial reporting control to
record complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information; and (f) expanding the role of the Audit
Committee to include the review of risk management system.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department which is
responsible for performing independent reviews on the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls and
reports audit findings to the Audit Committee and the Board
regularly.
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During the year, the Internal Audit Department carried out
reviews on the (a) leasing of commercial properties in Discovery
Bay; (b) operation of commercial estate management; (c)
operation of Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong; (d) operation of
Legal Department; (e) operation of Company Secretarial
Department; (f) operation of Group Administration Department; (g)
continuing connected transactions of the Group; and (h) other
business units with audit follow-up. With the implementation of
follow-up measures after the reviews, the effectiveness in areas
with irregularities gradually improves. Findings on the reviews
and the relevant recommendations had been presented to and
accepted by the Audit Committee in November 2015 and June
2016. The Company has adopted an Internal Audit Charter in
2008 to formulate the processes and procedures of internal
audit function for strengthening of the control framework.

The Audit Committee, with delegation by the Board, discusses
the internal control system with Management for the year under
review to ensure that Management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. Discussion covers
areas, inter alia, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board, through the work of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit Department, has conducted an annual review on
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
considers that the Group’s internal control system for the year
was effective and adequate.

In order to comply with the new Listing Rules requirements, the
Board resolved in November 2015 that the Audit Committee’s
role would be enlarged to include risk management and the
Audit Committee will be tasked to review the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management system with the assistance of the
Company Secretary, Internal Audit Department and/or delegated
party whenever necessary. The Audit Committee made site
visit(s) to Discovery Bay in March 2016 and met with the heads
of various Discovery Bay operations. After the site visit, the Audit
Committee reviewed the internal risk and control systems in
respect of Discovery Bay operations.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are
subject to shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is
determined with reference to prevailing market situation, their
respective duties and responsibilities and the Group’s
remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration Committee should
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and it has the delegated responsibilities to determine the
remuneration of the EDs. The EDs are entitled to salary,
contribution to retirement schemes and discretionary bonus
which are subject to the ED’s and the Company’s performance.
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In general, the Managing Director, who is a member of the
Remuneration Committee, is involved in recommending
proposals on the remuneration of other EDs for due
consideration and approval by the Remuneration Committee.
However, he abstains from voting when his remuneration is
considered by the Remuneration Committee. His remuneration
is recommended by the Chairman of the Board and reviewed
and determined by the Remuneration Committee. No Director
will participate in the discussion and review of his own
remuneration.

The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for their service which
was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given by
the shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with
reference to their duties and responsibilities in the Company and
the prevailing market situation. Currently, a sum of HK$100,000
per annum being the basic fee for acting as a NED and
additional fee of HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each
member, who is NED, of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. An additional fee of HK$50,000 will also be paid to
each INED having a seat in any independent board committee
which is required to be set up from time to time under the Listing
Rules.

Remuneration details of the Directors (on individual name basis)
for the year ended 31 March 2016 are disclosed in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 131 and 132 of
2015/2016 annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte is the Independent Auditor of the Company. The
remuneration for audit services provided by Deloitte to the
Group for the year under review amounted to approximately
HK$10.2 million. In addition to the audit fee, the Company had
appointed Deloitte for the interim results review and the other
non-audit services including tax compliance and advisory,
remuneration of which amounted to approximately HK$7.3
million for the year under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (including amendments as effected from
time to time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”). All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (both
days inclusive). The Model Code has been extended to and has
become equally applicable to dealings in the securities of the
Company by members of senior management and relevant
employees.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In November 2015, Ms MAK Sau Ching resigned and Ms YEE
Chooi Mee Josephine was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms Yee is a solicitor as defined in the Legal
Practitioners Ordinance and an employee of the Company, with
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72, EGMs shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two (2) shareholders of the Company
representing not less than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the time of requisition. Shareholders wishing to do
S0 must serve a duly executed written requisition to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”)
specifying the object(s) of the meeting. If the Directors do not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting, such shareholders may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meeting(s) may be convened by the
Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by those
shareholders as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene
the general meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company in
aggregate representing not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as Director at
general meeting in accordance with Article 120. Any shareholder
wishing to do so must serve (a) a written notice of intention to
propose such person for election as Director; (b) a notice
executed by that person of his willingness to be elected; and

(c) the information of that person as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules to the Principal Place of
Business between the period commencing from the date after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end on (and exclude) the date that is seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company
shall issue an announcement and/or a supplementary circular, if
applicable, to inform the shareholders the biographical details of
the candidate proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to
stand for election as Director is received.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining
effective communication with the shareholders and other
stakeholders. A shareholders communication policy has been
adopted by the Board which set out the Company’s policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
investment community. The policy is subject to regular review by
the Board to ensure its effectiveness. The Company’s AGM, for
which at least 20 clear business days’ prior notice is given, is
one of the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. Shareholders have the opportunity to
communicate face to face with the Directors if they have any
questions on the Company’s performance and operations. In
addition to the AGM, extensive information on the Company’s
activities in respect of its financial, business and operations is
provided by way of announcements, annual and interim reports
and circulars which are sent to shareholders and/or are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website at www.hkri.com. The Company Secretary is
responsible for forwarding communications relating to matters
within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and customers complaints, to the relevant
executive officers of the Company under the direction of the
Chairman of the Board and/or Managing Director of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. No change was made to the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BB E

2016 2015
For the year ended 31 March HZESAMBALEE HK$'M HK$'M
Results EF BEBER BEET
Turnover of continuing operations BEBKEXEB 2 EXTE 2,647.9 3,408.2
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 7K A R A A FE 15 % F 783.9 910.0
Basic earnings per share for continuing and TERENDORIEREER
discontinued operations (HK cents) AR B A ) (B AL 58.1 67.4
At 31 March MR3A31H HK$’M HK$'M
Financial Position B iR R BEER aEET
Total assets EELE 27,766.9 29,243.7
Total liabilities BERE 9,507.4 9,461.1
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company ZN R &S A B #E %= 16,056.3 16,727.7
Net asset value per share (HK$) FREEFE(EIT) 11.9 12.4
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (HKS)
BREEFE(ET)
14
12.4
12.0 11.9
12 5
10.7
10 ‘
8
6
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0
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2014 2015
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
1 %5 2]

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

As at 31 March 20186, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
decreased by HK$671.4 million to HK$16,056.3 million (2015:
HK$16,727.7 million). The decrease was mainly due to the
cessation of consolidation of Hanison group’s financial results
into the Group’s consolidated financial statements upon
completion of distribution of interim dividend by distribution in
specie of all Hanison shares owned by the Company in
November 2015. The gross profit margin of continuing
operations for the Group was 32.5% (2015: 36.9% (restated)).

MAJOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In June 2015, the Group successfully acquired the land use right
of a piece of land in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province at a
consideration of HK$678.8 million and completed the acquisition
in March 2016.

In January 2016, the Group successfully acquired the land use
right of another parcel of land in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province
at a consideration of HK$352.0 million, of which HK$220.2
million was paid upon signing of land transfer agreement and the
remaining balance has been settled in May 2016.

In December 2015, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to purchase 10 plots of land in Bangkok, Thailand for
a consideration of HK$604.1 million. An initial 30% deposit of
HK$181.2 million was paid upon signing of the agreement and
the remaining balance is expected to be paid in the second half
of 2016.

During the year, the Group acquired a residential building in
Japan at a consideration of HK$86.2 million.

MAJOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

During the year, sales proceeds from disposal of certain
development properties in Hong Kong, Thailand and the PRC
amounted to HK$722.2 million, HK$92.9 million and HK$304.8
million respectively.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$5,019.9 million (2015: HK$5,931.8 million)
whilst total bank borrowings, bonds and other loans were
HK$6,966.1 million (2015: HK$5,830.0 million).
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GEARING

The Group’s gearing ratio was 14.0% (2015: 1.4%) as calculated
by the Group’s consolidated net borrowings to the shareholders’
funds as at 31 March 2016.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER LOANS

The Group closely monitors its liquidity requirements and
arranges financing for its development projects and operations
as and when appropriate. In September 2015, the Group
arranged a 5-year revolving credit and term loan facility of
HK$8.0 billion to refinance the previous HK$5.0 billion
syndicated loan upon its maturity and to fund the Group’s
general working capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2016, the unutilised credit facilities were
approximately HK$7,260.5 million (2015: HK$5,043.7 million)
which increased by HK$2,216.8 million mainly due to the new
HK$8.0 billion syndicated loan arranged in September 2015.

The maturity profile of bank borrowings, bonds and other loans
were 5.0% (2015: 41.7%) falling within one year, 10.8% (2015:
2.6%) falling between one and two years, 84.2% (2015: 42.1%)
falling between two and five years and nil (2015: 13.6%) falling
more than five years as at 31 March 2016.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted a
conservative approach for its treasury management. With
majority of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars and
US dollars, the Group has limited exposure to foreign currencies.
To manage foreign currency exposure in certain overseas
investments, the Group maintains naturally hedged positions
and will make any swap/future arrangements as appropriate.
The Group’s banking facilities are principally on floating rate
basis and interest rate swaps will be employed to manage
interest rate risk for its short to medium-term borrowings when
appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial
derivatives for speculative purpose.

/7

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

EXEELR
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties, leasehold land and
building and properties held for sale, at the total carrying value of
HK$1,036.2 million (2015: HK$2,007.7 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not pledged any bank
deposits (2015: HK$83.7 million) to secure banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee on the Group’s proportionate share to the extent of
HK$132.0 million (2015: HK$164.9 million) as at 31 March 2016
given to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to an
investee company and a joint venture. The Group’s interest in
such investee company is classified under other non-current
assets.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company provided guarantees
amounting to HK$142.2 million (2015: HK$19.6 million) as at 31
March 2016 in respect of mortgage facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2016.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ERAXFREBREGRAR
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to
191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
EH-BERAGTMT
Certified Public Accountants
#EEETAT

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
2016 F6 A17THRES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z=20164F3 A31H I FE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$’'M HK$'M
B 5 BEBTT BEBT
(restated)
(&B3)
Continuing operations FEREER
Turnover =E 5 2,647.9 3,408.2
Cost of sales $HE KA (1,787.7) (2,149.7)
Gross profit EF 860.2 1,258.5
Other income EH A 6 142.7 157.6
Administrative expenses THHAX (407.0) (410.9)
Other gains and losses Hfh ks K BB 7 (25.1) 12.8
Change in fair value of investment properties KEYELATFEEE
Realised gains on disposals HER 2B #FRKR 1.4 8.5
Unrealised gains IR W = 518.9 420.8
Finance costs MEER 8 (168.3) (194.5)
Share of results of associates DIEEEE N R ER (2.4) 4.0
Share of results of joint ventures DIhEENRERS 159.0 13.5
Profit before taxation % 4 B 9 1,079.4 1,270.3
Taxation g 10 (126.0) (174.7)
Profit for the year from continuing SELEEBRFE
operations ikl 953.4 1,095.6
Discontinued operations BRI EK
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEEEEBRFE
operations ikl 12 189.3 487.5
Profit for the year N E R T 1,142.7 1,583.1
Profit for the year attributable to KAEHER ANEL
the owners of the Company KF i F
For continuing operations KEFEREER 5 698.0 704.6
For discontinued operations KA RIEEER 85.9 205.4
Profit for the year attributable to NARHER AEM
the owners of the Company KEE = 11 783.9 910.0
Profit for the year attributable to IR B
non-controlling interests N E i A
For continuing operations RERFELEEDR 255.4 391.0
For discontinued operations REDRIEREER 103.4 282.1
Profit for the year attributable to JEIE AR R S P (L
non-controlling interests TN i 358.8 673.1
For continuing and discontinued REEKEREHEL
operations REEBEMS
Earnings per share 1% & F 15
Basic (HK cents) AR GEW) 58.1 67.4
For continuing operations MEFESEEREmS
Earnings per share A% 2 %I 15
Basic (HK cents) AEXRGEMW) 51.7 52.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBaRkHME2E KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3A31H I FE

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT
Profit for the year NEE % 1,142.7 1,583.1
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hap2m (F ) W
Items that may be subsequently reclassified HEié ke g T Emn s
to profit or loss HH
Exchange differences arising from BERIRBEEZ
translation of foreign operations JE 3 =% (146.1) (146.2)
Share of exchange reserve of joint ventures DIEEE R E 2 EH FE (304.1) 8.8
Share of exchange reserve of an associate DIEBE R R ZEH FHE = 1.1
Release of exchange reserve upon BINEE & N B RIE N B A )
deregistration/disposal of a foreign associate BtE s/ B E R
and foreign subsidiaries FE 3 18 (4.1) 0.5
Available-for-sale financial assets: AtHESMEE:
Fair value changes during the year FANRAFEES (2.1) 1.4
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal u“_l ERENMOEEER (0.4) (1.0
Deferred tax arising from fair value changes NEEEHELE ZREERIE 0.6 0.3)
(456.2) (135.7)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ¥+~ @ EH 7 EE 82 HE
Revaluation gain on property, plant and Y- f}%& & 8 B
equipment upon transfer to investment EIEYER Y Bk
properties 21.7 -
Share of asset revaluation reserve of a joint DIEEERNRZEEER
venture e 0.2 -
21.9 -
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEFEMEZEHRX
(net of tax) (FOBRBLIEE) (434.3) (135.7)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HEHRZRE 708.4 1,447.4
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEGEEE KB
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE DN 342.0 774.8
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 366.4 672.6
708.4 1,447 .4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

At 31 March 2016 72201653 431 H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$’'M HK$'M
B 5E BEET BEET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties WEYE 16 7,654.7 7,703.5
Property, plant and equipment ME BB NMERE 17 2,085.4 2,233.3
Prepaid lease payments ENEEMK 18 0.1 7.0
Interests in associates i RN Dol ey 19 = 45.4
Interests in joint ventures S8 NRl 7R 20 7,299.8 7,561.8
Held-to-maturity investments BRI E 21 146.2 196.4
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 21 98.8 90.8
Other assets Htw&EE 22 136.5 143.5
Pledged bank deposits B IFEITER 29(a), 42 = 83.7
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEEE 31 3.1 3.6
17,424.6 18,069.0
Current assets mENE E
Inventories e 23 49.9 68.9
Properties held for sale BIELEMmE 1,557.6 1,930.6
Properties held for/under FIFHE 2 &R/
development for sale KEPYE 24 3,111.5 2247.2
Trade receivables BB SRR 25 40.0 4071
Amounts receivable on contract work JEUE 4 T2 A 26 - 134.8
Progress payments receivable FE W E 18 27 - 96.7
Retention money receivable FE W IR B & 28 - 187.8
Deposits, prepayments and other B ERNFRER
financial assets EHmemE E 29(a) 629.7 368.3
Amounts due from associates FE UL B & N B FRIE 19, 29(b) 19.0 40.4
Amounts due from joint ventures A NG E | 29(c) 145.5 1221
Taxation recoverable AR B 18 14.2 9.9
Held-to-maturity investments EEIEHEE 21 56.9 40.9
Bank balances and cash MITHEHB LIRS 29(a), 41 4,718.0 5,620.0
10,342.3 11,174.7
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, provision and JENEB SRR BER
accrued charges EstE A 30 911.5 1,490.6
Amounts payable on contract work FER A X T2 E 26 - 243.4
Deposits received and other BZEE &
financial liabilities Hih&ma R 34 231.9 325.9
Taxation payable FERTFRLTE 79.6 221.7
Bank and other loans due —FRBBPHZRITR
within one year HEMER 32 351.2 2,433.6
Other liabilities due within one year —FRIAZEMAER 33 0.5 76.9
1,574.7 4,792 1
Net current assets mEEEFE 8,767.6 6,382.6
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 26,192.2 24,451.6
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position % & Bt #& AR 0 &

At 31 March 2016 72201653 H31H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'M HKS$'M
B 5E BE&ATT BEAT
Non-current liabilities FERBBEIE
Bank and other loans due —FRIPZETR
after one year HibBE R 32 6,614.9 3,396.4
Other liabilities due after one year —FRINAZHEMBE 33 1,062.0 1,031.3
Deferred tax liabilities EEFR B A S 31 255.8 241.3
7,932.7 4,669.0
18,259.5 19,782.6
Capital and reserves BRKFHE
Share capital A& A 35 337.5 337.5
Reserves i 15,718.8 16,390.2
Equity attributable to the owners KNEHER ARG
of the Company T 16,056.3 16,727.7
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR ME 25 2,203.2 3,054.9
18,259.5 19,782.6

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 191 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

B

I EERE FREE

FOIEZEFZ1NEMEHGRAVBRRELE
EER2016F6 A7 E R ERETZ - I
HTIEEKRERESE

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director
&0 [

HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBEHER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z= 201643 A31H IFFfE

Attributable to the owners of the Company Non-controling interests
KRAFER AR FiEREE
Share
Investment Share of options
property Asset  Investment Capital net assets reserve
Share  Accumulated  revaluation Share  revaluation  revaluation  Exchange  redemption (iabilties) of ofa
capital profits reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Sub-total  subsidiaries  subsidiary  Sub-total Total
b
WEAR  HEAA
REME BE %8 AR BE(ER) Z2&H
R ZibER  BREE RHEE EREE  EREE EXEE RORRE /Nt FE BREE N 5t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$ M HK$'M HKE'M HK$'M HKE'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKE'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEAT BEET AERT EEET BEAT BRI BEXT  EEERT AEET BEEET BEER
(note a) (note b)
(Miita) (Hiitb)

t 1 April 2014 H2014F4 /18 3375 9,614.2 33479 15379 2.8 316 1,320.9 31 16,1959 2,391.1 - 23911 18,587.0
Profit for the year RERER - 9100 - - - - - - 9100 6731 N 6731 15631
Exchange differences ~ #EFNEHE

arising from translation £ 7 EH £
of foreign operations - - - - - - (145.7) - (%) 05 - 05 (146.2)
Share of exchange reserve A58 &R 32
of joint ventures (note ¢) [ 3 Bk &
tic) - - - - - - 8.8 - 8.8 - - - 88
Share of exchange reserve 5 er Az
of an associate i - - - - - - 11 - 11 - - - R
Release of exchange 5 9 b MT BRARH
reserve upon MR
deregistration of foreign [ 3 5 &
subsidiaries - - - - - - 05 - 05 - - - 05
Fair value changes on REESRE
avallable-for-sale F ZDFE
financial assets 28 - - - - - 14 - - 14 - - - 14
Reclassified to profit or loss H: £ a] £ ﬁ £¢
upon disposal of BAENBH
avallable-for-sale HEERR
financial assets - - - - - (10 - - (10 - - - (1.0)
Deferred tax arising from At L& & &
fair value changes on ENTEED
avallable-for-sale EEZEL
financial assets A - - - - - (03) - - 03 - - - 03
Total comprehensive AEEZERE
income for the year ot - 910.0 - - - 0.1 (135.3) - 7748 672.6 - 6726 14474
Transfer to investment ~ FRAKEBEAT
property revaluation EFNmEs
reserve relating to EREME
unrealised net fair value 2 fi; G &
gain during the year (H3E11(a))
(Note 11(a)) - (495.9) 495.9 - - - - - - - - - b
Transfer from investment  £REZH AT
property revaluation EFYHER
reserve relating to net BRENE
far value gain realised B (A
during the year (Note 11 ) (H3E 11 ) - 1934 (1934) - - - - - - - - - -
Recognition of BRANERGEE
equity-settled PARR 17 ﬁ%ﬂr
share-based payments 2 3% - - - - - - - - - - 57 57 57
Dividends paid BIRMRE - (243.0 - - - - - - (2430 - - -
Dividends paid to 53] 3F’Fﬂxﬂx§
non-controling R AR
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (14.5) - (14.5) (14.5)
At 81 March 2015 #0155
3A31H 3375 9,978.7 36604 15379 28 31.7 1,185.6 31 167217 3,049.2 5.7 30549 19,7826

85



86 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2015/2016

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zr S X & B R
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Attributable to the owners of the Company Non-controlling interests
ARAREAEL FERER
Share
Investment Share of options
property Asset  Investment Capital net assets reserve
Share A | i Share i revaluation Exchange redemption (liabilities) of ofa
capital profits reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Sub-total subsidiari?E subsidiary  Sub-total Total
2
KEAE KEARE
RENE BE RE BX . KERR) Z2BH N N
B & 2itER  EfiRE ROME EfEE EfGE EXRE HOREE i BE HERE it @zt
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'|\_I| HK$'|\_I| HK$’M HK$'|\_I| HK$'|\_I|
AEAT BEET FEEST BAAT HEAT HE%T HERRT HEBRn HEBT  HEBn HEBT AEET HEART
(note a) (note b)
(K &Ha) (K &Eb)
At 1 April 2015 201554 A1 3375 9,978.7 36504  1,537.9 28 31.7 1,185.6 31 16,727.7 3,049.2 5.7 3,0549 19,7826
Profit for the year AEEEF - 7839 - - - - - - 783.9 358.8 - 3588  1,1427
Exchange differences BRERNEBE

arising from translation £ ZE X EH

of foreign operations - - - - - - (145.3) - (145.3) 0.8) - 0.8)  (146.1)
Share of exchange reserve A1EA 4 AR 2

of joint ventures (note o) [E X B¢ /&

(H3Ec) - = = = = = (304.1) - (304) = = - (3041)
Release of exchange EONE R AR R

reserve upon ENHE A A

deregistration/disposal & T/

of a foreign associate HERRR

and foreign subsiclaries & % /& - - - - - - (4. - 4. - - - (4.1)
Fair value changes on ARHESR

available-for-sale BEINTE

financial assets 23 = = - - - (21) - = @21 = - - 21
Reclassffied to profit or loss 1% ] fit i &

upon disposal of PREER

available-for-sale ENAEE

financial assets B - - - - - (0.4) - = (0.4) = - - (0.4)
Deferred tax arising from Al £ H &4 7

fair value changes on EENTE

available-for-sale EHFMELL

financial assets EEHIE - - - - - 0.6 - - 0.6 - - - 0.6
Revaluation gain on % - BER

property, plant and ZEEAE

equipment upon transfer R EMEE 2

to investment properties B & I & - - - - 133 - - - 133 84 - 84 217
Share of asset revaluation 5 15A B AT 2

reserve of ajoint venture B EE & & - - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Total comprehensive KEE2EME

income for the year BE - 7839 - - 135 (1.9) (453.5) - 342.0 366.4 - 366.4 708.4
Transfer to investment ~ FRAKER AT

property revaluation [ERTl 6

reserve relating to EREME

unrealised net fair value  E fii

gain during the year (KaE11(a))

(Note 11(a)) - (714.0) 7140 - - = = = = = = o -
Transfer from investment R E #HAF

property revaluation [ERTl 62

reserve relating to net BRENE

fair value gain realised  E ffi[# &

during the year (Note 1) (Fis£11) - 773 (77.9) - - - - - - - - - -
Shares issued under share %M1 2 AR 3

option scheme of a BEHERT

subsidiary pd 30 C (4.8) = = = = = = (4.8) 13.8 (1.1) 127 79
Disposal of subsidiaries 1 & i1 & 722 &

(Note 38(2)) (Hisx38(a)) = - = = = = = = = (85.5) = (855)  (85.5)
Dividends paid B = (94.5) o o o = o - (45 = 5 - (45
Dividends paid to BRIEERER

non-controlling RS

shareholders - - - - - - - - - (159.5) - (159.5)  (159.5)
Dividend by way of BN RN B

distrioution in specieof A& 23

subsidiaries Note 14) 9 IE 2 &

[GE: 14) - (914.1) - - - - - - (914.1) (981.2) (4.6) (985.8)  (1,899.9)
Transfer upon distribution in 1 & S NN B

specie of subsidiaries DR BE - 1904 (189.9) = (0.5) = = - - - - - -

At 31 March 2016 W2016%

3A318 337.5 9,302.9 40972 1,537.9 15.8 298 7321 31  16,056.3 2,203.2 - 2,203.2 18,259.5
Notes: Bt
(@) Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group’s accumulated @ BEWESHL
post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the investment properties of the BENEZIEY
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates recognised in profit or loss, and then BEFkzm Ekm
transferred from accumulated profits to investment property revaluation reserve. HEBBIZEEME
Upon the relevant investment property has been disposed of and the fair value gain TEF = R
has become realised, the relevant unrealised net fair value gain will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
(o) Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the nominal value of (b) B ZNFE Bl 45 15 AR B O I [ 2K 2 R B 40 B 5 8 2 AR
the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the Company’s shares which was MHESRSE AHESEERE RGN - ADFATRIEHE
transferred from accumulated profits. The reserve may be applied by the Company MEBERMAALRAERERAREAZEMHE  UER
in paying up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of the Company as fully ERBITRG  WIEABMBAMBRMOEE TARARRE -
paid bonus shares in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
() Share of exchange reserve of joint ventures during the year included exchange © FR NEABRRACENREREEARESENF
loss of HK$92.7 million (2015: exchange gain of HK$2.1 million) arising from 2K ﬁné EZ & 5 E51892.7 8 & 7T (20154F - [E X Wz
translation of interests in joint ventures and exchange loss of HK$211.4 million (2015: CIEBET) REBR BN LB DN BB FEY BERE
exchange gain of HK$6.7 million) arising from loans that form part of net investment EZEREE2NM4BEET(20156F  EXINH67TEE

in foreign operations. HBEIT) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z=20164F3 A31H I FE

2016 2015
NOTE HK$’'M HK$'M
B 5 BEBER BEAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXK
Profit for the year REE i F 1,142.7 1,583.1
Adjusting items, net FEIEE FE (@) (355.3) (351.4)
Operating cash flows before Rt ABaBESE
movements in working capital AIZRERERE 787.4 1,281.7
Decrease in inventories FERp 4.0 0.9
Decrease (increase) in properties held for sale BIEHREWERD
(1% hn) 79.5 (167.7)
(Increase) decrease in properties held for/under #{E & 2 3 &/
development for sale BEREPYEOGEM)
DA (1,203.2) 103.1
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables FEUE 5 IR BOR
(12 hn) 367.5 (189.8)
Decrease (increase) in amounts receivable on &Y A 4 T 12 FUIE
contract work > (38 ) 48.8 (52.2)
Increase in progress payments receivable JIE U HE S ZRB 1 A0 (102.7) (33.9)
Increase in retention money receivable FEWR B £ 52N (51.3) (90.3)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other B ERNZRER
financial assets Hih &g & ERm (461.1) (79.0)
Decrease (increase) in mortgage instalment JE W% ¥ o HE 3R
receivables A (3E ) 7.6 (12.0)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from joint ~ FEUR & & A T 3RI1E
ventures (3% hn) Rk (24.6) 18.5
Decrease in trade payables, provision and JERHE SRR - BE
accrued charges K et B AR (36.1) (56.5)
Increase in amounts payable on contract work it & 4 T 52 KB
)il 144.4 34.7
(Decrease) increase in deposits received and BlEke R EME R
other financial liabilities BEOR4)E (93.6) 22.9
Cash (used in) generated from operations HETRMER: (533.4) 730.8
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBFEH (200.3) (46.4)
Overseas tax paid BN IE (11.2) 8.2)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM & E %3 (Fr ) Fr &
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REeERH (744.9) 676.2

8/
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2016 2015
NOTES HK$’'M HK$'M
B 5E BE&ATT BEAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEETH
Net cash outflows on acquisition of subsidiaries U BEKTE A 7 2 H &
iRaspE R 37 (1,238.4) -
Net cash outflows from discontinued operations £ 4 || 48 4% 2 7% >~
WML HEE 38(b) (569.4) -
Net cash inflows from disposal of subsidiaries HENBARIZIRS
mAERE 38(a) 242.9 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties H&ERE W E 2 115
I8 57.9 646.0
Proceeds from disposal of property interest HEMERR G
RIE - 163.9
Interest received B U F B 70.8 79.6
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments ELOEZRHEKE 41.0 76.5
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand  HE&E®W% BE &
equipment and prepaid lease payments REMENEE
R 2 P 1S 8 5.3 32.6
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMMHHEES R
financial assets BEZEBREIE 1.0 7.2
Repayment of loans by associates BERREEER 16.1 5.1
Dividend received from an associate B g R AR B 19.7 -
Dividends received from joint ventures BlAEZEREIRE 8.6 2.6
Decrease in other assets HEmEERD - 0.8
Additions of available-for-sale financial assets 7 & A] f H & £ &t
BE (12.1) (12.8)
Capital injection to joint ventures Ae&ERNaEE = (27.6)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEEBEITHER = (31.9)
Loans to joint ventures ERTFEERR (67.1) (65.7)
Additions of held-to-maturity investments NEEZFHEE (16.7) (63.0)
Additions of property, plant and equipment REWME - - HWE K
B (126.4) (136.9)
Additions of investment properties NEREME (436.9) (179.6)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM #® &35 8 (FTH) 8
INVESTING ACTIVITIES Re&FE (2,003.7) 506.8
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2016 2015
NOTE HK$’'M HK$'M
B 5E BEBT BEET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
New bank and other loans raised FZRIT R AME R 6,049.7 2,963.3
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder 3H A% A% B 2 2 44.4 162.1
Proceeds from issue of club debentures XTTEMESZIE
B 0.5 1.4
Club debentures redeemed B fES (0.2) (8.4)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders E ﬁ FE 1738 A% AR BRI A<
gs) (94.5) (14.5)
Capital contributed by non-controlling P ENEIE2 3
shareholders of a subsidiary EE 7.9 -
Interest paid B FE (178.7) (170.1)
Dividends paid 2R E (159.5) (243.0)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders BT IEERRE = (472.6)
Repayment of bank and other loans EBERITREMER (3,618.1) (3,033.0)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) R & Z & 4B (FiA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REeEFHE 2,051.5 (814.8)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASHAND BE&REELEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS Z (R 4) 8 tn # 8 (697.1) 368.2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FENZzRERES
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR LEEHR 5,520.0 5,311.8
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERSHoTE
CHANGES (104.9) (160.0)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND &£ XzHERBE$
OF THE YEAR £EEE 41 4,718.0 5,620.0
2016 2015
NOTES HK$’'M HK$'M
B & BHEBBT BEBT
Note: Bi5E
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) BEEBFHEHZIMN
Taxation | 10, 12 150.0 198.7
Finance costs B8R 8,12 172.0 202.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELRERBZINE 9,12 152.9 167.0
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised (T% [E) B R EEE 7 (1.0) 29.4
Share of results of associates DR E R RS 19 23 9.2
Expenses recognised in respect of equity-settled ThUAREZ fm #* ,%': AR5 B E i
share-based payments 2 REER R X = 5.7
Release of prepaid lease payments ERHEE ﬁ X8 9 0.3 0.3
Net allowance (reversal) for doubtful debts RERBE (BE) FH 0.3 (6.1)
Net gains from financial assets TREERRFE (0.4) 8.9)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BERRER
plant and equipment and ERAEN Rz EE
prepaid lease payments (W a) 4.0 9.9
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hj EWEB ARz W= (0.2) -
Share of results of joint ventures DA ERAEER 20 (155.2) (15.9)
Gain on disposal of property interest HEW % W o W 7 = (40.1)
Realised gains on disposal of investment properties HEREY ¥R BRIk (33.3) (55.0)
Interest income F B U A (70.8) (79.6)
Unrealised gains on fair value of investment properties BREMELNFEZAER K (576.2) (730.2)
(355.3) (351.4)
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e BHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z=20165F3A31H I FE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the Annual Report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development, management and
provision of essential and recreational services for residential
housing and leisure projects in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island,
other property development, property investment, hotel
operations and provision of healthcare services. The Group’s
associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in property
development and property investment.

As disclosed in Notes 12, 14 and 38(b), pursuant to a resolution
of the board of directors of the Company on 13 October 2015,
the Company declared an interim dividend, satisfied by
distribution in specie of approximately 48.47% of the issued
capital of its subsidiary, Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“Hanison”) to the Company’s shareholders. The distribution was
made by way of allocating 1.21639 Hanison shares for every 5
shares held by the Company’s shareholders. The distribution in
specie by the Company was recognised at the carrying amount
of the net assets of Hanison and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Hanison group”) attributable to the owners of the
Company as the directors of the Company considered that
Hanison was ultimately under the control of the same parties
before and after the distribution. Upon the distribution, the
Group held no interest in Hanison group and Hanison group
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company. Hanison group is
engaged in construction, interior and renovation works, supply
and installation of building materials, property investment and
development, provision of property agency and management
services and sales of health products. Hanison group’s profit for
the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015 (immediately
before completion of the distribution in specie) was presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements
and the comparative figures were restated accordingly. Details
of the discontinued operations are set out in Note 12.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

1. &N

RARRNRFAEREEMR L2 EREER
BEERR ERMORBEBERXSABRA
BB PT)) B - ARBIEMMERRE
BERMB IR FRZ ARERAR

5= o

AR RREERAR  EMBRREERK
FERNREBUNRARR LR EZEETET
ERAFEBLSEEHRLT RFELRY - H
MYERR NERE BELEREHRE
BRERS AKREBRLERARRAERALZ
TEXBRMERREIMERE -

AN TE12 ~ 14 K2 38(0) AT 55 @ 1B IE AR A
BEEEN2015F10A1BHZRER AR
RIAIA R A R A E Y5k B B A7) E B
BIEEER ARG ([HEEEF]) #48.47% 2 31T
BAZHEATRFPHHRE - BXDIRAED
A A% & 15 A 5 0% % 1) #E AL 35 1.21639 A% HE B
BDER - R AR ESRA BBRD
AT R BRAERATREES AR E 2
IREMDIRIEAR QB EE A B(LEE R EW
BRral(SBAeIEBER]) 2EEFEERER
BEER - RoK%E ANEEVERZEEBES
Bz BEBEETHEARRAGZNBA
Alo- BB ENBERE KRG ETRE.
MENLTHEEZEME WERERER IR
HNERBEREERGUARBERREER -
Flps = B E2015F 4 A1HE2015%11 A3H
(RBEMDIRTKAD) BREARFRERE
BHREZINAORIELCEER  MERET
TABEEY - ARCRIEEEER ZFEBR
PH 120

iy

RAMBHRRUARNRE 2 EEE
5l

= ETZ

\



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the

following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 -2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011 - 2013 cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs, which are not yet mandatorily effective for the
current accounting period.

HKFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets; and (b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

2. BAMIREZITER
Bt %5 ¥R & 22 A

AR A EE DGR A T A
@ DD R M52 B B RS R R (5 2T
&) o

FB G ER RERMETE B EHK

FA95E (IBET &)
EEVISRELER HEVEREER
CCHEN) 20104 2012 FF A 5
ZEENE

BB BIRELER BEPE RS ER
CCHIEN) 2011 EE20134F A #A
2 EEME

RAFERER EAEFBFHRSEL (ER]
RVHAEERAFERBEFREZHMBHX
BEMBRR R/ BRI ERRAE
BREVEBEATE -

BEAGAMBRREMLEE R FE SR
A& B RME T RA S HRE E AR |6 £
M RGBT BB HRELERA -

BB HEEREIRIE R
TA]

1A 2009 9 98 4 2 & 78 B 15 ¥R &5 Y R 58 9557 3
ASHHEREENDBRFENHRE - BB
S R B O RN 2010F fEHER]
AmAs e Bz s BRFFERESIKG
RO E - W 2013 —FERT L MA
BRA—REIPEG A RIBENFRTE - 12014
FRANBEMBRELENEIRNS — @
REFTMATERRE@QEREENRER
E i ROEAETHEEK TASIATERR
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e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

e |n addition, in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised. The
expected credit loss model may result in earlier recognition of
impairment losses. In addition, for the Group’s held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets, the
application of HKFRS 9 may affect the Group’s classification and
measurement and the directors of the Company are currently
assessing whether the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will
have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group
performs a detailed review.

o BAEGERIFERISERT A R
AEIBEAZHACHASMEEERR
B AL A FEFTE - LERRAKRERE
MRERBBENZEBRABAEZEHBR
B LBEBARRIXNAZRHAKREERS
MEBEZAEKNRERZEBRE  —KRRHER
SR BAENANTE - NENSREK
BEARERMEESREEZEBKRAFR
HEZEBIAR UREHERSHEER
HELZRSRARESINAE MEREERE
AezMEMEBTRE HRAFEIKRL
REMEZEKEANREBZ FAAE AR
MEFREMRAREREREFTHREA
FEFE - WIN REBEBFEMHHREERFI
%o BERAFELTAIMEEENAME2EK
B2 EARE (WIHFEEE) cHRAF
B2 MEREBMA-—RENBDENER -

e WHINRERMEEZREMNS  BEEEG
AHERIFERE T REELAFEEBHARA
AAERAR BEAVMBBREEANFIRRER
EREEREEANE -BHREEHEELA
REERBRERSAKEREEBRERZF
BHMEEBEZE2AR  URREERR
BMAERARZES - BF 2 BEBRF
BEEEEHITEREERR -EHEES
BEA AR EERMEREIE - WI 3LA
SEZHEZINMRERAIHEESRHEEM
FORAAAMBHRELFEIRAETE
AEBZABERGE  ARAESFRILNG
FERRABEVHREENFEORHEDH
AEENEREELEREBEEANT
BoRM - BRIFEAKECETHFERN T
AR Z T BN BMAEFTIL AT



HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS”

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact
of the application of HKFRS 15. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group
performs a detailed review.

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik
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HKFRS 16 “LEASES”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly,
a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, in
terms of which specific disclosures are required to be made in
respect of lease commitments as in Note 45.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material impact on the results and financial position of the
Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new CO (Cap. 622) regarding presentation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are
presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset taken into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e |evel 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e | evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e [evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involverment with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

¢ rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary (except for
disposal of subsidiaries by way of distribution in specie by the
Company, where the disposed subsidiaries are ultimately under
control of the same parties before and after the distribution), a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (a) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (b) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through distribution of
shares in the subsidiary to the shareholders of the Company
where the subsidiary is ultimately controlled by the same parties
both before and after the distribution, the Group (a) derecognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost; and (b) measures the
distribution and the liability to distribute non-cash assets as a
dividend to its owners at the carrying amount of the net assets
to be distributed.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amount receivable for goods sold

and services provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and the sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of completion,
profit is only recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the properties have been transferred to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to this
stage are included in current liabilities.

Revenue from construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and building materials installation contracts is
recognised using the percentage of completion method by
reference to the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by quantitative surveyors’ reports, where
appropriate.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of
services and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of interest can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset excluding financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discount
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress as described below), are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in asset revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted. Quoted cash-generating unit is considered as
one unit of account in its entirety. In assessing the fair value less
costs of disposal of a quoted cash-generating unit, the Group
applies valuation techniques taking into consideration of factors
including the quoted price, control premium, discounted cash
flow method in realising the underlying assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined as if no impairment loss had
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property evidenced by the commencement
of owner occupation, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of
change in use.

INVENTORIES

Properties held for/under development for sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the
properties include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs
and other direct development expenditure. The properties are
transferred to properties held for sale upon completion of
construction.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost relating to the development
of properties, comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties held for/under
development for sale until such time when they are completed.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
anticipated costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.
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Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

CONSTRUCTION, INTERIOR AND RENOVATION AND
INSTALLATION OF BUILDING MATERIALS CONTRACTS

When the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation or
installation of building materials contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, measured by surveys of work performed.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation or
installation of building materials contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts receivable on contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as amounts payable on contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as other payables.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as progress payments receivable.
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TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases, in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in a foreign operation) which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation or
repayment of the monetary items. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
foreign operation are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including
all fees or points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments and interest expense are
recognised on an effective interest basis, other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprises financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, progress payments receivable,
retention money receivable, other assets, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from
associates and amounts due from joint ventures) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Listed and unlisted equity securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When trade
receivables and other financial assets are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including bank and other loans, trade
payables, deposits received and other liabilities) are subsequently
measured at amortised costs, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/
state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits. Regarding to the share options of the
subsidiary, when share options are exercised after the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
of a subsidiary will be transferred to share of net assets of
subsidiaries within non-controlling interests.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimation, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
investment property portfolio of the Group and concluded that
none of the investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, the directors of the Company have determined
that the “sale” presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS
12 “Income taxes” is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties to the extent in which the disposal of
those investment properties are not subject to income taxes.
The directors of the Company also determined the investment
properties held by a joint venture whose business objective is to
consume substantively all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
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Control over Hanison group prior to the completion of
distribution in specie by the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2016

Prior to the completion of distribution in specie by the Company,
Hanison was a subsidiary of the Company although the
Company had approximate 48.47% ownership interest and
voting rights in Hanison. The directors of the Company assessed
whether or not the Company had control over Hanison based on
whether the Company had the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of Hanison group unilaterally. In making their
judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group’s absolute size of shareholding in Hanison and the relative
size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other
shareholders. After assessment, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Company had sufficiently dominant voting
interests to direct the relevant activities of Hanison group and
therefore the Company had control over Hanison.

As disclosed in Note 1, Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company upon the distribution of Hanison shares to the
Company’s shareholders on 3 November 2015 as interim
dividend by way of distribution in specie.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Management had made the following estimations that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 March 2016 at their fair value of
HK$7,654.7 million (2015: HK$7,703.5 million) (Note 16). The
fair value was based on valuation of these properties conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the management of the
Company, to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.
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As at 31 March 2016, the fair value of the investment properties
under construction held by a joint venture amounted to
HK$18,741.1 million (2015: HK$16,519.2 million) (Note 20) and
the Group’s share of the value of the investment properties
under construction amounted to HK$9,370.6 million (2015:
HK$8,259.6 million). The valuation of such investment properties
under construction was conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers which was derived from residual method
based on capitalising the net earnings that would be generated
from the investment properties in their completed form, and has
also taken into account the developer’s profit and construction
costs already incurred as well as the estimated costs to be
incurred to complete the projects, which are deducted in order
to arrive at the value of the partially completed project. The
valuation involves certain assumptions and estimation of
developer’s profit and future cost to be incurred. The changes of
these assumptions and estimation would result in changes in the
fair value of the investment properties under construction held
by the joint venture.

Properties held for/under development for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$3,111.5
million (2015: HK$2,247.2 million) (Note 24) with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-down for
estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit or loss
when the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of net
realisable value are based on the evidence available at the time
the estimates are made of the amount the properties held for/
under development for sale that are expected to realise. Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates or changes in facts
and circumstances which may result in downward revision of
estimated net realisable value of these properties held for/under
development for sale and additional write-down may be
required.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised under the
percentage of completion method which requires estimation
made by the management. Anticipated losses are fully provided
on contracts when identified. The management estimates the
contract costs and foreseeable losses of construction based on
the budgets prepared for the contracts. Because of the nature
of the activities undertaken in construction businesses, the
management reviews and revises the estimates of contract
costs in the budget prepared for each contract as the contract
progresses. Where the contract revenue is less than expected
or changes in facts and circumstances which may result in
upward revision of estimated contract costs, additional losses
may need to be recognised. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying
amounts of amounts receivable on contract work and amounts
payable on contract work were HK$134.8 million (2016: nil) and
HK$243.4 million (2016: nil) (Note 26) respectively.
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Project investment undertaken by a joint venture

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a joint venture, Dazhongli
Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), whose wholly owned
subsidiaries are engaged in the development of certain
properties in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
for investment purpose. In considering the recoverability of the
Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted to HK$4,485.1 million (2015:
HK$4,491.7 million) (Note 20), the management takes into
consideration the recoverable amount of the underlying assets
of Dazhongli which is determined by reference to the costs to be
incurred to complete the development of the properties and the
future rental income to be generated therefrom. In this regard,
the management considered that no impairment is necessary in
respect of the loans to Dazhongli.

Impairment of amount due from an associate

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2016 is an amount of HK$595.1 million (2015: HK$605.8
million) due from an associate, Tung Chung Station Development
Company Limited (“TCSDCL”), which is engaged principally in
property investment activities. In determining whether an
allowance for the amount due from the associate is required, the
management takes into consideration the recoverable amount of
the underlying assets regarding the amount due from the
associate and the likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is
only made for the amount that is unlikely to be collected from
the associate. The management is satisfied that no further
impairment is considered necessary in respect of the amount
due from the associate.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into five operating divisions: property
development, property investment, services provided (clubs
operation, transportation and professional property management
services), hotel operations and healthcare (provision of medical
and dental care services, comprising diabetic and cardiovascular
centres, a cancer centre, imaging facility, dental clinics, Chinese-
medicine outlets and multi-specialty outpatient centres). Each of
the operating divisions represents an operating and reportable
segment.

In addition, Hanison group, which is engaged in construction,
interior and renovation works, supply and installation of building
materials, property investment and development, provision of
property agency and management services and sales of health
products, is considered as an operating segment and is
presented as discontinued operations of the Group. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amounts for those discontinued operations which are described
in more details in Note 12. The comparative figures of the
segment information are re-presented.
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The following is the analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by operating and reportable

segments for the year:

AT RBRELERAZHD MO AFER
SEXREFEREXRBZIBAREEA

Continuing operations BEREER
Property  Property  Services Hotel
development investment provided operations Healthcare Total
NMEZE YERE BRERE EEEXE BERE Bt
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HK$M
BE#En HEEBx BEET BEBx BEBx BEAER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 &, £2016F
SAMALEE
TURNOVER EXE
Segment revenue - sales to external - 2 ST A - K&
customers derived by the Group A WNGIEE
and an associate BEFPZHESR 1,247.4 323.2 494.0 304.8 2787  2,648.1
Excluding tumover of an associate  ZARREEE A E] 2
¥EE 02) - - - - 02
Consolidated turnover, as reported 434 & 258 + 1
2R 1,247.2 323.2 494.0 304.8 278.7 2,647.9
RESULTS &
Segment results - total realised PREE-KEE
results of the Group, associates HENRREE
and joint ventures (note a) NEZBER
%mmE(fsta) 252.1 68.8 73.2 1.4 (14.5) 391.0
Excluding realised results of HREAEE DG
associates and joint ventures not BENARAE
shared by the Group NRZBEER
ES | 13.3 48.0 - - - 61.3
Results attributable to the Group AEERLEE 265.4 116.8 73.2 114 (14.5) 452.3
Unallocated other income ROEEMBA 114
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEARER (126.5)
Finance costs and corporate level HHEERRAR
exchange difference EZERZES (108.3)
Net unrealised gains on fair value REMEATE
change of investment properties g o RER
(note b) W 5 58
(HisED) 5106
Net unrealised gains on fair value AEEELEE
change of investment properties DEIRRENE
attributable to the Group’s interest 1% 7 A (&
in a joint venture, net of deferred g RER
tax W FE - Mk
EERE 213.9
Profit for the year AEE 5 9534
Non-controlling shareholders’ share  JE1Z MR R 5 915
of profit for the year AEERF (255.4)
Profit for the year attributable tothe "2 &) B AE(S
owners of the Company AEE % T 698.0
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Property Property  Services Hotel
development  investment  provided operations  Healthcare Total
MERE WERE BRERY BEER EBERE @
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEATL FHEAETL BEAT \BHEAETL BEAT BEAR
For the year ended 31 March 2015 & £ 2015%
SASIALEE
TURNOVER EXE
Segment revenue - sales to external % ﬁli WA-KEHE
customers derived by the Group BE DR
and associates *BE)E'Z%%@ 1,980.4 343.9 478.3 327.3 281.0 3,410.9
Excluding turnover of associates HBBLENF 2
2ES 0.2 (2.5) - - - 2.7
Consolidated turnover, as reported 43 & & %48 - 1
25 1,980.2 341.4 478.3 327.3 281.0 3,408.2
RESULTS £ |
Segment results - total realised NBEE-TEHE I '
results of the Group, associates BeERARE
and joint ventures (note a) NRZE# fﬁ%
EiEE (Mita) 615.5 1476 56.2 25.0 (18.0) 825.3
Excluding realised results of HBBREAEEDE
associates and joint ventures not Hﬁ% 2REIREE
shared by the Group RAlZBEER
ES: | 04 16.1 - - - 16.5
Results attributable to the Group AEBELEE 615.9 163.7 55.2 25.0 (18.0) 841.8
Unallocated other income RABEMBA 134
Unallocated corporate expenses AORERAER (107.2)
Finance costs and corporate level ~ BT EBR R A 7
exchange difference B ZE N E5 (111.5)
Net unrealised gains on fair value &’ ﬁ MER 3|:1
change of investment properties 2 Z %
(note b) gy
(r/‘ﬁ?b) 4138
Net unrealised gains on fair value AEEEGEAE
change of investment properties NEREKE WJ E
attributable to the Group’s interest #2352 A F ﬁ
in a joint venture, net of deferred By RE
tax Wa 358 ?D[‘?
RERE 453
Profit for the year KEERF 1,005.6
Non-controlling shareholders’ share  FFHE R IRE 215
of profit for the year KEZ RN (391.0)
Profit for the year attributable tothe A2 B B A JELS
owners of the Company NEFHEF 704.6
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Notes:

(@ The segment results of the Group represent the total results of the Group,
associates and joint ventures, excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change
of investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair value.

(b) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for the
year ended 31 March 2016 of HK$510.6 million (2015: HK$413.8 million)
represented the unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties of
HK$518.9 million (2015: HK$420.8 million) net of deferred tax charge arising from
change in fair value of HK$8.3 million (2015: HK$7.0 million).

Other than including the Group’s share of revenue of associates
as segment revenue, the accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit
earned by (loss from) each segment without allocation of
unallocated other income, unallocated corporate expenses,
finance costs and corporate level exchange difference, net
unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties
and net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties attributable to the Group’s interest in a joint venture,
net of deferred tax. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue from continuing operations reported
above is from external customers.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating and
reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker for review.
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REEBRRERTNERRHR T EEZEER
REFERT -
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OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hfth 5 38 & &
Continuing operations BESEER
Property  Property  Services Hotel Unallocated
development investment provided operations Healthcare =~ amounts Total
NERE NERE BERYE EEEE BERE A7/ELE @t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEn HE#®T BEER HEET HBEER BHEBET AHEAER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F
SANALEE
Amounts included in the measure of FESHERM
segment profit or loss: BEZEE:
Revenue from inter-segment sales * DEE Z HE WA - (0.8) (10.5) (0.1) - - (11.4)
Depreciation e 6.8 13.7 54.2 62.1 7.0 5.7 149.5
Release of prepaid lease payments BREENZED - - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Impairment loss recognised on other HieiRH 2z
receivables BRARESRE - - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Net allowance for doubtful debts REBEBEFH - - 0.1 - 0.2 - 0.3
Net gains from financial assets SRHEENRTE - - - - - (0.4) (0.4)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand &Y% HRE K
equipment RE2EE - 0.3 0.2 34 0.1 - 4.0
Realised gain on disposal of investment ~ HERENEZ B
properties B (1.4) - - = = = (1.4)
Interest income FlEHA (16.4) (9.1) - 3.1) - 41.3) (69.9)
Finance costs HBER 0.8 24.6 - - - 1429 168.3
Income tax charge BRI 745 27.6 10.1 6.8 29 4.1 126.0
Share of results of associates a1 E A UNCIE 0.2 22 - - - - 24
Share of results of joint ventures EEERAEE 12,5 424 - - - (213.9) (159.0)
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Property Property Services Hotel Unallocated
development  investment provided  operations  Healthcare amounts Total
MERE MERE RERB BEE®R BRERRE KOReE @it
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEET BEAT BEET BEAT BEAT HEAR
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2015%F
3ASIALEE
Amounts included in the measure of HENBERM
segment profit or loss: BEzEE:
Revenue from inter-segment sales * DEFEZHERA - (2.1 (10.1) (0.6) - - (12.8)
Depreciation wE 12.9 13.8 51.9 70.6 85 38 1615
Release of prepaid lease payments BNEEMZEL - - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Impairment loss recognised on property, 1% - iR R#E
plant and equipment ZBHARE
E# 26.6 - - - 0.3 - 26.9
Impairment loss recognised on BEIBHREZD
held-to-maturity investments BRAESE - - - - - 73 73
Impairment loss reversed on other Hit R T2
receivables BERESE - - - - - (4.0 (4.0
Net allowance for doubtful debts AEREFE - - - - 0.9 - 0.9
Net gains from financial assets SREENRTE - - - - - (8.8) 8.8
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - HRE &
and equipment REZEE
(W) 02 - 0.2 ©.1) - 9.8 (9.5)
Gain on disposal of property interest HEMEEZ 2
ez (40.1) - - - - - (40.1)
Realised (gains) losses on disposal of HEREYEZE
investment properties BRMR)ER 8.7) 0.2 - - - - (8.5)
Interest income F B WA (13.6) 9.0) - (13.0) - (42.4) (78.0)
Finance costs HHBER 12.2 27.3 - - 03 154.7 194.5
Income tax charge BRI 132.1 20.2 76 8.2 05 6.1 1747
Share of results of associates AEHE AR EE 0.2 (4.2 - - - - (4.0)
Share of results of joint ventures SIEREDREE 0.1 31.7 - - - (45.3) (13.5)
Write back of inventories BFEEE - - - - 0.8) - (0.8)

*  Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in which the pricing was
determined with reference to prevailing market price or actual cost incurred, as

appropriate.

© SHMHENRERERERD AR
BB RPBHEDBRATHERERE LKA

FEBBERME) EE



TURNOVER FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from
continuing operations from its major products and services:
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TEEMMRT CEXRE
UTAREEREEEEH 2 TBERRR
B2 EEBHM -

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEAT BEBETT

Sales of properties HEW 1,243.7 1,975.2
Rental income HaEl A 301.6 320.9
Hotel revenue B JE YA 304.8 327.3
Provision of healthcare services R EERERSE 278.7 281.0
Other services rendered EHEMWRG 519.1 503.8
2,647.9 3,408.2

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

For each of the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the
Group’s continuing operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and South East Asia and Japan.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from continuing
operations based on the location of properties and goods
delivered or services rendered, and location of properties in the
case of rental income, and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

external customers

i [ &+

HZE2016F L2015F3A31THIEERFE K
EEFESEEBUREE HPEUEE
B =R

ARBERELEEB 2 KBINEER UAD

X RXNERIREHRRFZAEMSEE

RHESWAME  AWEMEBSEERE) 2

WARBEHAEIREEMBUEE D ZFERD
BEEMZFRET

Revenue from
Non-current assets

REHIBEEZWA IRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’M HK$'M
BEBT BE5ET HEBRT BEAT
Hong Kong B8 1,915.1 2,847.2 9,295.3 8,401.6
PRC Fh 340.1 9.5 6,368.2 6,509.0
South East Asia and Japan Bmoe AKX 392.7 551.5 1,376.5 1,323.5
2,647.9 3,408.2 17,040.0 16,234.1

Note: Non-current assets excluded those related to discontinued operations,
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than 10%
of the total turnover of the Group for both years.

M ERPEETEFREC KL LEXBHBOIER
PEE SMIAREERBREE -

ERIZEFPZEHR

REEMEFE  KEEBREFP ZBATE
BAREARERE210% -
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6. OTHER INCOME

6. Ha A

2016 2015
HK$’M HK$'M
BEBTT BEATT
Continuing operations BEREER
Other income includes the following: HEmWABRE T &E:
Bank and other interest income RIT R H A F B U A 69.9 78.0
Other income H U A 72.8 79.6
142.7 157.6
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hh B REE
2016 2015
HK$’M HK$'M
BE&AT BEAT
Continuing operations BEREER
Other (losses) gains include the following: Hi(BE)KSIBFETIKIE
Net foreign exchange loss SN EE [ )% E5 18 (26.3) (15.4)
Gain on deregistration of foreign subsidiaries 1 $38 9N Wi B & 7 5 M 2 W 2 - 0.1
Gain on disposal of property interest (note) & ¥ 2 S v Wz (i 5F) = 40.1
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plantand HEWE  HERBHBLREMNEE
equipment and prepaid lease payments Nz (EE) K= (4.0) 9.5
Gain on disposal of an associate and a joint HEBZE AT REZE AT 2 Wi
venture 23 -
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) on L }% REE- 78 HiEk
property, plant and equipment, inventories,  BRF M3 E F|HIIRE 2 # O
other receivables and held-to-maturity (BEHER /)WE fE518
investments 1.0 (29.4)
Others HA 1.9 7.9
(25.1) 12.8

Note: In April 2014, the Group disposed of 49% of its property interest in the
ownership of a property located in Tokyo, Japan. The Group has retained 51% of
property interest in that property and formed a joint operation with a Japanese

project partner to develop that property project.

49% M B HEHE A o

BYEE : 20144 A AREHEHEURAARR ZME
AEERBRZME 1% Y X
VEARAREHUBAKE T A BRZWERE -
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEEHR
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Interest on THEEBEZFE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 125.9 143.8
Advances from non-controlling shareholders — JEFERX AR B 2 2 3 6.7 17.5
132.6 161.3
Less: Amounts included in the cost W ETARELE CER/BRAP
of properties held for/under WMEKE 2 258
development for sale (6.7) (5.9)
125.9 156.0
Bank and other loans arrangement fees MITRHEMERZEHER 424 38.5
168.3 194.5
Borrowing costs capitalised arose on specific borrowings to EXLBERAARREAFEHELE 2
finance the properties held for/under development for sale for B/BZFRPMERTINBETEEMES -
both years.
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBLAER
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after & & 5% FI 2 18 (51 A) T3
charging (crediting): KB .
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET BN & 8.7 8.4
Cost of inventories and developed properties T E RO ZREMEK AR EH X
recognised as an expense 666.3 943.9
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and +# R EF 7 KL HEHR S
buildings 35.7 36.0
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ PEAEIXRA(BIEEEMNE)
remuneration) 602.8 612.7
Release of prepaid lease payments BNEENREL 0.3 0.3
Depreciation e 149.5 161.5
Net rental income under operating leases on: &K&FHE N2 H S WA FEE -
Investment properties wEYE (294.6) (814.2)
Other properties Btz (7.0) 6.7)
Less: Outgoings D] 44.0 40.8
(257.6) (280.1)
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10. TAXATION 10. B 18
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Continuing operations BEKSEER
The taxation charge comprises: HESY BT
Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 16.5% of 7N 4F & {4 51 8 55 B % R % T £ 16.5%
the estimated assessable profit for the year 51 & 2 & & FI15 92.9 159.0
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing BREBRZERBERAZHRAE 2
in respective jurisdictions N IR 9.7 14.7
102.6 173.7
Deferred taxation for current year (note) KR SR FE R IR (B 7)) 23.4 1.0
126.0 174.7
Note: An analysis of deferred taxation for the year is as follows: e AFEEEHRBZHWMAT :
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBTT BEET
Deferred tax charge arising during the year in respect REEREMELNTEEHELERERKEZ
of unrealised gain on fair value change of investment ELERER
properties 8.3 7.0
Deferred tax credit on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZREHEBIRE (3.8) (27.4)
Others Hh 18.9 21.4
23.4 1.0
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated EB TS TR MR EEE 45 E 2 S iR
assessable profit for both years. FRE16.5%:1E -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BIEREMCEMEREILEETHEG - &
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax EARNZMEEE 2K E25% o
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates NEMBEEREES 2HRBIREE ) AE R

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. ZBEITHEGE -



The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

AREFRAST HEE A BER AR AR

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as ZHEBERWMT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBET aBEET
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Profit before taxation B i Bz 1,079.4 1,270.3
Less: Share of results of associates BB E AR EE 24 (4.0)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEE DR ER (159.0) (13.9)
Profit before taxation attributable to the Group 7~ & & F& 1k % 5 A & F 922.8 1,252.8
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate X A AT 15 T T L 16.5% 5T & 2 Fi 18
of 16.5% X 152.3 206.7
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBMBA 2B H L
purpose (89.3) (76.0)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7] 1 %4 7 Sz 2 T 7% 52 2
purpose 34.9 30.0
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEE ZBRETE 24.2 36.3
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FRBTRER BIEERE
recognised (2.5) 9.5)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMB EZEREEZNB
operating in other jurisdictions RABEIR 2w E (0.4) (4.6)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERANMBREEEZE R E
differences not recognised 1.5 14
Utilisation of deductible temporary FRBTRER ZATINBERERE
differences previously not recognised - (10.4)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings RINBRARIRD IR EF] 2
of foreign subsidiaries A 6.9 -
Others Hth (1.6) 0.8
Taxation attributable to the Group for the year 7~ £= & 5 (A fE {§ 5 18 126.0 174.7
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO0 11. XA F#EE AEEXRE
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ==

2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BHEAT

For continuing and discontinued operations FFELE RO R IL KB XK
m=

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ ZN A B #E B A JE(G AN [E 5% )
the Company comprises: B

(@) Net unrealised gains on change in fair value  (a) F ?x BMERNFEEDZ

of investment properties during the year REIF W= 558
- The Group - REH 576.2 730.2
Deferred tax charge EEFR ST N (8.3) (7.0)
Attributable to non-controlling interests FEFEIR RE S FEAS (67.8) (272.6)
500.1 450.6
— Joint venture, net of deferred tax -5E AR HIRIELEHIE
(Note 20(b)) (Mt 520 (b)) 213.9 45.3
714.0 495.9
(b) Accumulated net realised gains (losses)on (b)) FNHEREWE Y Bt 0 #
disposal of investment properties during Rz (B518) 588 .
the year:
— The Group -RE&E
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYE 2 WHE
(Note 16) (Mt&x16) 33.3 55.0
Taxation for the year REERIE (0.2) (1.4)
Accumulated gains on change in fair BEFECHERILER
value of disposed investment BEMERNTFEESH R
properties recognised in prior years, Wz - HBRETEHIE
net of deferred tax 213.6 2411
Attributable to non-controlling interests Eispeny Hx BERENL (158.6) (64.5)
— Associate . WAL
Gain on disposal of investment properties He ?x BEE 2z W - 9.4
Accumulated losses on change in fair BEFECERZHER
value of disposed investment BEMENFEEH R
properties recognised in prior years, BB - HIRELETIE
net of deferred tax = 6.9
88.1 232.7
(c) Operating profits from continuing operations  (c) 15 45 45 4 % 7 48 4 % 7 10.6 310.6
(d) Operating profits from discontinued (d) BRI E EBEE & F
operations 48.5 64.2
Sub-total /NEE 861.2 1,103.4
Less: Accumulated (gains) losses on change B OBEFECERZIHE
in fair value of disposed investment REYRRNFEES R
properties recognised in prior years, (Wz=) 518 - HIBRIE
net of deferred tax T1E
— The Group N (213.6) (241.7)
— Attributable to non-controlling interests — JEPE IR ME S FE AL 136.3 40.8
— Associate /N = 6.9

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of KA BB A G AN E E 5 T
the Company 783.9 910.0




12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of the
Company on 13 October 2015, the Company declared an
interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in specie of
approximately 48.47% of the issued capital of its subsidiary,
Hanison to the Company’s shareholders. The distribution was
made by way of allocating 1.21639 Hanison shares for every 5
shares held by the Company’s shareholders. Upon the
distribution, the Group held no interest in Hanison group and
Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.
Details of the distribution in specie have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 October 2015.

The consolidated profit for the year from the discontinued
operations is set out below. The comparative figures in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss have been re-presented

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

12 CRIEREET

BRIERAAREEEN2015F10 8138 2R ZE
R ARRBARFREAED D IR EH B
NA|EBEH4847T% EBHITRAZERE RS
BB - RADRUARBIREFIH AR
% 15 JE Bid 32 1.21639 I EL 5 AR 15 1E H - IR 9K
BoAEBVEBSEEBEE CES BB
EETHAARBIZWBAR -BEEEYS
k2 FBENRARR A AE2015F10A138
ZRERHE-

= Efﬂﬂ:ﬁ‘“%%i‘%ﬂ’]ﬁi&qé@ﬂ%@ﬂ
WT-GARERRTHOLRBFELENZ
5 MBREBRERERIEEERR -

to show Hanison group as discontinued operations.

For the
period from For the
1 April to year ended
3 November 31 March
2015 2015
2015 B E2015%F
4A1HZE 3A318 1k
11 3B M FE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Turnover EEE 1,590.6 2,013.7
Cost of sales 5 & B R (1,347.2) (1,698.0)
Gross profit £ F 243.4 315.7
Other income =N 2.0 3.9
Administrative expenses THHEX (114.3) (170.8)
Other gains and losses HEmUhzs REE 0.4 71
Change in fair value of investment properties ¥ & ¥ % A ﬁ bk
Realised gains on disposals HERZEZBUE 31.9 46.5
Unrealised gains REEUWZ 57.3 309.4
Finance costs ﬁ7f wER 3.7) (7.9)
Share of result of an associate DG E AR EE 0.1 5.2
Share of results of joint ventures SMEES L N A EE (3.8) 2.4
Profit before taxation & A1 4 213.3 511.5
Taxation F7 18 (24.0) (24.0)
Profit for the period/year NEAR/ 2 A A 189.3 487.5
Attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIE BN 85.9 205.4
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = 103.4 282.1
189.3 487.5
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Profit for the period/year from discontinued operations has been ERIEEEEB CANRAR/FEREMNS NER
arrived at after charging (crediting): (Gt A) T 3&IA -
For the
period from For the
1 April to year ended
3 November 31 March
2015 2015
20155 #E E2015%F
4818 E 3A31H8 1k
11A3HH /™ FE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEETT BEAT
Auditor’s remuneration % A0 B & 1.5 2.4
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 17 & K AN g2 & 5 X 126.2 295.5
Contract costs recognised as expense BHRAEREHEEKRAZAX
in cost of sales 1,189.0 1,340.5
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ EELEEIRAN(BIEESHE)
remuneration) (note) (B 5%) 170.4 283.1
Depreciation e 3.4 5.5
Net rental income under operating KERET 2R EYWENRS
leases on investment properties W ASF 58 (13.1) (26.2)
Less: Outgoings S EH 1.7 4.3
(11.4) (21.9)

Expenses included in cost of contract work: st AB K TIEK AR 7 B X ¢

Depreciation e 2.6 3.5
Release of prepaid lease payments FEAHEE N FRE 0.1 0.2
Rentals under operating leases wEHECHE
in respect of
Plant and machinery 5% 5 & 28 5.0 12.7
Others H Aty 0.8 1.9
Note: The staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2015 included the share option MizE : B Z2015F3AIHIEFEZE T ABIERMDHE
expenses amounting to HK$5.7 million (2016: nil). EFRZ57AE BB (20166 | &) ©
During the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015, R2015%F 4 A1 B £20159F 11 A3H #f -
Hanison group contributed to the Group’s net operating cash BEERAEEFREERERAFRE
inflows of HK$593.3 million (for the year ended 31 March 2015: 593.3ABHE L (B E2015F3A31H IEFE ¢
outflows of HK$79.1 million), paid HK$963.1 million (for the year MHE791EEAT) IR EEB K 19963.1
ended 31 March 2015: received HK$88.1 million) in respect of BEBEL(HE2015F3A31H EFE W
investing activities and received HK$638.3 million (for the year 881 B & B L) Rt A & )& EHINEI638.3E &
ended 31 March 2015: paid HK$31.2 million) in respect of BT (B E2015F3A31HEFE : Zf31.2

financing activities. BEEIL) -



13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

FOR CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(@ Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2015:
thirteen) directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Executive Directors (note a)

EBFEEEREBERADE 2015/2016 F3R

B EEMERAEBRESE
BEECHE

/TJET I%T%\%L&EIH\\
i

@ EZEEMES

A
EfNSEN+—RQ015F : +=ZR)EEE
AZBESWT :

RERT

BZ2016F3A31ALLEE

Non-executive Directors (note b)  Independent Non-executive Directors (note c)

HTES (Hita) FHTES (Hitb) BYFLHTES (Kilc)
Cha Cha Chung Tang  Ronald Cha Wong Cha Cheng  Cheung Tang Ho
MouSing MouZing  Sam Tin Moon  Joseph MouDaid MayLung Kar Shun Wing Lam Kwai Pak Ching
Payson Victor  Abraham Wah Arculli  Johnson Madeline Henry Linus Chang  Loretta Total
ERB EHR  EO0E BRE HEE  ERE IEXE O Bx4 KRR BRY  @AMA @zt
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEER FEEBT BEET BEEET ERER BE%R BEEBT HEET BEER BEER BEERT BEER
Fees e - - - - 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 04 0.4 0.4 1.8
Other emoluments Hib B¢
Salaries and other benefits FeRAMER 52 74 26 48 - - - - - - - 20.0
Performance related incentive payment (note d) 45 3£ (i 3k d) 3.0 8.2 0.9 1.7 - - - - - - - 138
Retirement benefits schemes contrioution REEFHEHR = - = 0.2 - = = - = = - 02
Total emoluments i3k 8.2 15.6 3.5 6.7 0.1 0.1 0.1 03 04 0.4 04 358
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE20156F3A31IHIEFE
Executive Directors (note &) Non-executive Directors (note b) Independent Non-executive Directors (note ¢)
RITES (Wita) FRTES (5tb) BUENTES (Hitc)
Cha Cha  Chung Tang  Ronald Cha WongCha ~ Cheng  Cheung  Cheung Tang Ho
MouSing MouZing ~ SamTin Moon  Joseph MouDaid Maylung KarShun  KinTung Wing Lam Kwai Pak Ching Qin
Payson Victor  Abraham Wah Arcull - Johnson  Madeline Henry Marvin™  Linus Chang*  Loretta Xiao™ Total
g BEW B0 HWRE EER  SHE IEXE B FER RAR  ¥EY  @iA RE @5
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM HKS'M
BEEL BEET BRET BEEL BEET BREL BEAN BEER ARSI AEEN BEER BEET BEEL BEER
Fees (note €) ﬁ ’MT ite) 0.1 - - - 01 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.3 02 0.3 0.1 1.7
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits 5.0 71 26 46 - - - - - - - - - 19.3
Performance related incentive payment (note o)~ M‘J 3.0 82 1.0 16 - - = - - - - - 138
Retirement benefits schemes contribution ERERH B - 02 - 02 - - - - - - - - 04
Equity-settled share-based payments IRHEEEURR
AERZAR 11 - - - - 05 - - - - - - - 16
Total emoluments HeRs 9.2 15.5 36 6.4 01 0.7 0.1 02 0.1 0.3 02 0.3 0.1 36.8

Notes:

(@) For Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

(b) The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors of the Company.

(c) The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as Directors of the Company.

(d) The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference to
the operating results and comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual
performance of the directors during the year.

(e) Mr Cha Mou Sing Payson and Mr Cha Mou Daid Johnson also received
director’s fees of Hanison for the year ended 31 March 2015.

*

Appointed as director with effect from 24 September 2014.

ok

Resigned as director with effect from 19 August 2014.

dekk

Resigned as director with effect from 1 July 2014.

@ ERATHATEEMSDEIEREARTRAE
EERFEHARAORY -

b EXRFATRHFEATEEMENIBEREETARFE
B AR5 o

© EXRPTHBUINTEEHEDEEREELAR
AERMRY -

(O BHEBED2EFAREB KL
EREFRENRRET -

B R TISE

(e) EZ2015%F3A31 A ILFE SMBEL REME
ETESHEBZESNS -

* H2014F9RU4AREZAESE 2B -
* H2014F8R10ABEHETEEZHS -
e EH2014FE7A1AEBTEE B -
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During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to PRERN AEBTEREETIHIEARE
the directors as an inducement to join. No directors waived any BEMAREB NG - PRER - BHESE
emoluments during both years. EMEEMABE -
(b) Employees’ remuneration b EEM=E
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the five highest paid HE2016F3ASIBLEFE  AEBRAK
individuals of the Group included four (2015: three) Executive mEFMATEFRNE (20155 : =8) B
Directors, whose emoluments are disclosed above. The TES BEZHMERLEXEE 88T —%
emoluments of the remaining one (2015: two) employee(s) are (2015F - MB)EEZMESW T :
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BERETT BEBTT
Salaries and other benefits FekEMEF 4.3 5.0
Performance related incentive payment (note) 4& xk 2 (B 51) = 8.9
Retirement benefits schemes contribution RIKAE FIET 81 3 0.1 0.8
Equity-settled share-based payments DEZEEARODABER 2R - 1.6
4.4 16.3
The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within the FiEEZMESBR THI4ER -

following bands:

2016 2015
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T — 4,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7% 7T — 6,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$10,500,001 — HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 /& 7T — 11,000,000 7% 7T = 1
1 2

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference to M BREDZ2EFANAEBZEEEGE TR

the operating results and comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual SEEREEERNRREE -
performance of the employee during the year.
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBET
Final dividend paid for the financial year HEC0I5EIAIBIEMBERED
ended 31 March 2015 of HK7 cents (2015: Rt 2 R HAR% B - &A% 778 1l (2015
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 4 : #{ 2201463 A31 B It BB &
of HK12 cents) per share FE-127%800) 94.5 162.0
No cash interim dividend paid for the financial #; £20164€3 A31 B It EE I
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: interim FEIRNIRS PR S (20154 ©
dividend paid for the financial year ended ZE2015F3A31B I BERED IR
31 March 2015 of HK6 cents per share) e AR B - AR6 (L) - 81.0
Sub-total INEF 94.5 243.0
Interim dividend by way of distribution in NEYD KB AR ZEXDIKZ
specie of subsidiaries (note) R ER AR B (B 7)) 914.1 -
1,008.6 243.0
No final dividend was proposed for the I 48 R & = 20163 A 31 B 1L
financial year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: K4 E 2 KEIIE B (20154 : B E
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 201543 A31 B It BN EE-F I
of HK7 cents per share) 7LD = 94.5
Note:  On 13 October 2015, the Company declared an interim dividend, satisfied MEE 0 R2015F10A13H * AR AIAIARRA R B EAEY
by distribution in specie of approximately 48.47% of the issued capital of its DIREME AR EBEL4847% EBRITRAZFE AT IR
subsidiary, Hanison to the Company’s shareholders. The distribution was made by BB - BIADIRUARRBIRESH B D EA
way of allocating 1.21639 Hanison shares for every 5 shares held by the 1.21639 % BB IR D 1EL - BN AR BEERA  BER
Company’s shareholders. The distribution in specie by the Company was PDIRATEEIBRERAT&KZES  MARRRREYH
recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets of Hanison group attributable RERAARBEAEANEEEBEE AEFEROERR

to the owners of the Company as the directors of the Company considered that
Hanison was ultimately under the control of the same parties before and after the
distribution.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 3R AEF

FOR CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS S —iﬁ%’? s

mE

MBE#IE

QM AL
7B HE K

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to the KANBHEAEAEGEREREFHEE TS
owners of the Company is based on the following data: sriEstE
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEABTT AEET
Earnings ZX
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic 5+ E SR ERRBF 2 BT
earnings per share (Profit for the year (KRR AE ANEMLANFEREF)
attributable to the owners of the Company) 783.9 910.0
2016 2015

Number of shares R
Number of ordinary shares in issue during the st ESIREREF 7 NEE
year for the purpose of calculating basic BER{TEERKREAE

earnings per share

1,350,274,367

1,350,274,367
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FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of basic earnings per share for continuing
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the earnings figures calculated as follows:

RRERKERBMS

ARARBRBARERFELEEBERER
MBERETINENBRFTE

ol

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAETT
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic stESREARZF] Z & F|
earnings per share (Profit for the year (RRARER AELEEFEERF)
attributable to the owners of the Company) 783.9 910.0
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued W ERIEREER 2 AFE R
operations (85.9) (205.4)
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic 3+ EHFERKLEBTREKEN 2
earnings per share for continuing operations & #| (7K 2 R A A JE 15 AN F E #
(Profit for the year from continuing BRREZEBHA)
operations attributable to the owners of the
Company) 698.0 704.6

No diluted earnings per share for continuing operations has
been presented for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015
because there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding
from continuing operations during the years.

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for basic earnings per share for continuing and discontinued
operations.

FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Basic earnings per share for discontinued operations for the year
is HKB.4 cents (2015: HK15.2 cents), based on the profit for the
year from discontinued operations of HK$85.9 million (2015:
HK$205.4 million) and the denominators used are the same as
those detailed above for basic earnings per share for continuing
and discontinued operations.

HARE E2016F R20156E3A31 B IFEE W
EIMRAFECLEBABEBE N 2ER
B MFATERZINFELCLEEBTREE
B e

FAERZ DB TE EXGIHEKLERDRIE
REXBZBREXRBNPAFALEER -

MERIEKEXEBME

RAFEE BRIEKEER ZBREARRTR
6.4 (20154 : 15.2781(l) - ThiRED
RIS EBER 2 KEREEFSSIBEB T
(2015 205 4B BB L) WiIKE F Xt
BERERERITKELERTRERNATATFE
MRz F Mt E -



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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16. RE W

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
FAIR VALUE DNFE
At beginning of the year F 4 7,703.5 7,437.8
Currency realignment B 36.0 (82.1)
Additions NBE 436.9 179.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) Uy BE B B A =) (MF £ 37) 1,257.1 -
Change in fair value recognised REZERZATEES
in profit or loss
— Realised gains on disposals -HERZDEB KR 33.3 55.0
— Unrealised gains - ABHWE 576.2 730.2
Disposals & (57.9) (646.0)
Transferred from property, plant and BERAYE BWENMKE
equipment 35.7 29.0
Transferred to assets classified HEBRESEARERHEZEAE
as held for sale (10.1) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEN B AR (M 3E38) (2,356.0) -
At end of the year FR 7,654.7 7,703.5
The Group disposed of certain investment properties during the AEBRFALEE TREMEZFBN
year and the details of which are as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Sales proceeds received B UK $H & T8 kI8 57.9 646.0
Original cost of acquisitions Wb 7 R AN E (23.2) (322.5)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value BEFECHEIAZATEED
recognised in prior years 2t (31.4) (268.5)
Realised gains on disposal recognised FALERERZE R YR
during the year 3.3 55.0
Realised gains on investment properties BREENBARI ZREWE
through disposal of subsidiaries o IE IS 30.0 -
Total realised gains on disposal of HEREMER 2B 2RISR
investment properties (Note 11) #@EE (MsE11) 33.3 55.0

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015 and the date of transfer from property,
plant and equipment and to assets classified as held for sale
have been derived by the following independent firms of qualified
professional valuers with appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

REBMN2016E3 A31 B & 201543831 H
WEREEEYE BELARBEERESDERE
VEHECZEECHBZIREMERNTE  THiE
UTEABEEERMOHEREEME 28
UMEGHELER 2B A BIRBEEGHERMT
EITIHERE -
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Location of BREWE

Name of valuer investment properties LR EBEEZHE
DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited ~ Hong Kong and the PRC HERTERARAR MR

(formerly known as DTZ Debenham MEBITERAQA

Tie Leung Limited) and Jones Lang

LaSalle Limited
Cushman & Wakefield KK (formerly Japan Cushman & Wakefield KK SN

known as DTZ Debenham Tie (B 78 DTZ Debenham Tie

Leung KK) Leung KK)
N&A Appraisal Company Limited Thailand N&A Appraisal Company Limited Zg
VALUATION TECHNIQUES HERI

The fair value of completed investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined by using income capitalisation
approach and with reference to market transaction prices of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The income
capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising the rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due provision
for any reversionary income potential.

The fair value of investment property under construction located
in Hong Kong is determined by the residual method by reference
to comparable sales transactions of similar completed properties
as available in the relevant market and also takes into account
the developer’s profit and construction costs already incurred as
well as the estimated costs to be incurred to complete.

The fair value of investment properties located in the PRC and
Thailand is determined by using direct comparison approach
assuming sale of the property interest in its existing state by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in Japan is
determined by using income capitalisation approach and with
reference to the depreciated replacement cost approach. The
income capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising the
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due
provision for any reversionary income potential.

SUMMARY OF FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND LEVEL 3
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties. As at 31 March 2016, all investment
properties of the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement. As at 31 March 2015, except for amounts
of HK$811.0 million of certain residential and industrial
investment properties in Hong Kong, HK$125.0 million in the
PRC and HK$3.9 million in Thailand which were valued under
Level 2 fair value measurements and were principally derived
based on the direct comparison approach, the remaining
investment properties of the Group amounting to HK$6,763.6
million were valued by reference to a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

NREBENERIREMENRFETER
WABREL 2 E BB B EUDENT
BRREMERE - WABRORBEBER
WRBHEPUWENEE WA LR EEFE
A O ARNEEBEMTE -

MUREBNERREMENRAFETIRAK
BZE2EREDTSAISNEUECSRTYER
HWRZHEXZHMEE et REREE
MEBEEZEXRAARGBELE 2RT
DN

NRFERFENREDENRFETER
BERLBEA2EREMSASL A L& Z
EXFGBEANMERERELEMEERN
BT -

URBAANKREDENRFEDERABAE
FOELSEFEEERAEMETE - WA
BAREZEBEANRAALPURNES
Yo N 2 [R) S A o] 7 A AT 33 B U A B 8 B
mat& o

AFEBRRE-BRATFE
TEME
AREBRAKLEHETHERDAESHIES
AIEERRZMERSHEBRAFEEAG
2 U HERARIIEREDE - R20164F
3ABTH AEENFBERENENHLESR
ZEBHRRFETEEE - R2015F3/8318 -
BRI EBSI10BEBIIL . FE125.08 8
BILEERIOEEBTZETEERTE
WEYE MEeBIEEREELEEAMSE
tRBEF-_BHAFEF;E T AEEN
KNEFSEE6,7636 B BB THNBRTIREME
NSEEZBRAFEFEMTUGEE-
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The movements during the year in the balance of investment FRNE-"EBRAFEFE T Z2REMELSS
properties under Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: s T -
Under
Completed construction Total
B%I TEEH et
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M
AMBT BT BEER
At 1 April 2014 MR2014F481H 6,093.7 509.0 6,602.7
Currency realignment B (82.3) - (82.3)
Additions NE 155.7 23.9 179.6
Change in fair value recognised RERBERZAFEEZE
in profit or loss
— Realised gains on disposals -HER 7B ERIR 46.5 - 46.5
— Unrealised gains —RER MR 659.4 - 659.4
Disposals & (138.4) - (138.4)

Transferred from property,

BERAVE BERRE

plant and equipment 29.0 - 29.0
Transferred to Level 2 due to ERTKEMGETE

change in valuation methodology PYMEZE_ER

upon completion of development - (5632.9) (632.9)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%F3A31H 6,763.6 - 6,763.6
Currency realignment B 417 - 417
Additions NE 419.0 - 419.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries W b B B8 1 A 1,257.1 - 1,257.1
Change in fair value recognised REZHERZ AFEE

in profit or loss

- Realised gains on disposals -HER BB IS 1.9 - 1.9

- Unrealised gains - RERIWE 622.4 - 622.4
Disposals g (11.8) - (11.8)
Transferred from property, EBRAYE BENKE

plant and equipment 26.0 - 26.0
Transferred to assets classified BREEHSBABELEZ

as held for sale BE (10.1) - (10.1)
Transferred from Level 2 ERE_ER 900.9 - 900.9
Disposal of subsidiaries T ENB QR (2,356.0) - (2,356.0)
At 31 March 2016 A 201653 H31H 7,654.7 - 7,654.7
During the year, there is transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 fair MAFE AT EBEZ# AZEKEE
value measurement of HK$900.9 million as a result of the me mMBH009OAEETHAFTEFERSE
significance of unobservable inputs increased. During the year “EREEE=ER - NEZE201543 A31
ended 31 March 2015, there was transfer from Level 3 to Level HIEFE 5320888 TMREMEATE
2 fair value measurement of HK$532.9 million for investment FTERHEBRT#AF-"ERE=E_ER
properties upon their completion of construction. There were no N EA R B AR BT L S -

other transfers among levels of fair value hierarchy.
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LEVEL 3 VALUATION METHODOLOGIES

Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable

FZEREET A
TREIIEATTRER AR

inputs:
Unobservable inputs (note a)
TUBRHAYE (HFa)
Fair value Capitalisation rate Market rent Adjusted market price (note b)
(per square foot per month) (per square foot)
A¥E BER{® miEHH 4 KRBT IEER (K Eb)
(BRAS¥AR) (BEER)
Completed investment properties (note ¢)
Bk THRAME (Mitc)
Hong Kong
Ak
Industrial (note d) HK$3,701.0 million 3.8%104.5% HK$13 to HK$17 N/A
(2015: HK$3,303.1 million) (2015: 4.0% t0 5.5%) (2015: HK$7 to HK$15)
HK$57.9 million N/A N/A HK$7,150
(2015: Nil (2015: N/A)
TX(Msd) 3701.08EA T 3.8%E4.5% 1BETETAL TEA
(20155 : 3,303 1EEH L) (20155 : 40%%£5.5%) (20155 : 78T 215%T)
5798 AT TEA TEA 71507 70
(20154 « &) (2015 - @A)
Commercial HK$2,355.2 million 6.4% t0 8.0% HK$25 to HK$69 N/A
(2015: HK$2,772.9 million) (2015: 3.5% to 8.0%) (2015: HK$15 to HK$67)
RS 23552 EATL 6.4%%8.0% 2575 TLE 697 T TEA
(2015 1 2,7729E 8% L)  (2015% : 35%%8.0%)  (2015F : 158 L 267/ L)
Residential HK$708.8 million N/A N/A HK$4,980 to HK$22,100
(2015: Nil (2015: N/A)
fF=x 708.8BEAETL TER AiE A 498078 L £ 22,100/ T
(20155 1 &) (2015% : T )
Agricultural land Nil N/A N/A N/A
(2015: HK$131.2 million) (2015: HK$198 to HK$450)
Eifr & TER TR TiEHA
(2015% 131 2B EBT) (20155 : 198/ L 24507 L)
PRC
H
Residential HK$121.5 million N/A N/A RMB5,100 to RMB6,900
(2015: Nil (2015: N/A)
=2 1215888 T TE A TEA ARE51000E ARH6,9007T
(2015% © &) (2015 « NER)
Thailand
£
Residential HK$12.7 million N/A N/A THB5,700 to THB21,500
(2015: Nil (2015: N/A)
fF=E 12ITBEAT TiER AiE A 5,700% 8 £ 21,5007 #
(2015 © &) (20155 : @A)
Japan
AR
Commercial HK$278.8 million 4.0% JPY700 N/A
(2015: HK$256.7 million) (2015: 4.2%) (2015: JPY700)
RS 2788E BB 4.0% 7006 TEH
(2015 - 2567 E BB L) (20155 : 4.2%) (2015 : 700 E)
Residential HK$418.8 million 4.0% t0 4.4% JPY410 to JPY510 N/A
(2015: HK$299.7 million) (2015: 4.5%) (2015: JPY410 to JPY510)
fF=x ARRER=Y o 4.0%%£4.4% 410BEE510H TEA
(2015% : 2007 HEBTT) (20155 : 4.5%) (20154 : 410B[E 25108 E)
Notes: B EE

(@) A significant change in these inputs would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value measurement.

(b) Adjusted market price per square foot has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location, land quality and timing of reference

transactions.

(c) Fair value measurement of completed investment properties is positively
correlated to the market rent and adjusted market price per square foot, but
inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has obtained approval to
convert an investment property from industrial to commercial use and the
refurbishment works are underway. Such property is valued at HK$3,023.0 million

as at 31 March 2016.

@ BEBAMENEARE  BYHATEHEAREE
PIE U

b) KAEREBFTHIRTSEREHARBENEAR (B
WH T HEERZERHZER) -

© BERIRBVMENAFEFERTTHRZTSHE
EREREMGEB LA BEENMCEAZ KA
-

) REZE2016F3A3MALEE  ASECTEE A
BEMERTXEAEERBOIE W EAETEH
T ZMEN2016F3A31HHEEAS3,023.08E BT °



17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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17. % -BERRE

Furniture, Plant,  Ferries,
Leasehold Commercial fixtures machinery launches
Hotel Freehold landand and leisure Leasehold and and and motor Construction
properties land  buildings facilities improvements equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
BE
AAEE HELH BAR RENE GA-£E BE-BE  SKR
EENE T REFR BRI £E ET PEL RE ERIR @it
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HK$M HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM HKSM  HKSM
BEEr BEEL AEER HEER BEEn HBEET BEET BEER BERL BEAR
COST R
At 1 April 2014 201454 1R 1,414.1 289.9 750.1 652.7 280.6 267.2 139.7 505.9 0.7 43009
Currency realignment EREE (22 (5.0) 02 - 08 (1.0 03 0.2 - 07
Addtions RE 425 - 34 - 36.3 253 30 20.1 6.3 136.9
Disposals/write-off HE /s 29 (302 - - 3.7 85) B8 (3.1) - 712)
Transferred to investment properties BRZRENE - - (58.5) - - - - - - (58.5)
Reclassification ENNE (0.6) - - - - - - 06 - -
At 31 March 2015 1201553431 B 1,461.6 204.7 694.8 652.7 3124 283.0 1389 503.3 70 42984
Currency realignment E¥EER (40.0) (165 0.9 - (0.6) 2.0) 0.3 0.3) 0.3) (60.9)
Additions "E 49 - 8.1 50 320 37.0 0.7 26.5 122 1264
Disposals/write-off HE/ME 8.5 - (15) (34) (272 (13.8) 0.4 2.0) - (56.8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) WEEH B AR
(B3zar) - - - - 02 0.1 - - - 03
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HERBAR
(MizE38) - - (729 - (16.3) (19.7) (7.9) (16.8) - (198
Transferred to investment properties BRERENE - - (19.1) - - - - - - (19.1)
Reclassification EFNE - - - - (0.5) 05 - 07 0.7) -
At 31 March 2016 ®201653A31H 14080 2382 608.5 654.3 300.0 285.1 67.8 511.4 182 40915
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT FERBE
At 1 April 2014 #0144 1R 4401 9.3 170.7 378.2 1889 199.3 1323 431.3 - 1,950
Currency realignment ERRE (18 (0.6) 0.9) - (0.5) 0.9 03 0.2) - 44
Provided for the year TEERE 677 - 197 14.9 252 209 16 205 - 1705
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HEMBRES 21 87 - - (32) 83 (34) (228 - (48.9)
Impairment loss recognised (note) ERAREEE
(F3D) - - 2.6 - - 03 - - - 269
Transferred to investment properties BRZRENE - - (29.5) - - - - - - (29.5)
Reclassification ENAE (02 - - - - - - 02 - -
At 31 March 2015 2015534318 503.7 - 187.4 393.1 2104 213 130.2 4290 - 2,065
Currency realignment R (30.7) - (0.9 - (12 (1.4 02 - - (338
Provided for the year TEERE 579 - 14.7 143 256 219 12 19.9 - 1555
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE/MBEREE (6.0) - - 22 (25.2) (12.7) (04 20 - (47.5)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA AR
(Note 38) # (M3538) - - (229 - (14.0) (16.1) (63.1) (10.8) - (1269
Impairment loss reversed BEREER - - - - - (12) - - - (12)
Transferred to investment properties BREERANE - - (5.1) - - - - - - 5.1)
At 31 March 2016 2016537311 525.9 - 1738 405.2 195.6 201.8 67.7 436.1 - 2,006.1
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2016 2016537317 882.1 238.2 434.7 249.1 1044 83.3 0.1 75.3 182  2,085.4
At 31 March 2015 #2015%3A31H 947.9 254.7 507.4 259.6 102.0 nr 8.7 743 70 22333

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, the management conducted an
impairment review of certain property, plant and equipment of the Group and
determined that certain property, plant and equipment were impaired. Such

impairment loss of HK$26.9 million was recognised as the estimated recoverable

amounts (based on fair value less costs of disposal or value in use) of the property,
plant and equipment were less than their carrying amounts.

sk : REZE2015FE3A3ALEE EEBHAERZ
ETWE BERIBETRERNIBEECETWE K
EREHDRE - ZREBEERAE2098EET BY
¥ BEREZEOG TR E S EGRE D FERL &K
AR fFEAEER) EXRERAME-
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Items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation

Hotel properties 3 —-40 years

Leasehold land and buildings, 5 - 50 years, or over the
commercial and leisure facilities lease term if shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years, or over the

lease term if shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -7 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15years
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 3 — 20 years

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

HREIRAIINZYE  BERZEHEB RN
TEFAERFHAERERTE

KA FERE T WEFE
B JE Y 2 3-40%
HEtRET - 5-504F =k i B = -
Sl e Bl AHEEHR
HEmERE SEEMEE  AlA
AEHR

R KB RRE 3-74
e R D 5-154
e Ak RE 3-20%
18. M HE T

AEBZENHEHENKEE

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBTR BEETT

Leasehold land in Hong Kong UREBEEZHEE T 0.1 0.5
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong MREAIINE ZHE T = 6.5
0.1 7.0

Leasehold interest in land is released over the terms of the
leases on a straight-line basis.

Rtz HERSRERAUNEREEDL -



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
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19, B¢ & 0 7] 2 fe s/ B W g

]]ﬂ

DUE FROM ASSOCIATES =N TR HIE
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
Cost of investment in associates, unlisted REERRIEE ZKA  FEET™ - 44.5
Share of reserves DA FEE = 2.3
Share of post-acquisition losses, net of DMWEREE KRS WS
dividends received - (1.4)
- 45.4
Amounts due from associates (Note 29(b)) & U Bt &8 A &) 20 18 (M 5£29(b)) 603.0 619.1
Share of post-acquisition losses of associates 7l B 4 R M & £ 5 1 2 Bt 2 A 7
covered by binding obligation (note) Z W E 1% B E (M EE) (584.0) (678.7)
19.0 40.4
Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficits of TCSDCL and MisE: AEBMASETCSDCLEIE BB MR AR (M8 ])
Polyoung Limited (“Polyoung”) in proportion to its interests in TCSDCL and ZIFEE L AE N TCSDCL K188 2 2k - MR & 5

Polyoung. At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s obligation in this
connection amounted to HK$584.0 million (2015: HK$578.7 million) and
accordingly, the same amount has been recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and presented as a deduction from the Group’s advances to
TCSDCL and Polyoung.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March
2016 are set out in Note 47(c).

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates
is set out below:

Ko ALEBEE AR ST A84.08 88T (20154 ¢
5787TEBEL)  ZESHE NGV B ARERIL A
ANE B4 FTCSDCL & 18 i 2 B R K 8 o

REBPR2016FE3AN BT EBE R
FIBE N HIFE47(0) °

alz

AREBERRZYBERBBZHIWT -

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

ER- 3% BEET

Total assets BEERE 76.2 281.7
Total liabilities BEHER (1,960.0) (1,996.2)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,883.8) (1,714.5)
Group’s share of net assets AEBSEEESFE - 485
Group’s share of net liabilities RNEEBDHABEFE (584.0) (581.8)
(584.0) (633.3)

Turnover EER 0.3 18.1
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E518) & F (8.0) 30.8
Group's share of results for the year REB DR ARFEEE (2.3) 9.2
Dividend received from an associate B E QAR E 19.7 -

The financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is not material and no separate summarised financial
information of each associate is presented.

BEASBSHEAT 2 S B ANYLIE
A T B A R 25 BB
HE -
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s 50% equity
interest in Dazhongli. An analysis is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’M HK$'M
BEAETT BEBTT

Interests in: RTH)REZ :
Dazhongli A B8 6,240.7 6,379.2
Other joint ventures Hiha &N d 1,059.1 1,182.6
7,299.8 7,561.8

DAZHONGLI

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) are engaged
in the development of investment properties and hotel properties
in the Jingan District of Shanghai in the PRC.

KA B
RPBREMBEAR(TATEEE])HEH
RUNPELEETHZR ZREYERBE
Y

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

Cost of unlisted shares IEETRRD 2 B A 0.1 0.1
Share of reserves (note a) DG FEE (Fi 5Ta) 534.1 837.5
Share of post-acquisition profits (note b) DG EE & R T (FF 5Eb) 1,221.4 1,049.9
1,755.6 1,887.5

Loans to Dazhongli ERTAHE 4,485.1 4,491.7
6,240.7 6,379.2

The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The Group has no intention
to exercise its right to demand repayment of these loans within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company believe the settlement of these loans
is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they are, in
substance, a part of the Group’s net investment in Dazhongli
group as the proceeds of the loans have been substantially used
by Dazhongli to inject as registered capital into its PRC
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current
asset and included in the Group’s interests in joint ventures for
the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of Dazhongli
group as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

MTATREZEFREERNT 28 REET
B AREEBNHREBRETF KK+
“EARITEERERN  BEREEZFER -
HRAFEEHERMEZAED KRBT

AEFBEMBRAREREMER  AARE
EHREXFERBTERA R RKEEE -
BZERERAKREARARPEEER 25K
BB - Al LG MBI ERZ 25 M
5 ERSBCIERRBEE At AN

a
SEREERA R -

AP BEER20169F3 831 H &201543 A
SIBZHMBERMEHINWAT - L THEE
BEENREEBVEREENRREZEE
RAMBHRRFPAT S -
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The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in AENREEREIAEREZSERAUBR
these consolidated financial statements. *x o
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEET
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Investment properties under construction EEEEYE 18,741.1 16,519.2
Hotel properties under construction and EEEEMERRE
equipment 1,024.9 1,096.9
Other non-current assets HEMIERBDEE 141.5 139.4
19,907.5 17,755.5
Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHRIA S 374.1 516.6
Other current assets EMmeEE 23.4 13.7
397.5 530.3
Current liabilities mEAE
Loans from shareholders f% R E = 8,970.2 8,404.9
Other current liabilities Httn#aE 1,005.1 680.8
9,975.3 9,085.7
Net current liabilities mEAEFE (9,577.8) (8,665.4)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBDAG 10,329.7 9,200.1
Non-current liabilities FRBBE
Bank loans |ITEX 5,877.2 4,003.2
Loans from shareholders R E R - 578.5
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 941.3 843.4
6,818.5 5,425.1
Net assets BEFE 3,511.2 3,775.0
Group’s share of net assets REBDREEFE 1,755.6 1,887.5
For the year ended
31 March
BZESANBLEE
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Change in fair value of investment properties 7E2IZE W % A FHE
under construction 570.5 120.8
Other operating expenses Hipg@E (84.9) (63.5)
Deferred taxation i JE B 18 (142.6) (30.2)
Net profit after taxation for the year KEFZBRBIEF 5 343.0 271
Group’s share of resullts for the year AEBDIERFEEE 171.5 13.6
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Notes:

(@ The share of reserves of Dazhongli mainly represents the cumulative exchange
gains on translation of interest in Dazhongli and translation of the loans advanced
by the Group to Dazhongli, which are denominated in US dollars and HK dollars
respectively, that form part of net investment in foreign operations during the year.

(b) The increase in share of post-acquisition profits of Dazhongli in the current
year mainly arose from the Group’s share of fair value gain on investment
properties under construction of Dazhongli.

The investment properties under construction were measured at 31 March 2016 at
fair value of HK$18,741.1 million (equivalent to RMB15,616.0 million) (2015:
HK$16,519.2 million (equivalent to RMB13,084.7 million)) which was based on the
valuation conducted by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited (formerly known as
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited), who has appropriate qualification and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was derived from residual method based on capitalising the net earnings
that would be generated from the investment properties in their completed form,
and has taken into account the developer’s profit and construction costs already
incurred as well as the estimate costs to be incurred to complete the property. The
fair value measurement of investment properties under construction is valued
under Level 3 fair value measurement, which is measured based on the significant
unobservable inputs including the estimated market rent, capitalisation rate and
developer’s profit. The increase in the valuation for the year ended 31 March 2016
of investment properties under construction as stated above was due to the fair
value gain of HK$570.5 million (2015: HK$120.8 million) and additions to
investment properties under construction. The attributable deferred taxation charge
in respect of the gain was HK$142.6 million (2015: HK$30.2 million). Thus the net
fair value gain after tax amounted to HK$427.9 million (2015: HK$90.6 million) of
which the Group’s 50% share of gain was HK$213.9 million (2015: HK$45.3
million). The investment properties are held within a business model of the joint
venture whose business objective is to consume substantively all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.

CEE

@ AERTEZREFAEIERBEFARKRFTEZHRE
THRENBREAEEBRNT AP EABREINEL LS
BAFRZER(DBIARTERABLINE) 2 RFHE R

5o

o) RFEESERPEZUREREAIEM  TBRRAE
BEoOEATEZERREMEDFEKS -

BIEBERTARRABETZGEE  EEREMER
2016 F3A31A 2 AFEA187TMHABEEBITGHER A
R#15616.08 &Jt) (20154 : 16,519.2A B L (HHE R
AR¥E13,084.7TEE L)) c ARG A B E 2 RME
MEBBIBAGAEERTHLCR - HEDRES
BERIREMEELEZFRANBTERNSHHREEM
B/ YEFREEAGEMNREEEZEERAEY X
TIBEEZHRA - EEBEVENAFEAED
BREZBRATEFEEE ENDERERTAIHRE
ASB(BEGHTEHES BN RBEREHEA) 5
B HE2016F3ANBLEE EREEMEGBEBEL L
XA A G R - YA A FERES70.58 BT (20154 -
1208EBBIL)RAECREREME -2 RE 2 BIHELT
MIEXHAB1426 B BB L (20156 : 3025 BE L) ° 1
HBRRER 2 AFEFUKZEAB427.98 85 7T (20154 -
.6EEBIT) NEED(FEME250%  B1213.98 8
FEIC (20154 1 453 E BB IL) c REME N A B DRI ZH
TRAXEARE MEBERX XK ENREREER
ZIREMEMBEZRRBIEENZ  MEBBLE
B -



Level 3 valuation methodology

Below is a table which presents the unobservable inputs:

145

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

BE=ERMEESZ
TRENTABER AR :

Unobservable input (note i)

TR B R A BUE (D

Fair value

AV

Capitalisation rate

BEFf=

Developer’s profit

BREE AR

Investment properties under
construction (note ii)

EEERE Y E (M)

PRC
Gl
Commercial HK$18,741.1 million
(2015: HK$16,519.2 million)
EES 187411 B BB
(20154 : 16,519.2H &/ L)
Notes:

(i) A significant change in these inputs would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value measurement.

(i) Fair value measurement on investment properties under construction is
inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate and developer’s profit.

The capital commitments of Dazhongli at 31 March 2016 and 31

4% 10 6% (2015: 4% to 6%)

4% % 6% (20155 : 4% ZE6%)

8.5% to 11.0% (2015; 14.5%)
8.5% % 11.0% (20154F : 14.5%)
M 3T

() ZEHABBNEAESY BERAFESE KR
MR o

(i) ERREVMENATFEFEEZEMCERERMEE
MAZ2RAEH -

KA BER2016%F3 31 B K201543 A31 H

March 2015 is as follows: ZEREENT ¢
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Contracted but not provided for B SR NERIERE 1,339.0 3,565.6

The capital commitments of Dazhongli attributable to the Group
represents 50% of the amounts stated above, will be financed
by shareholders’ loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli.

AEBNAPBEZ BEARAPENR Ll &5
50% @ HBRRERIATEZEERER
NE®-
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OTHER JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT

B ERIEEAZALAT

INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEBT BEETT
Cost of unlisted shares JE MR 2 KA 6.3 156.2
Share of reserve DAL FEE (1.0) 2.6

Share of post-acquisition (losses) profits, DG E (B518) & -
net of dividends received % B WA B (5.3) 8.4
- 167.2
Loans to other joint ventures (note) ERTEMEE DA (M) 1,059.1 1,015.4
1,059.1 1,182.6

Note: The loans to other joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment. As at 31 March 2016, the loans to other joint ventures included an
amount of HK$1,007.4 million (2015: HK$986.9 million) bearing interest at fixed
rates from 3% to 3.5% (2015: 3% to 3.5%) per annum. The remaining balance is
non-interest bearing. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. The directors of the Company believe the settlement of these
loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the amount is
classified as non-current asset and included in the Group’s interests in joint
ventures for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The summarised financial information in respect of other joint
ventures as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 is set out
below:

i : BERTHOBAE AR NERBERTEBRTER

B o R2016F3A31H ERTHEMEE AR BESE
1,007.4 5 &% 7T (20154 : 986.9F &8 7T) W I% & £ & 7
R3%ZE3.5% (20154 : 3% E3.5%) 5T B2 KIE - h T K
BAEE AKEESNREERETARTZEAAR
TEEERN ZREEZFER - ARAEFHEREE
FTETERARRREEE - Al R BRAEKZ
2ImE  AESBECIEFRRBEE Wt AXEER

N VLEL TR

HiA&ERQARN2016E3 31 H 201543
AR EERBMEHINOT :

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

Non-current assets FERBEE - 2.3
Current assets MBEE 2,227.5 2,838.6
Current liabilities mEBAE (2,240.6) (2,518.7)
Net (iabilities) assets (BfB)EERE (13.1) 322.2
Group’s share of net assets AEEDREEFE - 167.3
Net (loss) profit after taxation for the year KEFZGRBIETF (EIB)EF (33.0) 4.6
Group’s share of resullts for the year REBAGAFEEE (16.3) 2.3
Dividends received from joint ventures BREERAIRE 8.6 2.6

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group as at 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are set out in Note 47(d).

REFEN2016FE3A31 B R2015F3 31 H
ZXBEERRZHEBIHNME47) °
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21. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY 2. ERRBREIBZ S Z2RE
SECURITIES

Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2016 using
#"2016F3A31H

AFEFE
Level 1 Level 3
2016 E—EBR F=ZEBR
HK$’'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
BEEABT HEBT HEBAT
Held-to-maturity investments FREMRE
Debt securities (note a) BB ESH (HisTa)
Current mEh 56.9
Non-current FERE 146.2
203.1
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE
Equity securities P 7R §E 25
Listed, at fair value (note b) EWmAFE
(Fft5Eb). 48.3 48.3 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LM EAFE
(Mt 5Ee) 50.5 - 50.5
98.8 48.3 50.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REHREWZWNWOT :
Non-current ERE 98.8
Market value of listed equity securities: FTBRAESZTE:
Listed in Hong Kong REBEN 37.7 37.7 -
Listed overseas RIgIN B 10.6 10.6 =
48.3 48.3 -
Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2015 using
7201543 A31H
NEFEE
Level 1 Level 3
2015 E—EBHR F=ZER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEAT BEBT BEAT
Held-to-maturity investments REIHKEE
Debt securities (note a) BB ES (Mita)
Current mE 40.9
Non-current ETREB 196.4
237.3
Available-for-sale financial assets AHhESREE
Equity securities P 7R §E 25
Listed, at fair value (note b) Em - BAYE
(P ED). 62.6 62.6 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LW EBAFE
(Mf5Ec) 28.2 - 28.2
90.8 62.6 28.2
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEREM WO T
Non-current EREB 90.8
Market value of listed equity securities: EHBRAE R ZTE :
Listed in Hong Kong REBEN 48.2 48.2 -
Listed overseas RGN B 14.4 14.4 -

62.6 62.6 -
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Notes:

(@) Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment losses. The fair value of the held-to-maturity debt securities as at 31
March 2016 is HK$214.8 million (2015: HK$245.4 million). The weighted average
effective interest rate is 5.9% (2015: 5.7%) per annum.

Included in held-to-maturity debt securities are impaired financial assets with
carrying amount of HK$8.8 million (2015: HK$8.8 million) net of the impairment
loss recognised of HK$7.3 million (2015: HK$7.3 million). Impairment loss of
HK$7.3 million (2016: nil) was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2015.

(b) The fair values of all listed equity securities are determined by reference to the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges in active markets as
at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

(c) Unlisted equity securities represent investment in private equity funds at
HK$50.5 million (2015: HK$28.2 million) which are measured using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information.

The Group uses the key inputs of market comparable companies and discounted
cash flow, which include the valuation multiples and recent transaction price, to
determine the fair value of the unlisted equity securities as at 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2015. The unobservable inputs are valuation multiples, discount for lack
of marketability and discount rate. Valuation multiples include enterprise value
divided by earnings before interest and taxes, and price-to-sales multiple. The
higher the valuation multiples, the lower discount of lack of marketability or the
lower discount rate, the higher the fair value.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is insignificant

to the Group.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

GEE

@ HEEIHIERSFFH Ty ABE 85 Ak AR AT @ A (8 &5 18
8 - R2016F3A3THE  HEINHABEHBIZESF 22 FER
2148 B E BT (20154 1 2454 FE B TT)  NEFHEE
FEF R B59% (20154 : 5.7%) °

HEIBESESFREREMEAS8E SH (20154 ¢
BEEBAB L) ZEMESREE  MKRCERRERE
73EEABIL(20156F : 73EEBT) c BEFBETIEEE
TL(20164F : ) RE E20156F3 A1 B IFEERNER -

() FIBELTRAZBS Z2ATFEIIZLEZR20165F3A31H
K2015F3A3IAEERMIBZHBARXZ 25 E AR
EMEE -

© FLTEABSFALEREES ZRESNSHEEETT
(20164 - 282 &) TDERMBERDFE - ZER
DHRZEA2BARBUESEDSHEBERTAEEGA

HE (DR ERBER) MESE -

AEEFEAMS EAEBRARNEZHARBRAER
R (BEGESHEROIHRSER) RETIELTRAE
FEHMR2016F3A31B R20156F3A31 A2 AF(E A
BRGAMBEGHEESEH REZMESRBUEITNRAEER
Ko HEFRBELCEBERUGRTERFIERN 2 AT
RERAFEEREEH HESHEYS BRZmERBEZ
FMaE R RWE A FERS -

WEAAE TR RS TERBEQRUEDW
FRARERERREMEAREAKENSBEIFEKN

JELMERAES CEEBMT

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEBT BEBT

Balance at beginning of the year FRHER 28.2 27.5

Acquisition during the year FRUEE 12.1 12.8
Total gain (loss) Wz (B 18) 4258

—in profit or loss -RiEzETP 0.4 1.0

— in other comprehensive income (expense) -REMEERE (FAX)F 10.8 (5.9)

Proceeds from disposal HEMBNREA (1.0) (7.2)

Balance at end of the year FREH 50.5 28.2

Included in other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a
gain of HK$0.4 million (2015: HK$1.0 million) related to unlisted equity securities
which had been reclassified to profit or loss from investment revaluation reserve
upon disposal.

There was no transfer among different levels of the fair value
hierarchy in the current and prior years.

REE2016F3A31AEFEFAEMEE RS HRAFE
ERAFEFZ04BEE T (2015F 1 1.08 BB T) Wak
REERERESHEREETHAEZER -

RAFEERBEFE A FEBRNTRAE
AT RIE IR X



FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION
PROCESSES

The Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity securities, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
The valuation is performed at the end of each reporting period.
Where there is material change in the fair value of the assets, the
cause of the fluctuations will be reported to the management of
the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of assets are disclosed above.

22. OTHER ASSETS

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

NFEFERGERBRE

AEBERE-BRAFEFEEETRENR
BRI LB AR -

RIEFTIFEMIRAE S Z AFER - NEE
ERAERZMSABEREE - HERS R
EHRET -MEEZAFEHRERE

B HRB RAFARNKEEEERS -

EHETEEATEMEANGERD KE
ABUBZ BB EXXRE -

22 Hith&EE

2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBER BEAT
Mortgage instalment receivables (note a) FE W IR 18 5 B R (M 5 a) 22,5 29.5
Loan to an investee (note b) MEARESRE (D) 106.6 106.6

Unlisted membership debentures and other FE T @EEFNEMEE
assets 7.4 7.4
136.5 143.5

Notes: B &

(@ The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing provided to
buyers of development properties of the Group. The amounts bear interest at
prime rate or prime rate minus 1% and are receivable by instaiments over a period
of not more than 20 years from the sale of relevant flats. The receivables are
secured by a second mortgage over the respective properties. The portion of
mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of HK$1.2 million (2015:
HK$1.7 million) is included as trade receivables in current assets.

(b) The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company incorporated in
Singapore which holds a commercial complex comprising a retail mall, 2 office
towers and a hotel in Tianjin, the PRC. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The directors of the Company determined that the Group
might not demand for repayment within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and hence classified the loan as a non-current asset.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of
the Group’s mortgage instalment receivables and loan to an
investee at the end of the reporting period approximate their
corresponding fair values.

(@) BUZEBOHHADRATASEERDERRZ
BEMHRERREENELREENER1%TE I
SHEAMETEME LR TBE220F AL MM - jtfE
WEHRTIABBYEEE _RIBER - Lo RBI2EBE
BT (2016 1 7TAEBETL) R —FASHZ BRZRES
HHAREAAERDEEZREEZRRA -

b) AEER—RFIMEEMARLZIELTREHEE15%
ZHm RARRTERERE - ARERAE 85—
BEDTL MERRAZERER—FOE - ZERREE
FREREEREERE ARAEFAEAEEARNRE Y
REFTZEARTEEREE  AUEZERDER
FRBEE -

ARAEERS AEERBEHRZEK
BB HERRAEBRESRERZER
BEEABEAFERS -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. #8
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAETR BEETT
Consumables SFEm 49.9 46.8
Finished goods 2IPK 5 - 13.7
Building materials EEME - 8.4
49.9 68.9

24, PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER

24 FEHEZER/ZRET

DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE ES
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEETT BEBTT
Properties held for/under development for EEEANABELREZRE/
sale in Hong Kong BRAPYE
Discovery Bay development project W= EERIAB 1,344.4 400.1
Other projects HiEH 842.1 1,046.3
Properties held for/under development for EEEINBELREZRE/
sale outside Hong Kong R 925.0 800.8
3,111.5 2,247.2

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs
capitalised in the properties held for/under development for sale
were HK$14.6 million (2015: HK$40.2 million). The properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$2,943.4
million (2015: HK$2,247.2 million) are expected to be recovered
after twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit periods allowed by the Group to its customers are
dependent on the general practices in the industries concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project
and are determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments
for healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on
demand.

REERR - 146 B EB T (20154 : 40.2
BEEL) CRIEEXNAE BIERIEREZ
BER/ZRDPME KR -2,04348 8B T
(20155 1 22472 B BB L) 2 HIEHE 2 %
B/EERYDEBHNREHRET T =@
A& o

25. R E 5 IR

AEBERTEEPZEERRFEARA—RKRIE
PIETE -SMERHEMS  HEKRTIREDY
XEEME Y2RERTNEE - WEM
SABRYN - BRERE - 27 EE RS
ZEBERARBEREHL -



The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the payment due date at the end of the reporting
period:

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

AT 73 FE W E 5 BR S0 i o B R IR B B 3R

BE25 2R DT

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEET aBEET

Not yet due & 7 EI| 2R 8.7 365.2
Overdue: #Hf

0 - 60 days 0-60X 28.4 37.6

61 — 90 days 61-90K 1.4 2.0

Over 90 days [EREICOPN 1.5 2.3

40.0 407 1

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$31.3 million
(2015: HK$41.9 million) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue
beyond 120 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 120 days are generally not
recoverable. Management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade receivables and considers the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS

AEBZEBEZERBERBEHRE R
H i AN 5= B30 R SR E B 1R 1F B 2 Bk
RS BREEAS K R31.3FEBIT(2015
FMOBEAL) AKELEIZFHER
R EAERmD -

REED L8 PR B 120K 2 BRI
B R NREEELR  ZFBHMEB
120K 2 EWERF — B Tl i@ - 538
BEEVERREESZRRZEEER IR
RuETEAPNIRECEEEZRATER
REFZEEER-

REEREZE

2016 2015

HK$'M HKS$'M

BEBT BEBT

Balance at beginning of the year F )4 R 15.3 214

Impairment loss recognised (reversed) on JEUWBR k2 B RERR (B E)

receivables B E A 0.7 (5.6)
Amounts recovered during the year F R R Z FIE (0.4) 0.5)
Amounts written off as uncollectible i 88 R ORI B 2 I8 (0.2) -
Disposal of subsidiaries & M B A A (3.6) -
Currency realignment B AR (0.1) -
Balance at end of the year F R 11.7 15.3

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 31 March
2016 and 2015 approximate the corresponding carrying

amounts due to relatively short-term maturity.

MR AEBZERE ZERERZEHARAER
5B WS RIBR20164E 20156331
ZAVFEEEAREEREAEMES -
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26. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE ON
CONTRACT WORK

26. EW/EISEHNIERE

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEBT BEET

Contract costs incurred plus recognised FrEE A 2 & AR NN B 1 3R 08 IR
profits less recognised losses B HEREE = 7,265.0
Less: Progress bilings W HEE FRIR = (7,363.6)
- (108.6)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEWmMEWZOWWOT :

Amounts receivable on contract work FEW & 8 T2 IR = 134.8
Amounts payable on contract work JER& K T2 IR = (243.4)
- (108.6)

As at 31 March 2015, both balances of amounts receivable
(payable) on contract work were expected to be settled within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

27. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 March 2015, progress payments receivable
represented the amounts receivable, after deduction of retention
money, for construction contract work, interior and renovation
contracts and contracts for installation of building materials
which usually fell due within 30 days after the work was certified.

Management closely monitored the credit quality of progress
payments receivables. As at 31 March 2015, 100% (2016: nil) of
the progress payments receivable were neither past due nor
impaired and were considered to be of good credit quality based
on historical repayment from the debtors.

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as follows:

R2015F3A31H ' ER(ER)EHITIER
BHEGBEHRBERRBT T+ —@EARE

=
/B °

27. BRWGEE XA

R2015F 3 A31 H + FEUWGHE S FRIBE L HIBR
RECHEEREEANTE KHEREEAL
PARTEEZEMBAEOZTE  —RAR
TRESHRERIORANI -

ERERYVEERICEERBE EFEEER -
M2015F3H31H - EREBAZERESL
B oK 180 HA 71 4 R (B 2 B WK R BUIB 2 100%

(2016F - EI)WHEAABRTEEEX-

AT REYCERERRZRE DN

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBETR BEABT

Within 30 days 30K - 96.7




28. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE

As at 31 March 2015, retention money receivable in respect of
construction contract work, interior and renovation contracts
and contracts for installation of building materials were settled in
accordance with the terms of respective contracts.

Retention money was usually withheld from the amounts
receivable for work certified. 50% of the retention money is
normally due upon completion and the remaining 50% portion
was due upon finalisation of the construction accounts. As at 31
March 2015, retention money receivable amounting to
HK$158.4 million (2016: nil) was expected to be settled within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@ Deposits, prepayments and other financial assets/
pledged bank deposits/bank balances and cash

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of
the Group’s deposits, other financial assets and pledged bank
deposits at the end of the reporting period approximate their
corresponding fair values due to relatively short-term maturity.
The bank deposits, both pledged and non-pledged, carry
interest at market rates.

(b)  Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-trade
nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The directors of the Company anticipated the
carrying values approximate their fair values due to relatively
short-term maturity.

()  Amounts due from joint ventures

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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28. EWRE 2

R20156F3A31H  BESHITE - HMX
BEANWARTEEZENB AN ZEKRE
SREBEHRBEYNZIEREE -

RES—MRAREHBETLRRZEBWRFZES
iR o IRE S 2 50% 3B F R FTA R EIER - i gk
T2Z50%AINEERE ZEERFIEH - RN
201543 A31H » A& 15848 & /B L (2016
F ) 2 EWRE S BN IRE R
+—E@EARES -

29 Hib T WEE

@ e TENREBMEMESRE
BE/EEBBIRITFR/RITE
N3E &

HRIHEEEERE  UARAEEFRAR/A
SEzZ HtemEEMDERRTE
FRBERRZ EHEREAERQFER

o DHEMMERMZRITHERBETESA

Eit g -

(b) &R = N B IR

B E ARRIEEER FEHUE
RRLEEEETRY AN BEEER
BoMARRESHEBRERAERAEATE
GEE=

=

(€ EYWEERFIRE

WA ERRFBENERR 2LERARE
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30. TRADE PAYABLES, PROVISION AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$114.1 million (2015: HK$243.1 million), an
aged analysis presented based on the payment due date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

30. ENEZRM  BERE
STEA

EREZER BEREFERATBEENS
BZER1141B BB (2015 1 2431 B &
BIL) U T ARBEBRRIZIBNTREHE
P 2 BR R AT -

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAT BEAT

Not yet due % 7 B HA 79.1 185.7
Overdue: w Ay

0 -60 days 0-60K 19.7 34.2

61 — 90 days 61-90K 1.4 1.7

Over 90 days @0k 13.9 21.5

114.1 2431

The average credit period on purchases of goods and payment
for subcontractor works is 90 days.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of
trade payables at the end of the reporting period approximate
their corresponding fair value due to relatively short-term
maturity.

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include (a)
construction cost accruals of HK$231.1 million (2015: HK$386.9
million); and (b) provisions for certain construction obligations of
HK$328.5 million (2015: HK$328.5 million). In the course of the
property development activities, the Group is obliged to
construct certain common or public facilities within the
development projects in accordance with the development plans
approved by the relevant authorities. Provision for such
construction costs has been made when a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of this obligation and the details of the
movement of the provision are set out below:

HESREAINIBIRRE FYEEE
ABIOK o

HREBMBEEEERE  WARREZTRARE
NESEFRBER R EEERLERRD
FEMRE -

ENEBESER BERETEABE@QES
LR A231.1E &8 T (20154 : 386.9H &
BIC) s Rb)FLE T EEAEFER #3285
BEET(20155F 3285 EET) c AEH
EETMERREITDH 2 BEY  BAREBH
ERMEZERE RERBEERNERES
FARFAREM - NEE SR A UL IEAT
EAEZSBIEN A SMEEE  RZEEE
FRAVEH B - WL TBRE 2 FFBaEsm
T

HK$'M

BEBTT

Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014%F 4 A1 H 2 &8 338.8

Utilised during the year FRNE A (2.5)

Reversed during the year FAEE (7.8)
Balances at 31 March 2015 and M2015E3H31H K

31 March 2016 2016 £3 H31 H =z &tk 328.5
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

31. IEIE R IR

NATREERZEZREEHE(RR)AEDN
RERBRTRBERSFEZZY

reporting years:

Fair value Distributable

Accelerated  change of profits of

tax investment Tax foreign
depreciation properties losses  subsidiaries Others Total

BHKE

MEHE REWE AR A
E AVESEY HEFE  2EF Hit st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#®ER HEBT HEER BE#®R HEBART HEER

(note)
(K aE)
At 1 April 2014 20145418 (177.7) (70.0) 94 (27.6) 29.9 (236.0)
Currency realignment ERAE 04 ©.1) 03 - - -
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (B ABR (11.1) 20.4 (3.6) - (7.1) (1.4)
Charge to investment revaluation reserve 1B R E B e - - - - (0.3 03
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3 A31H (188.4) (49.7) 55 (27.6) 225 (237.7)
Currency realignment ERRE 0.1 15 - (1.6) 0.2 0.2
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (%) AEH (12.4) (4.5 (0.6) 6.9) 0.7 (23.7)
Credit to investment revaluation reserve T ARE B GHE - - - - 0.6 0.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) g1 =ING
(MiEa7) (6.0) - - - - (6.0)
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 38) HERBAF

(Ky3E38) 144 - (0.5) - - 139
At 31 March 2016 R2016 3 A31H (192.9) (52.7) 44 (36.1) 24.0 (252.7)

Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in
relation to unrealised profit of certain property development projects.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

MeE: WHEBRTHETHEZERBIREIENM
WRELFRIAEE (BE)FHE -

MEBRGAVBARERME - & TREHRRA
BENRBBCRAKEZ R BREH - U
TRARMB2HRE N ZELEHALH (K
W) DT

2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M

BEBTT BEET

Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBAE (255.8) (241.3)
Deferred tax assets EREFRIBE E 3.1 3.6
(252.7) (237.7)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$1,012.9 million (2015: HK$1,195.1 million)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$26.6
million (2015: HK$33.3 million) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$986.3 million (2015: HK$1,161.8 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

RMEBR AEBREAREEEA
1,0129B8 B T (20154 : 1,1951 A& B
To)  ATAREEARRERN - ERH266E &
B (20154  33.3EBA L) BEEBRE
EHBEE BARERBIRTEFRA -
B I Y 4 B 62 5B 986.3 F & 7 7T (2015 4F
1,161 8B BB L) MREERIBEEE -
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$181.8 million (2015: HK$172.7
million) mainly arising from impairment losses recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment and inventory. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

RBESHR AEEETZEAWE  BEMER
BEURGFEZEERBEBEBRSI B2
WL EREA181.8B 8B L (2016%F 1 172.7
BEBT) - AR T AAEEHR R & F 7T A
REE A MRS EE AT ERZE
MBREREZERRECHBEE -

2. RITREMER

2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAET
Bank loans (note a) RITE K (KF5Ta) 6,012.8 4,886.7
Bonds and notes (note b) &5 RERE (MiEb) 953.3 943.3
6,966.1 5,830.0
Less: Amount included under current liabilities J& : st AR BN BB 2 £ %8
(including bank loans with a (BIEE A EREREE
repayable on demand clause) BRZHRITER) (351.2) (2,433.6)
Amount included under non-current liabilites =t ASERBEE 2 S5 6,614.9 3,396.4
Bank and other loans are repayable: PRI LREMEFERN T EREES -
On demand or within one year BERSI—FA 351.2 2,433.6
Between one and two years —FEWMEN 751.2 149.5
Between two and five years MEZRFRA 5,863.7 2,453.1
More than five years HBidAE - 793.8
6,966.1 5,830.0
Secured o 483.6 740.5
Unsecured it i 6,482.5 5,089.5
6,966.1 5,830.0
Notes: B E

(@) Asat31 March 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest at an
average margin of 1.26% (2015: 1.92%) plus Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR?”), other relevant interbank offered rates or other benchmark interest rates
per annum.

(o) On 2 April 2013, the Company issued principal amount of HK$560.0 million
7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. Subsequently on 10
April 2013, the Company established a US$1.0 billion Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN Programme”). In May 2013, a total principal amount of
HK$238.0 million 7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.3% per annum was
issued under the MTN Programme. Furthermore, as at 31 March 2016, there was
outstanding bond with principal amount of HK$158.7 million (2015: HK$149.5
million) carried interest at a margin of 0.8% (2015: 0.8%) plus the relevant interbank
offered rates per annum.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of
the Group’s bank and other loans at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding fair value.

(a) M2016%F3A31H  AEEBITHEIZTF1.26%
(2015%F : 1.92%) 2 FHEBREEMBEBRITRERFE
R HMBABRTRER S RLEMEEN RS -

(o) MR2013F4 A28  RARFHITAELE60.0E8EE T
TEHIREBFAS%ZEA S B2 LT RE -BEERN

2013F4 A10H AR AHZI100BE T 2R HAEEE
(TR HAZ= R 21)) - R20136 5 A - IRIEPHERFEID
BITASHE38.08 BB T2 T EHILEF43%ZEF
Bt B2k LETMRE - bt M2016F3A31H - REE
BEHREEI587THEE T (20164 1495 HEET)IXE
F0.8% (20154 : 0.8%) 2 EEEXRNABBRITRERS

K38 -

ARAPEERA RBEHKR - AEEIRTT
REMERZ RHEERLAEQFERS -



33. OTHER LIABILITIES

EBFEEEREBERADE 2015/2016 F3R

3. HMERE

2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBET
Advances from non-controlling shareholders — JE 1% J& 1% 58 7 28 2% (B %)

(note) 206.8 238.6
Club debentures gMES 855.7 855.4
Others HA = 14.2

1,062.5 1,108.2

Less: Amount due within one year BRTARBEBEZ —FA
included under current liabilities E|EAzRE (0.5) (76.9)
Amount due after one year —F & BRI 1,062.0 1,031.3

Note: The amount represents advances from non-controlling shareholders of
certain subsidiaries to finance operations of those subsidiaries. As at 31 March
2016, included in advances from non-controlling shareholders is an amount of
HK$194.8 million (2015: HK$157.0 million) which bear interest at 3-month HIBOR
plus 3.5% (2015: 3-month HIBOR plus 3.5%). The amount is unsecured and not
repayable within one year.

Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates, which

e : ZRBEAETHEARZHFERBREZSZR - A
BENZEWB AR EEMS - N2016463A31H » 3EE
BRRE 2 BHEIEABEK104.8E B (2015%F + 157.08
BB ) K3 A BB BRITRER B R MN3.5% (20155 :
Z3EABHBEBRITREREEMNIS5%) T E - ZFHE
RERBERBER -FRNEE-

EMEFAINEEEHARR

 ZERHA

are as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Within one year —F R 0.5 0.7
Over one year but within five years —FUEFBRFURA 429 42.9
In 2047 2047 F 812.3 811.8
855.7 855.4

These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
issued to members of the following clubs operated by the
Group:

HFEEFH/RE BERAREITT N H
AEEMREZEMNEER

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEBETT BEAT

Discovery Bay Golf Club MREsREKE 663.7 663.7
Discovery Bay Marina Club MEEEREe 434 43.6
Discovery Bay Recreation Club MEERES 148.6 148.1
855.7 855.4

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of
the Group’s other liabilities at the end of the reporting period
approximates their corresponding fair values.

ARREZRR NRERKR AEEEM
BEZEREEREAEQTFERS -
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34. DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount
of the Group’s deposits received and other financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period approximates their corresponding
fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are
property sales deposits of HK$83.1 million (2015: HK$92.0
million) expected to be recognised as sales in profit or loss within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

35. SHARE CAPITAL

BoWEsREMERE
&

ARREZRR BRAKEZEREZER
HitemBEZINHABEERE AR HRE
IR ZERBEZEREERERRELFER

++

Eo

BhekEftEsmaETBREEERRE
HREF T @AAREBRTRRAAEEZ
YIEEEIRS831HBE BT (2015%F 1 9208

NN

BB -

35. R A

2016 & 2015
Number
of shares HK$'M
% & BEABRT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

Authorised:
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and

s N

FREE0.25/8 T 2 & WA

MR2014F4 A1 H ~ 20154

31 March 2016 3A31H k201643 A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: BEREITRHMERKRA :
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and MR2014%F 4 A1 H 20154

31 March 2016 3A31H &201643 A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 8 September
2011 which permits the directors of the Company to grant
options to all directors (including any Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors),
full-time employees and any consultants (employed on a
contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies to subscribe for shares in the Company.
No share option has yet been granted under this scheme.

36. %0 HAREST 2

RABR2011E9A8H M T IR EARE R
g ZATEIBRRARRERRARA - AN
BRAIN/ZEBERRZABEESR (B
THRITES FNATESRBIFANTE
) 2BEEREMUGHOEAEROER
B A RE AR R 2 By B - it &t 8l
48 5% A AR B A B HE -



37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES BY HANISON GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there are two
acquisitions of subsidiaries including (a) General Mark Holdings
Limited together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Masswell
International Limited (collectively referred to as “General Mark
group”); and (b) Trillion Mart Development Limited (formerly
known as Billion Mart Development Limited) (“Trillion Mart”). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that these
transactions do not constitute business combinations as defined
in HKFRS 3 “Business combinations”, therefore, these
acquisitions have been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets. Details of these transactions are summarised as follows:

(@ Acquisition of General Mark group

On 19 May 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, Shangzhi Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to acquire
the entire issued capital of General Mark Holdings Limited, and
the shareholder’s loan, at a cash consideration of HK$253.3
million. The acquisition was completed on 17 July 2015. The
major asset of General Mark group is an investment property
representing an en-bloc residential property situated in Hong
Kong.

(b)  Acquisition of Trillion Mart

On 8 September 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Nimble Run Limited, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire the entire issued capital of Trillion Mart, and the
shareholder’s loan, at a cash consideration of HK$993.3 million,
representing HK$987.8 million adjusted by the net current asset
value of Trillion Mart on the completion date. The acquisition was
completed on 22 October 2015. The major asset of Trillion Mart
is an investment property representing an en-bloc commercial
property situated in Hong Kong.
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37. WEBFT B 2 A
9 s 5 1B W 5 B /B8 2

RBE2016F3A3TAILEFE B R WE
MBAREE  BiE@BEFIZERAERRARE
RE2EMNBRARKPEEERA R (KHE
BIEFERE]) : & (O)Trilion Mart Development
Limited (51 % B8 [ 3% & & R 2 &A1) ([ Trilion
Mart]) e KRB EBR A ZERXFHILTHE
REBFIERELERNEIFRIEBFAHFIATR
EMEBGH Bt ZSWHEHEEFA
BEERE ZEXHMFHBHRINET

() WHEGEE

R2015F5 198 » ER AR A FIHEIESE

EffBARMEERARE— BB IE=FH
FINEBEEDE ARERE253358B LK
BESERERARZHEZHITRARKE
B ZWEER2015F7 17 HEK ° B

CSENFBEEEAREDE H—EBURE
EHEEE -

(b) U B Trillion Mart

R2015F9A8H ERAARRRIEEIEEE
WEBARMLAERARE —ZBIE=FHF
VEEWE  UWHESRE33EEBE T
BETrilion Mart 2 2 B TR A R IREE R
(F8& 1R 987.8 @ B T + & Trillion Mart 1A 72 A%
ARSI EEFEEAR) ZWEER
2015F 10 H22 B 5EAK ° TrilionMart 2 £ £ &
EAREYE H—EBUREENEADE-
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The assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of

RERHIZMRBEERMAERAE:

acquisitions:
General
Mark
group Trillion Total
EEE Mart #Et
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M
BE#BrT BEBR BHEAR
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties SE-RIES 254.9 1,002.2 1,257.1
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE REE 0.3 - 0.3
Current assets MEE E
Trade receivable, deposits, JEWE 5 BR 3K
prepayments and Be - BHIE
other financial assets FEMCREE 0.1 0.6 0.7
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS - 0.2 0.2
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade payables, provisions FERTE 5 R
and accrued charges BRELETER 0.1) (10.2) (10.9)
Taxation payable FEAT B 18 - 0.9) 0.9
Non-current liabilities FERBBE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE (1.9) (4.1) 6.0)
Net assets acquired WUEE 2 BEER 253.3 087.8 1,241 .1
Satisfied by: TRAR:
Cash consideration paid ENEREesRE 253.3 993.3 1,246.6
Other receivables H b JE Y BR 3X - (5.5) (5.5)
253.3 987.8 1,241 1
Net cash outflows on acquisition: WiE 2 IR&m R
Cash consideration paid BB RE 253.3 993.3 1,246.6
Bank balances and cash acquired WEEZRITEH KR E - 0.2) 0.2)
Deposit paid Bff&e (8.0) - (8.0
245.3 993.1 1,238.4

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Disposal of subsidiaries by Hanison group

On 19 March 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited
(“Hanison BVI”) and an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), Sky Champion
International Limited (“Sky Champion”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant
to which, Hanison BVI and Sky Champion disposed of their
entire interests in Superior Choice Holdings Limited (“Superior
Choice”), which is held by Hanison BVI and Sky Champion on a
60:40 basis together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Excel
Pointer Limited, and the same proportionate shareholders’ loans
made to Superior Choice. Excel Pointer Limited is engaged in
property investment. The total cash consideration for the
disposal is HK$549.7 million. An amount of HK$143.0 million
out of the total cash consideration has been applied for bank
loan repayment directly before the completion of the disposal.
The cash consideration attributed to Hanison BVI is HK$244.8
million. The disposal was completed on 7 July 2015.

38. LHEME LR
@ EBEELENEDF

2015653 A19H - ER R ARAIMEEIESR
& Bff B /A &) Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited ([ Hanison BVI1) & CCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited ([ CCM Trust]) #4582 32 E I
BRARAEBEBEAER AR ([XE])H—5Z%E
SMEB=FEI B &R o H it - Hanison BVI
N K58 i & 1 % 7 Superior Choice Holdings
Limited ([ Superior Choice J) ( 1 Hanison BVI &
KA RIFFHE H60% R40% 2 #wm) RE 2
EMBARIEERER AR ZE IR A KM
Superior Choice fE 1 B B L5l 2 R B 3K »
EREBERARNEMERE - LHEZHRESLR
REBOTEBB L - BB EFR AR
14308 BB TR EEKAEAREEE
BIRITE K o HanisonBVIE(h 2 &R B A
2448B&EBTT - ZHEBER201557A7H

TR -



Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date of disposal:

EBFEEEREBERADE 2015/2016 F3R

MEBARMNHKERRZEERERE:

HK$’'M
BEEABT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Investment properties REME 550.0
Property, plant and equipment WE - WER&E 0.7
Current assets MENEE
Trade receivable, deposits, prepayments and FBWE SRR e BRARER
other financial assets HithemEE 0.3
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIA S 2.0
Current liabilities mBAE
Trade payables, provisions and accrued charges BENESER BELESER (2.6)
Amount due to a group company BT EE R RIFRIE (116.3)
Other liabilities due within one year —FREPzEMAEE (76.2)
Bank and other loans due within one year —FRBPZEITREMER (143.0)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEMIBAE (1.1)
Net assets disposed of WHECEEFRE 213.8
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (85.5)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan HERRER 116.3
Gain on disposal (note) & I E (B EE) 0.2
244.8
Satisfied by: TRAR:
Cash consideration received WER & R (8 244.9
Other payable H th pE < 3B 0.1)
244.8
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRESRAFE:
Cash consideration received EWRERE 244.9
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of R EZRITEHREES (2.0)
242.9

Note: Gain on disposal of Superior Choice is recognised in the result of
discontinued operations during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Bt 5% & Superior Choice /) M 25 A & £ 2016 F3 A 31 8

LFENDRIEEEEBREATRR -
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(b) Disposal of Hanison group by distribution in specie

As disclosed in Note 1, Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company upon the distribution of Hanison shares to the
Company’s shareholders on 3 November 2015 as interim

dividend by way of distribution in specie.

Net assets of Hanison group on the date of distribution in

) AEWD Ik E #®

ANt R P LA - R 2015F 11 A3EAE W
DIRERZEARARBRES

i

& B 5 P A0 1 /5

RHIRB1R BB EBE B AR R BNME

AR

HEEEREYD KB HNEEFE:

specie:
HK$'M
BEBT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties "EWE 1,806.0
Property, plant and equipment mME - BE LK 69.2
Prepaid lease payments ERHEERIE 6.2
Interests in associates iR l/N Lo 6.6
Interests in joint ventures A& RNEMERE 175.0
Pledged bank deposits BEEFIRITER 82.6
Deferred tax assets LT IBE E 0.3
Current assets mENEE
Inventories E=s 15.0
Properties held for sale BELEWE 293.5
Properties held for/under development for sale BEHECER/ERPWE 345.6
Amounts receivable on contract work JEWEHT 7F“ RIE 83.4
Progress payments receivable & W S FOR 199.4
Retention money receivable YR E & 239.1
Trade receivables, deposits, prepayments and BUWE SRR -&E  FBANRER
other financial assets HEmemEE 198.8
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW A & R BB 1.2
Taxation recoverable AR B 7 18 2.9
Bank balances and cash RITHEBLIES 569.4
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEZEE 10.1
Current liabilities i Eﬂ BE
Trade payables, provisions and accrued charges ENEZERR BELESER (650.7)
Amounts payable on contract work JER& KT FIE (387.8)
Bank and other loans due within one year —FREBPZRITMNEMER (1,197.2)
Taxation payable JE TR IR (41.3)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Other liabilities due after one year —FRIBzHMbEE (14.9)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE (13.1)
Net assets BEFE 1,899.9
Non-controlling interests eI (985.8)
Net assets distributed under distribution in specie BEYH KB THED IR EEFE 914.1
Cash outflows on disposal: HEZHEN
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZRITERKRES 569.4




39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank loans
and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 32 and 33, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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39. EXERER

AHEARASEETSERTEESELE
AEEHEERNETEE WEBREEKR
A ZEBREFENARRREGRADR -
AEBZEERBEEBEFRREFTIE -

AEBZERAGEBERERFR(ETRRE
FiaE32 M3BATH B 2 R HRIT R EME K -
RHRTERREMES HERRe LR
SEER)RARAEE AREER (BEE
BITRA - HHEARER)

ARAPBEFEHRMATELREE - (FR/ULER
HZ—Bn ARABEFCEBEERAR
BEREAZHEBRR REARAEFTZE
& AKERERRMNKE  BITHR B
EI G RBETHEHXBERRBES  FA
FEEBELEE-

4. €pt T B
SRt T AR

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEELE A&
Financial assets TREE
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHIKE 203.1 237.3
Loans and receivables (including cash ELERZFE(BERS LRSS
and cash equivalents) BIER) 5,572.0 6,893.1
Available-for-sale financial assets, AtHESREE  BATE
at fair value 98.8 90.8
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost B SE R AR 8,287.6 7,524.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables,
progress payments receivable, retention money receivable, other
financial assets, amounts due from associates, amounts due
from joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade payables, deposits received and other financial
liabilities, bank and other loans and other liabilities. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in currency which is the functional currency of the
respective group entities except for certain bank balances, loans
to joint ventures and held-to-maturity investments which are
denominated in foreign currency, other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

T m AR T IR B AR RIBUR

AEETESRTABEREINKRE A
HEESRMEE BUEZEN BUEE
HA - BRRES  EtbE R EE - B
BRBFIA BERAERRARE CEAR
TER RITEHRERS  BNEZERN
ERZzekEteRAE RTREMGER
UEREMBEE - ZZ2R T AFBREEN
AWRE - -ZEcRIAMERREBEM SR
R (E¥ER M EERREMERRR)
FEERBARTBESRR - MADREZE
REZBRERNTX -EEEBEENERZ
Rk AEREERERETEE EE -

SRR

BRETIRITESR BERTRERALFED
M ENINEMAIENBRAEEERIES
BIEN  REBAFDEEIAAHEHE
ERZDEERIE RASBABATE
KON R o

EETENREBUINEINEZEERBE
ZHEREEN

N L

Assets Liabilities
BE 8&

2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M

Currency g BERAT BEAT HEBEABRT BEAT
Renminbi AREE 382.1 457.6 - -
US dollar = 4,397.8 4,749.9 - -
Thai baht Z ok 296.8 336.8 - -
Others Hib 8.6 50.3 - -




Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of Renminbi,
US dollar and Thai baht.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnels and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The analysis illustrates the
impact for a 5% weakening of the functional currency of the
respective group entities against the relevant foreign currency
and a positive number below indicates an increase in profits for
the year and in exchange reserve. For a 5% strengthening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profits for the year and exchange reserve.

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

BB 72T

AEETFEAZARE ETLFHRELEZ
B RR -

TERFINAKREERNEHEEEER INES
EHAREIMNEERTE5% 2 BRE ° 5% &
M EER A SRR ERINE @b PR 2 8
BRE UWREEEBHEXSEAGEES 2T
e BREDITEBEAINEINE Z WK
HE¥EE UYRBEHRAREBENR
MRIER 5% T MEARBEEE
B EEHLBBINERES N2 FE T
RIEFFORAF R Bl N [ 5 i 2 38 A
MEEEEER I HEE A BHINE LR
5% 2 FHE - RIS & AN ZE A M IE X A
ERERZFEFE -

Increase in
Increase in profits exchange reserve
% A 4E hn BE 5 % 45 45 An

2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M HK$’M HK$'M

Currency g BERT BEET HEBRT BHBEATT
Renminbi AR 19.1 22.9 - -
US dollar E7T 19.3 36.9 200.6 200.6
Thai baht e 0.7 1.6 14.0 15.1

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect that
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
held-to-maturity investments (see Note 21) and fixed-rate bank
deposits and borrowings (see Note 32). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank deposits and borrowings (see Notes 29 and 32), advance
from a non-controlling shareholder (see Note 33) and mortgage
instalment receivables (see Note 22). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

EIEERS - BN HREHRERIL R
FARAZER SBEREINETIKEREE Z
SIME L -

= &k

AEEAZFBEIRERE (RWE21) A RE
BROTERREE (RMEI2) 2 AFEH
KRk  AEBETARFZERTEFALEE
(RMfE29 }232) ~ SRR 2 3% (R I
FE33) R U IR By IR R (R I iE22) 238
RMEER - BEELZBNERGFTETIAR
SEZEE UEEREAFENERR -
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The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, other relevant
interbank offered rates or other benchmark interest rates arising
from the Group’s borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank deposits
have been excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management
of the Group considered that the interest rate fluctuation is not
significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings, advance from a
non-controlling shareholder and mortgage instalment
receivables, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability and asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnels and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

e profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/
increase by HK$31.0 million (2015: HK$23.7 million). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate bank borrowings, advance from a non-
controlling shareholder and mortgage instalment receivables.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through its
investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio. The
level and volatility of the prices of securities may be affected by
general economic and market conditions, such as interest rates,
availability of credit, inflation rates, economic uncertainty,
changes in laws (including taxation law), trade barriers, currency
exchange controls, and national and international political
circumstances, if applicable.

AEEAZEREELERBEZNERAR
ZHBERAMEIRBECRREERD
AEBZRERNEARIEETRAEHE
EEMEMAZEBRITAZRE X Hibil
BRRITRAFFE RS EMELEN KR -

B RS Z 2T

ATERESMIRENRERREITET
HAZMEXERMETE ARAEEZEERE
RANERBY TEE  HBBREDHTILA
BREFRBITER -MFSRITEE - I
BRERzBR R ERIRBYBERME - %
DNBEERRBERRFECEABEREES
BRBEFEDAFEMRER o 180z
SOMEAEE RME ZEIE A B MR E &A= E
SRR WEEEBEHMNERAES
R A -

5 1 Tt/ T RSO R B - A H 2
MR BIAEE :

o HZE201643A31 8 IEFE 2% F i8R

/2 IN81.0E BB T (201564 287 B &%
T e WD EEHRAEBEREZERITE

BRI R 2 B E U B 0 B 5K
A & 2 FI = @ B AT 3K -

H At (B 75 [ k2

AEEEREREMEIELEMESZ2REM
EXMBEREE BEEEBBESZ T
MILEHAE TR RAR - BFHFERKERE
BRI RE X B BB EMM SRR E -
mFE - EEABE  BRE  LETHRA
MERIER (BIEREEN) BHRE -
EMERNES  URE2BERBEBRBCAER
(w@EmA) -



Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been 5%
higher/lower:

e investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$4.8 million (2015: HK$4.4 million) for the Group as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 43.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

With respect to credit risk arising from loan to an investee,
amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The exposure to
credit risk is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held-to-
maturity investments, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings and corporates with strong financial position.
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BB 72T

ATHERESMDBRERBREAZSFRELZ
EBIRERMET -

MEBEFKE ZER LT/ T5% A :

o AEEBFEREBELHESATHLESR
BEEZAFEEHMIE M/ mL48EEET
(2015F : 44EBEEIT) °

EERR

M2016F3A31H  AEBRER S B AR
BIEARAEBEAMREVEERERNASE
B BsELIAMAZ ZZSEERR  TVRE -

R HARRAKRATEBCD ER S A
BEZKREE: &

o MIE4MBEBEBAREE L ZMKHE
RERARBERE -

REAREREEERR NEBEEECDK
Y—xBh BEEEEERRE - FEHZ
REAMETIZRF - PARELR 3 U B 8 B (E 75 5%
HREITE - I NREBSERNBEHRE
& EERE SER 2 WE SR - AR
LRI B SRR TR BER R © St
EOARREERR AFEZEERRE
A g R -

AR E B RER - U L R R RIE MR
WEERRREASILEZEERRME K&
BN S MR A R E S5 AR T
ARE e EEL TR RERSE AREAX
ZIEERBRER -

AEERFHEFHERE  CEFRTERRK
RITEBRAXZEERRAR ARXZYH
FHRBESEENRZRTRABHEERESR
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Other than amounts due from associates amounting to HK$19.0
million (2015: HK$40.4 million), the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk over trade
receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$7,260.5
million (2015: HK$5,043.7 million).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of directors of the Company, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand
clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of
the reporting period.

B JE Uk B & X BRI FRIE19.0 8 8 78 JT (20154 -
A04BBET)IN BREFERZEERR
DEHRAERERFIETRITEME 2R
FL MAEERKE SRR ETHEEM
EAEFRZEERRE-

mEE T Ak

HREERDECRRBME  AEBEERLHE
SEEEARRARAKREZERHTES R
BERRKBTEZRE MRS FEER
KF-ERBERRTEEZHRBER X
R A EREH -

AEEKRBRITEEEARDESCZEER
JB o R20164F3 A31H » REBHE A Al {F
AREABAZEST RIRITEREEH7,260.5
BEBTL(20156%F : 5,043.7BE B L) °

ARAEEERRPDESAREEARRR
B REEAKBEZEY HHLERHE
ERRBESEERTRKEY —EAREZIRE
EoEREEER-

TERFINAEEREHEEEGRZRHE
MHRzeRBEREAREREREER
RZRITEREIN) - IETTESRAEM

OMIRDEAEEARERNTRZER
A @RMBEEZARBRARSRZS - KT
BRMNERASZEAER - WHERZZEY
MEAE  RERcRAKEREHRZH
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Liquidity risk table TE)E T B &
Repayable
on demand Total  Carrying
or within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted amount at
1 year years years 5years cashflows 31 March
REXS KEER MWIA3MA
-FREE -EMF CZEIF IFNE RERLE 2EREE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEAT HEBR HEAR BE#R BE#®R HEAR
2016 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ F{T4 &R EE
Trade payables and accrued charges  ERE BRI R
[E:t B 148.4 - - - 148.4 148.4
Deposits received and other financial 2 WIEE K
liabilities EtemAaRr 1106 - - - 110.6 110.6
Bank and other loans ] & EER
- fixed-rate ) 35.3 3513 866.7 - 937.3 794.6
- variable-rate -%8 455.2 843.9 5,245.5 - 6,544.6 6,171.5
Other liabilities AthEfE 05 0.7 275.2 812.3 1,088.7 1,062.5
Financial guarantee contracts BRERAY 274.2 - - - 274.2 -
1,024.2 879.9 6,387.4 8123 9,103.8 8,287.6
2015 20155
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JE{T4 4 RMEE
Trade payables and accrued charges BT E HBREZ R
EtER 376.4 20.9 - - 397.3 397.3
Deposits received and other financial 2R L Kk
liabilities HE@aE 188.7 - - - 188.7 188.7
Bank and other loans 17 &H HER
- fixed-rate ) 35.2 35.2 105.7 795.2 971.3 793.8
- variable-rate -%8 2,522.8 204.3 2,536.1 - 5,263.2 5,036.2
Other liabilities Hig @ 76.9 14.8 238.7 811.9 1,142.3 1,108.2
Financial guarantee contracts Bﬁ BERAH 1845 - - - 184.5 -
3,384.5 275.2 2,880.5 1,607.1 8,147.3 7,524.2

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms
except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause.

MN2016F K 2015438310 fTARITEE
NERRAEZEREY  UEBEERSE A8
AT BE RS BEREBIERZIRITE RBRIN

EREAAFFTALBMEEIRIAY OB
i T BY 2 18 Y LA R R 2
HARSHAZREGELED -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.
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Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2016, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$192.5 million (2015: HK$690.2 million). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
bank loans as at 31 March 2016 will be repaid within one year
(2015: two to four years) of the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$193.8 million (2015: HK$706.2
million).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

e the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in
unlisted equity securities which are measured at fair value using
valuation techniques based on inputs that can be observed in
the market in addition to unobservable inputs such as company
specific financial information (Note 21).

EEABEREEREZEGERZBITEETA
LWERBBES M 2[R ERkS—FREE]RF
MoEPR o R2016F3A31H @ ZZRTHE
BZARBE ARG AEA10258 &8 L (2015
F:6025EBIL) - BERBANER ZHTE
KR%E RAREERBRITBETISITHEHR
HEEERABER - ARAIEEHE &%
LIRITERN2016F3 A3 BB RBE R R
FIEMTERBY  RREABBH —F
(20156F  ZEWMF)RNEE - B XE& X
FMERESREERES A193.8F 8 E L (2015
F:7062HEEIL) °

EA B HERE K FTET AR RN E T @
RERTERBAKERBZHEACNEZH
EREENZSSH RENHEHRNE
B ZEERAR/RAEBERBLHEMNE
Al 88 o AT - MR RFE T RBEER
TR EBHRAABEMETE - M1k AT e 1 BIAR F
EERETAKENEEERARZEERR
M AT BE1E

AFfE
EREERERBBZAFENRNATTN

o ABMEBEEMALAAULNERRBTS
BEEZemMEEZATFEDZEMNSEAR

EBmMEE: &

s HheMEERERMAB(TREILE
TR ZAFEDIRE-REBEIEER
N WIRBBRBE RN

REVBHRERPERBIELTRAES &
AEERDERUTEEMSH ASIE LT
BRGABBNARBEMBEEEAFE
FrE(MsE21) °



41. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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N BASRASTEEERSE
BR AT

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

ER- v BEBT

Bank balances and cash RITHHKRLIRA S 4,718.0 5,520.0

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March
2016 were in the range of 0.01% to 2.30% (2015: 0.01% to 2.63%)
per annum. The directors of the Company consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of
the reporting period approximates their corresponding fair value.

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties, leasehold land and
buildings and properties held for sale, at the carrying value of
HK$278.8 million (2015: HK$869.7 million), nil (2015: HK$23.4
million) and HK$757.4 million (2015: HK$1,114.6 million),
respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not pledged any bank
deposits (2015: HK$83.7 million) to secure banking facilities.

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SRITHE BN 2016 F3 AT H ZER A REF
) F+0.01% £ 2.30%(2015%F : 0.01% £ 2.63%)
ZEEARN RRBEERABAEEBNRITE
HBEBESRBEHR IREMERMAEAFE
& -

42. EEKH

R2016F3A31H ' BREED 5 A278.87
&5 T (20154 : 869.7 HEB L) * (2015
F:234FHEBIL) R757.48 8% (2015
F:1146a88T) 2 TREME HE
THREFURBIEREDECEALREER
ZETFHRITERZER -

R2016FE3 A31H » AEE I & BE IR

TER (20154 1 83.7EEE L) EAIRTT
EEBEZEA-

43. FAREE

2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Guarantees given, to the extent of the AAREB LB AR - Stk E
Group’s proportionate share, inrespectof ~ RATAI KA L AT EFENRTEE
banking facilities granted to an investee BIEH Z R (Mita)
company and a joint venture (note a) 132.0 164.9
Guarantees given by a subsidiary inrespect MiB AT MAEBMEERER 2
of mortgage facilities granted to purchasers  IRIBE R EEEL 2 1R (MtiEb)
of the Group’s properties (note b) 142.2 19.6

Notes:

(@ No provision financial guarantee contracts has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition and the
amount of provision to be recognised subsequently was insignificant.

(b) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts are insignificant at initial recognition and no provision for
financial guarantee contracts has been made at the end of the reporting period as
the directors of the Company consider that the possibility of default of the parties
involved is remote.

BFE

@ ARBEFERL ANVIABBOFBERZATE
REESTHIANBESBLTEN KA BEREE Y
BHENERTBRERAL ZBE -

b ARAEFERAR ZEUBEREHZIAFERTNR
BRBEITTEX ARREERBR/EMALEN AR
MR SR RE AR BRI B ERE N LS -
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44, COMMITMENTS

44, e

2016 2015
HK$’M HKS$'M
BEET BEAT
Contracted but not provided for in the EENERNGZEEMBHRESD
consolidated financial statements: VER S -
Expenditure in respect of properties BIELECER/ZRTPWE
held for/under development for sale 2 EHE 2,184.8 740.7
Capital expenditure in respect of WEMEURDE BE MKE
investment properties and property, B A IE
plant and equipment 528.3 7741
Others Hib 24.5 39.0
2,737.6 1,553.8

The outstanding capital commitments in respect of the Group’s
interest in Dazhongli is disclosed in Note 20.

45. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due

AEMP AR BN ASFEREEDR
M 5E 207 55 o
45. FHE =7 HE

ANEEREMEA
R MK - AR BRI L0 RIBF 2 R A
WS R E AR A TR X2 R
RS o R E T

as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAET BEAT
Within one year —F R 18.5 26.4
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZEFERLF(RDREEREWME) 8.3 20.3
Over five years AFEMNUE - 7.2
26.8 53.9

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are

negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed

for an average term of one to two years.

GERERENAEERARATNER
ETESREA2ES - BETHEI AR
F TH-EMERRARTE -



THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned from investment properties and
other properties during the year was HK$314.6 million (2015:

HK$347.1 million) in aggregate, of which HK$307.6 million (2015:

HK$340.4 million) was generated from investment properties of
the Group. Investment properties and other properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,679.2 million (2015:
HK$7,729.2 million) were held for rental purposes at the end of
the reporting period. Depreciation charge for the year in respect
of other properties was HK$1.3 million (2015: HK$1.3 million).
The properties held have committed tenants for a period from
one to thirteen years. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum leases payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

173

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

AEBESEEA

REMENREMMERFARDNzMERS
WAGHB314.68 88T (2015% - 3471
BEHBT) Eh307.68 8B T (20154 -
304B BB ) REAEBIREYME - ¥R
EHIR BREEA 767928 &8 T (2015
F 772028 8BB )2 REMEREMY
ENBEHERR -AFERNEHREMYE
ZHWELZHR13BEABL(2015F : 138 8
B B AMEHEARNERA =1+
ZFRE -RBEPR - AEBCHETAE
FPaI4) MBETAUREEEREN T H
Az ARSEREMFTOT

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEER BEAT

Within one year —F R 265.6 222.9
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEERLF (BREEREME) 290.2 149.0
Over five years HFEE 6.3 10.6

562.1 382.5
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46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
HONG KONG

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) with employer’s voluntary contributions has been
established on 1 December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 effective 1 June
2014 for the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable of HK$29.7 million (2015: HK$34.0 million) to the MPF
Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes less forfeitures of HK$3.3 million (2015: HK$3.1 million)
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to completion of
the qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable in future years (2015: nil).

THE PRC AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in the PRC and overseas are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local governments in relevant
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and recognise
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
these schemes are to make the specified contributions and
recognise the respective retirement pay in accordance with
terms set out in the schemes and relevant jurisdiction
requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-
mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$3.6 million (2015: HK$3.3 million).

46. 3B K 18 7 5 &
BB
B2 I AT 5B R - 38 1 AT

8 ([EEesT8 ) EEFEEERER
2000F 12 H1H &L °

RBRBEEFEZKEMS  AEENIREH
TERAZE% @RS S - BB S
Tz = A HEE KA LR A30,000/8 7T (R
2014456 A1 B AR - M ATH SRR B AT
HRIEARTT

REZNBRZEBBAEAEBRIEZREST
ERTECHEREMBN 2 HFH207TEELT
(20154 : 34.0E &HF L) W B THE =K
BERBRBSHANBRAAEEMIR Z H5E
S33EEBIL(2015F :31EEETT) °

RBEHR TREREBE TREZFRIKE
HEH &R Wz 3R - itk & KA R R 2R
BUF 2 AR I0ER (20166 : &) -

BB Ko S

AEETEREIMEE SAERRDEERS
B2 BRAERE BERKEHETE 2K
B - AEEARIEXRAZEEADLEHAE
Bl RERBRENTE A

ToRMFAEME  AKEZE-FETH
EHPTRE 2 ] YIRBZE 8 2 HH K
ERREBEEBEZRERATBZEKRE -

AR B AR ZFTENEZNKRZ
BN A% E3.68EBT(20156F : 338 8%
JL) °



47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

(@) Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have their
principal place of operations in Hong Kong are as follows:

31 March 2016
2016F3H31H

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik .Z 75

47. TEWELAE BE QT
R&EERT

(@) BB MM T R * BB E
B2 EERBAARENT

31 March 2015
201563 A 318

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
AEEREZ KEERBLZ
ARER EERTRA IR BETRA R EEER
HK$ % HK$ %
B ARl B ERE:S
Ace Spring Limited 1 100 1 100 Property investment
TRARAR MERE
Active Future Limited 1 100 N/A N/A Property investment
BRARAR TEm TER  ERE
Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000 45.6° 1,500,000 456" Trading of medical and dental
equipment and supplies
BEBRETRREREER
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) Limited 2 100 2 100 Provision of cancer treatment
service and diagnostic imaging
service
RABRDAR RS RER R
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000 100 10,000 100 Investment holding
ZEBEBHRARRA REER
Beaufort Hotels Limited 1 100 1 100 Provision of hotel management
services
REBEERRE
Cardiomed Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
TEREERAA REER
Discovery Bay Commercial Services Limited 2 50" 2 50" Commercial leasing agent
BREREREER LA HEHEERE
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50" 400,000 50" Operation of a shipyard
LiEMIE
Discovery Bay Financial Services Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of financial services to
MRENBREERAF first hand purchasers of
properties in Discovery Bay
MRRENE, —FERRENE
PR
Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of club facilties
AR EERRREERAR REEGHRM
Discovery Bay Hotel Limited 2 50" 2 50" Hotel operator

EEEE
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31 March 2016
2016331 H

31 March 2015
201543 A31H

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEREZ AEEREZ
NAER BRITRA R 1 BRETRA BE  FTEEHR
HK$ % HK$ %
B ARt B ERL
Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of club facilities
R EEREERAA REEMRIE
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of property agency
MRENERRAR services
RAEMERRRS
Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of club facilities
R ERESERAA Rt EmRE
Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company Limited 2 50" 2 50" Road tunnel operator
MRERBRRAR BiEEE
Discovery Bay Services Management Limited 2 50" 2 50" Estate manager and principal
MRERGEEEERAA lessee of communication
network in Discovery Bay
EREBRARERABEITE
ERA
Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of bus and garage
RMREXBREERAA services
RECTREERS
Discovery Bay Transportation Services Limited 2 50" 2 50" Provision of ferry services
R EnERKERAR REVERRS
Emwell Limited” N/A N/A 2 49 Property investment
REARAD" FEM TER NERE
Excel Pointer Limited™ N/A N/A 1 29.4  Property investment
EERBERAR” TEHR TEA MERE
Fame Wood Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EIRERAR MmERE
Gains Century Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
EIMARAR RAER
Grace Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BEREBRRA MERE
Greenyield Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
RAERAA MERE
Hagent Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EHRERRAT MERE
Hanison Contractors Limited” N/A N/A 2 49 Property construction
RBLEARAR TEA TER ES



31 March 2016
20165 3H31H

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

31 March 2015
201553 A31H

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital to the Group Principal activities
AEBEREZ AEERBZ
ARAER ERTRA MR BEITRA i TEEH
HK$ % HK$ %
B Aft BT ER:E:A
Hanison Construction Company Limited” N/A N/A 60,001,000 49 Property construction
ERREERAF TEA ~EA MERE
Hanison Estate Services Limited” N/A N/A 2 49 Provision of property management
BBYEREERAR" TEA TEA services
RENZERRL
Hanison Interior & Renovation Limited” N/A N/A 4,200,000 49 Provision of interior and renovation
EREARBEERAR" TER FER services
REFA R A ERS
Hanison Project Management Limited® N/A N/A 2 49 Provision of property leasing and
BBEEREEER A TEA TEA marketing services and project
management
RALYZETE & R 5 BRI AR
HEER
Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited 10,100,000 57.05 10,100,000 57.05 Provision of dental health and care
BRIRNEEMERAR services and operation of dental
clinics
REFHREEERE REETR
D
Health & Care Group Limited 20,510,000 57.05 20,510,000 57.05 Investment holding and its
BREEEEERAT subsidiaries are engaged in
development and operation of
dental clinic chain
REEZR - MAMBLRAIREE
RREEEETHDM
Healthway Medical Centres Limited 1 100 1 100 Operation of medical centres
REREROERAR BEBEDL
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100 Property investment
MERE
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited 389,243,374.35™ 50" 389,243,374.35" 50" Investment holding and property
ARREBRAT development
BREERRDEERE
HKR (PRC) Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
BREZE (PE) ERAA REER
HKR Limited 2 100 2 100 Property management
BERBENEERRA MEER
HKR Properties Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EREE (M%) BRAA NERE
Kinter Limited 1 100 N/A N/A Property investment
RERRAR Byl NER  WERE
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31 March 2016
2016331 H

31 March 2015
201543 A31H

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEREEZ AEEREZ
NAER BRITRA R BRETRA BE  FTEEHR
HK$ % HK$ %
BT BAl BT BAt
Lam Island Development Company Limited 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99  Property development
MERESHRAR MEER
Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment
MAMBRAR WERE
Million Hope Industries Limited® N/A N/A 11,000,000 49 Supply and installation of building
EFTE2ERAT TER TEA materials
HIERZERENR
Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 20 100 Property investment
MERE
Partner Ally Limited 1,000 75 1,000 75 Investment holding
FAKBRRA REAER
Pearl Development Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BEERARAR WERE
Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000,000 80 3,000,000 80 Operation of diabetic and
HHEEEERAT endocrine disorders clinics and
provision of cardiac treatment
BERRRRADBEBD AR
REUERLE
Quebostage Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BHERAA MERE
Rainbow Alpha Holdings Limited 1 75 1 75 Property development
RERRERAR NEERE
Retailcorp Limited” N/A N/A 2 49 Sales of health products
TENEERAT TEHR TER HERRER
Royston Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
RREEREBERRA REER
Sanney Limited” N/A N/A 1 49 Property development
BEERAF FER TER NEER
Smaragdine Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development
IS
TCS Project Management Limited 2 100 2 100 Provision of project management
services
RALE R ERRE
Tai Kee Pipes Limited” N/A N/A 2,000,000 49 Trading of building materials
FERAF TER TER BEREMH



31 March 2016
20165 3H31H

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

31 March 2015
201553 A31H

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital to the Group Principal activities
AEBEREZ AEERABZ
ARAER ERTRA MR BEITRA i TEEH
HK$ % HK$ %
B Aft BT ER:E:A
Trigon Building Materials Limited® N/A N/A 2 49 Supply and installation of building
EEERIERAR" TEA TEA materials
HIERZRREN
Triple Sky Limited” N/A N/A 1 49 Property development
TEA ~EA MEER
Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100 100,000 100 Property management, estate
BlaMERBERAT manager and investment
holding
MEREREERNRREER
Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100 1,000 100 Property management and estate
BERYEEEERAA manager
WERERER
Yintaly Construction Company Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

2HRETIEARAR

*  Include ordinary shares in the value of HK$1,000 and deferred shares in the
value of HK$60,000,000. The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders are
neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at any general meetings nor to
receive any dividend out of operating profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

**According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong Resort Company
Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to control more than half of the voting powers
of the board of directors (which determines the relevant activities) of HKRC and its
subsidiaries.

*** |n addition to 1 ordinary share, 100% in the value of HK$389,243,373.85
deferred shares are also held by the Group. The deferred shares held by the Group
are shares whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote
at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of operating profit and
have very limited rights on return of assets of the company.

* Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as a subsidiary of the
Company as it is a 80%-owned subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited (‘H&C”)
which in turn is a 57.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company has
control over the board of directors of H&C and Almedco.

* The Group had control over Excel Pointer Limited as it was a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Hanison group. However, Excel Pointer Limited was disposed
of in July 2015. Details see Note 38(a).

% These companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company upon the
distribution of Hanison (as defined in Note 1) shares to the Company’s
shareholders on 3 November 2015 as interim dividend by way of distribution in
specie.

ES T

* BIEEE 1,000 7T 2 E B AR & & (860,000,000 7T
ZIBEERG c EERMD 2 R EEF DB - HET
MRERE RANE HIRE - IFEE R BRI & &E R
AERZEAMBRE  REEAXZMBEAREEBERZEAR
[l R AEF -

* REEEAREXERAR(EEBAE]) 2R RWHE
SERUZHESHRERAMNBARZEETE REAM
MRE)BeYE IR

> BRERAEIREBERIN AEBETEB100%EE
389,243,373.85/ 8 ;L 2 IEIE R 1 - NEB B IELERMD 2
R EENERAYN HETAREASERAE LIE
ZNERFIRBEEERMNPIRZEMBRE - REHE
BHZARIEFTBR 2 EEDRET -

* @ Allmedco Group Limited ([Allmedco |) /& 18 2 52 &
EEERAA(ERDEARER ZHB AR MEHR
Bl A7~ B B 57.05% 1 7 2 i B A 7]+ # Almedco# 5
BEAARARARZWB AR - ARARHEREFKAImedcoZ £H
eHEFEGE-

OAREEUERERAREERNE  REARLEAERK
SEIFZEWBAR - AR EEBRAFER2015F7
A& - 5155 R M 538 ©

b ZERARR2015F 11 ASBUREM S IR2EAAAA
AR IR EEE (EERMED)ROIEARBRBETE
BARRARKKB AR -
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(b) Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

b)) EMTEWBAGIFEEOT :

20163310 201563 A31H
Nominal value Nominal value
of issued Equity of issued Equity
Place of Principal share capital/ interest share capital/ interest
incorporation/ place of registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of company registration operation capital to the Group capital tothe Group  Principal activities
TEEE ERTRE/ ARERF BEARE/ AEERE
ARER AMRL/ BT LY BB HMERZEE ZRE AMERzEE ZRE  TEEH
% %
BAk Antt
Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil 100 Nil 100 Securities investment
FLESE B # id EHRE
Abraham Investment Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands ~~ Note* US$1 100 USSt 100 Securities investment
Limited ERABRES e 157 1£T EHRE
AmMed International Corporation Cayman Islands Note™ US$179,999.96 100 US$179,999.96 100 Investment holding
Ltd. HeHs i 179,999.96 % T 179,999.96% 7L REER
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Note™ HK$10,197,932 100 HK$10,197,932 100 Investment holding
HEHE M & 10,197,932 1t 10,197,932 7T REEZR
Beaufort International Hotels Singapore Singapore $$1,000,000 100 $$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte Ltd M il JPY420,240,000 JPY420,240,000 REER
1,000,000 7o 1,000,0003% 7T
420,240,000 B 420,240,000 H
CDW Building Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$5,100,002 100 HK$5,100,002 100 Property investment
HEHs BE 5,100,002 7T 5,100,002 7. MERE
GenRx Holdings Limited British VirginIslands ~ Note*™ US$t 100 US§$1 100 Investment holding
fEAERERAR ERABRES ik 127 Ev REER
Hanbright Assets Limited British VirginIslands ~ Note™ US$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
EBAARESE i 157 E REER
Hanison Construction Holdings ~ Cayman Islands Hong Kong N/A N/A HK$53,631,564 49 Construction, interior and
Limited* Hems Bk ER TEA 53,631,564 78 T renovation works, supply and
FRsRIRRRARAR" installation of building materials,
property investment and
development, provision of
property agency and
management services and
sales of health products
BE RHREETRE HEH
REREME WERER
R REMERBERER
BRBARHEERRER
Health & Care (Macau) Dental Macau Macau MOP25,000 57.05 MOP25,000 57.05  Operation of dental clinic in Macau
Group Limited BF R 25,0002 T 25,000/2F9 7 EAEFEE TP
e (&F9) THEEERAR
Healthway Philippines, Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP19,137,500 100 PHP19,137,500 100 Investment holding
FEE FHEE 19137500 FZERE 19,137 5003 R E R & EER
HK Resort International Limited ~ Cayman Islands Note™ HK$2 100 HK$2 100 Investment holding
FEHE i 2% 2B REER



31 March 2016
20163 H31H

EBFEEEREBERADE 2015/2016 F3R

31 March 2015
2015%3A31H

Nominal value Nominal value
of issued Equity of issued Equity
Place of Principal share capital/ interest share capital/ interest
incorporation/ place of registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of company registration operation capital to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
TEEE BRATREA/ AKEEEE BEARE/ AREEHRE
ARER AMRL/BTHE BB EZMEAZEE ZRE AMERZEE ZiRE TEEH
% %
Bak ERa
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$5,000,000 100 585,000,000 100 Investment holding
Hmsg HME JPY6,872,780,000 JPY6,872,780,000 REER
THB24,700,000 THB24,700,000
5,000,000 7T 5,000,000 % 7
6,872,780,000 A E 6,872,780,000 H
24,700,000% # 24,700,000%
HKR China Limited British VirginIslands ~~ Note™ US$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
ERRETEBRDA HEABRER i 127 1ET REER
HKR Japan KK Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Property investment
AR AR 10,000 B 10,0008 [El MELE
HKR Shanghai Limited British VirginIslands ~~ Note™ Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
ERERX LEBRAR HEEMRED B 3 1%57 E REER
HKRJ Akasaka TMK Japan Japan JPY2,700,100,000 100 JPY2,700,100,000 100 Property investment
AR AR 2,700,100,000 B 2,700,100,000 B MERE
HKRJ Development Co., Ltd. Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Property investment
BA BA 10,000 A [ 10,0008 NERE
HKRJ Graphio GK* Japan Japan JPY2,000,000 100 JPY2,000,000 100 Property investment
AR AR 2,000,000 B 2,000,000 H MELE
HKRJ Roppongi TMK Japan Japan JPY4,125,200,000 100 JPY4,125,200,000 100 Property development
AR AR 4,125,200,000 B 4,125,200,000 H NELR
HKRJ Souei GK™ Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 N/A N/A Property investment
BA = 1,000,000 A & TEA TER  DERE
HMG, Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP10,250,000 100 PHP10,250,000 100 Operation of medical clinics
FREE FEE 10,250,000 2 B K & 10,250,000 BB HE BEBEDM
Hojo Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore JPY2,023,260,000 100 JPY?2,023,260,000 100 Investment holding
EiipIEd b 2,023,260,000 A 2,023,260,0008 RAERR
Mantle Investments Limited British VirginIslands ~ Note* US$t 100 US$1 100 Securities investment
HEABARES i 1£7 1% EHRE
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 S$2 100 Investment holding
HR HR 2T 28T REER
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore S$2 100 S$2 100 Property investment
M g JPY1,362,730,000 JPY1,362,730,000 MERE
2T 2T

1,362,730,000 B

1,362,730,000 B
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31 March 2016
20163 A31H

31 March 2015
20154 3A31H

Nominal value Nominal value
of issued Equity of issued Equity
Place of Principal share capital/ interest share capital/ interest
incorporation/ place of registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of company registration operation capital to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
TEEE BRTREA/ AKEEEE BEARE KAEEEE
ARER AMBIL/BTHE Y HMER 2 HE ZRE AMEAZEE ZhRE  ETEEHR
% %
AAl AL
Sathorn Park Co., Ltd. Thailand Thailand THB933,600,000 100 THB933,600,000 100 Hotel operator and owner
£ £ 933,600,000 % &k 933,600,000 % & BEREEEE
Sky Phoenix Enterprises Limited  British VirginIslands ~ Hong Kong US$t 100 USSt 100 Investment holding
ERABARES B0 127 1ET REER
Suki Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore S$1 100 S$1 100 Investment holding
g s JPY673,750,000 JPY673,750,000 REER
187 1R
673,750,000 A & 673,750,000 H
MEEE (M) BRAFT  PRC PRC HK$760,000,000 100 N/A N/A  Property development
HE HE 760,000,000 7T TER TEBR  PEER
B (H8) EEEHERAA" PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 US$1,500,000 100 Property management
3 HE 1,500,000 % 7 1,500,000% 7T MEER
FREREEERAR PRC PRC HK$650,000,000 100 HK$650,000,000 100 Property development
s H 650,000,0007% 7T 650,000,000 7T nEER
B (L§) #BEMAR’  PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment
Gl e 14,000,000 % 7T 14,000,000% 70 NERE

*  These companies are engaged in securities investment business of the Group

and have no specific principal place of operation.

** These companies act as investment holding companies and have no specific

principal place of operation.

* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

#H

of the companies by contractual terms.

A

The Group can enjoy all economic beneficial interest, instead of equity interest,

Hanison (as defined in Note 1) ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company upon

the distribution of Hanison shares to the Company’s shareholders on 3 November

2015 as interim dividend by way of distribution in specie.

C WMERARREAEEZEFREXY BMRERE
ZEBZEEMH -

* WERRAREERAR EMRAERECETEEE
o

" REARBRNELE-
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\

¥OARERANGRAZEZST AR R
a0 M IEB AR AR

A ERS(EERM 1) R2015F11 ASAEUNEY DR 2
KAARARBRRDIKREBEROIERTHREETHAR
NEIHEAF -



(c) Details of principal associates are as follows:

31 March 2016

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

© FTEMERRFBEMOT :

31 March 2015

2016 20154
3A31H 3H31H
Attributable Attributable
Place of interest held interest held
Name of company incorporation by the Group by the Group Principal activities
AEBE TR REBE TR
DNEER R 3L 3t 26 L s EiaExz ETEER
% %
Bat Bt
Morpheus Real Estate Fund L.P.* Cayman Islands N/A 20 Investment holding and its subsidiaries
REMHS TEAR are engaged in property investment
in Japan
BEEBREEMBRARANBALSE
MERE
Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial services to first
BERERDA BB hand purchasers of Coastal Skyline
REXEGFE—FERRHUERS
Tung Chung Station Development Hong Kong 31 31 Property investment
Company Limited & MERE

* The sole investment property, namely Chelsea Garden, of the partnership was
disposed of on 20 June 2014 and the partnership was dissolved on 10 July 2015.

(d) Details of principal joint ventures are as follows:

31 March 2016

* ABDEZ M1 E Y (B Chelsea Garden) B 722014
FEH0BHWIEE  ZABCENDNR2015F7 108
2 o

d F2ELRFFBENT :

31 March 2015

2016 F 20154
3A31H 3A31H
Attributable Attributable
Place of interest held interest held
Name of company incorporation by the Group by the Group Principal activities
EEB R rEEMF
DNRER B 3L 3 B EihER FElE#E & TEEK
% %
BO ERs¢
Advantage Investor Limited British Virgin Islands 50 50 Property development
REREBRES MEER
Dazhongli Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 50 50 Investment holding
R BEMEERAT HEARRES REER
Everbeam Investments Limited Hong Kong 50 50 Property development
EAREERAA BE MEER
BE (LE) RHEZEERAR" PRC 50 50 Property development
H MEER
e (LE) BHEFBERAR PRC N/A 50  Property development
H FER MEER
BE (1B RHEZEERAT" PRC N/A 50 Property development
H TEA MEER
City Grace Co., Ltd. Thailand 49 49 Property development
S MERR

* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises. The merger of &% (_+/8)

FHEZERERAR (BE), BE(LSFHEERARAR (AL

) and SHE (-

BEHEERAR AT (YL with T2 as the surviving company completed in
October 2015. 2 and 1 were deregistered on 19 October 2015.

HERTRBIELE -BE(LBE)FHEXRAR
~E(BE)) A (L FHEERARATN(TAEE])
ong (LB FiERRARAR (DHE]) M E I
BERTFEARNEFER2015F10ATK - BE KH
LIRE 201510 A 19 B HsH LB -
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(e) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

© BEEAFBRESZF2EWBAT
2 i

TREINABEAFERER ZARFIFEE
BB AR ZFFIT:

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting

Profits (losses)

Place of rights held by non- allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary incorporation controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
FERER
FEBERERR SEFHERES
B 2 R & B 3L it B REREZLH 2aH(E58) Rt FERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
EEBT BEPT AEBT BESRT
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited Hong Kong 50% 50% 261.4 397.3 2,215.3 2,095.5
and its subsidiaries (note i) &
BERBEERRARR
HCf B8 R (B FE D)
Hanison group (as defined in Note 1) Cayman Islands N/A 51% 103.4 2821 - 965.5
(note i) HEHS TEA
FRs R E(EER M) (i)
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (6.0) 6.3) (12.1) 6.1)
with non-controlling interests
BEAFEERER 2 @53 E R
{oy=pN|
358.8 673.1 2,203.2 3,054.9
Notes: B aE

(i) Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
development, management and provision of essential and recreational services for
residential housing and leisure projects principally in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.

(i) Prior to the completion of distribution in specie by the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Company had only 48.47% ownership interest and
voting rights in Hanison, the directors of the Company concluded that the
Company had sufficiently dominant voting interests to direct the relevant activities
of Hanison on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of shareholding and the
relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by other shareholders.
As disclosed in Note 1, Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company
upon the distribution of Hanison shares to the Company’s shareholders on 3
November 2015 as interim dividend by way of distribution in specie.

() BEEXARAALENBARIERETHERRE
BARAE LRSS ETET RAMER L REREM

(i) NEZE2016F3A3IALEEARAEXEYH IR
A BEARARNEBER G847 EE SRS
BARARERFZERE ERNASEERER 2 BEHFR
EUREMBRRMESREZAUBERSBREE &
A B A DA TS LB A AR B XS o S BT
FE1FTEEA - R2015F 11 BSAAEM IR ZEAAAR
AIREDIREBRDIEATERER  BEEETHA
ARABHKHBAR -



Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of
each of the Company’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below. The summarised

EBFEEEREBERADE 2015/2016 F3R

consolidated financial information below represents amounts SEE o

before intergroup elimination.

BRBAEAFERED 2 ARAEWEB R
BIZEEMBERBMEBIINMT - TR
HAVBERBEZ2B I REREHEA

HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS EEHEEBRA A RENE
SUBSIDIARIES /NES]
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Current assets TMHEE 2,415.9 2,503.0
Non-current assets EREBEE 3,686.7 3,605.3
Current liabilities BB & (675.9) (928.0)
Non-current liabilities FEreaE (965.7) (958.7)
Equity attributable to the owners of the KRARER ANELER

Company 2,245.7 2,126.1

Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE S 2,215.3 2,095.5

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3AMALEE

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

ER- 3% BEET

Revenue e A 1,680.0 2,577.2

Expenses 5 X (1,157.2) (1,782.7)
Profit attributable to the owners of the KRAREE AEIRRT]

Company 261.4 397.2
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests  FF 128 A% #E 25 & 14 ' Fl 261.4 397.3
Profit for the year N4 JE 5 F 522.8 794.5
Other comprehensive income attributable AREEE ABGEHM2E K Z

to the owners of the Company 8.5 -
Other comprehensive income attributable JEERR R EMME MmN S

to non-controlling interests 8.4 -
Other comprehensive income for the year KEFHME2EKE 16.9 -
Total comprehensive income attributable KRARBEEABLEARSERE

to the owners of the Company 269.9 397.2
Total comprehensive income attributable IR ENEEEEm KA

to non-controlling interests 269.8 397.3
Total comprehensive income for the year ARFEEZEWZELEE 539.7 794.5
Dividends paid to non-controlling B A FE 15 BR AR 3R R A5 IR

shareholders 150.0 -
Net cash (outflows) inflows (used in) from CEERFIAMERS (RE)

operating activities MAEEE (248.2) 1,795.9
Net cash outflows used in investing activites & EBFTAIR € K H F58 (88.4) (101.3)
Net cash outflows used in financing activities gt & E BT AR € % B F 58 (299.7) (976.7)
Net cash (outflows) inflows Re R mAFE (636.3) 77.9
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HANISON GROUP s &2
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAET BEAT
Current assets mENEE = 2,054.4
Non-current assets EREBEE = 1,401.1
Current liabilities mEBE - (1,616.1)
Non-current liabilities FmEBAE = (22.3)
Equity attributable to the owners of the RNAGHA ANEERER
Company - 851.6
Non-controlling interests IR R = - 965.5
For the
period from For the
1 April to year ended
3 November 31 March
2015 2015
2015F #E ZE2015%F
4818 =& 3A31H It
113 HME FE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEAT
Revenue I@N 1,592.8 2,095.2
Expenses -3 (1,403.5) (1,607.7)
Profit attributable to the owners of the RRARER ANEMLER
Company 85.9 205.4
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests — FF 1% i% #& 25 & {4 )i 7 103.4 282.1
Profit for the period/year NERRE/F R T 189.3 487.5
Other comprehensive expense attributable 2N A T % B A FE(G E b 2 E B 2
to the owners of the Company (0.8) (1.0
Other comprehensive expense attributable  ZE¥ERRHES B b 2 E I X
to non-controlling interests (0.8) -
Other comprehensive expense for RNEARE/ R A A 2 HF X
the period/year (1.6) (1.0
Total comprehensive income attributable RATHEABEEZERERE
to the owners of the Company 85.1 204.4
Total comprehensive income attributable RS ELNEEREREE
to non-controlling interests 102.6 282.1
Total comprehensive income for AEE/ FEEHEKELE
the period/year 187.7 486.5
Dividends paid to non-controlling B\ FE 12 AR AR BROR 5 AR B
shareholders (9.5) (14.5)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from (used in) EIEEBEFTA)ESR
operating activities (FR) F58 593.3 (79.9)
Net cash (outflows) inflows (used in) from REEESFTAR)FBEREE (RE)
investing activities A FRR (963.1) 88.1
Net cash inflows (outflows) from (used in) BEEHE (TR BEER
financing activities () F 58 638.3 (31.2)
Net cash inflows (outflows) HeERACRD) FE 268.5 (22.2)




Details of financial information of Hanison group after intergroup
elimination for the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015
and for the year ended 31 March 2015 is disclosed in Note 12.

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, other than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort
Holdings Limited, Hanbright Assets Limited, HK Resort
International Limited, HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd and HKR China
Limited, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 33, no other loan
capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, other than transaction disclosed in Note 38(a)
and balances with related parties as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, the Group had significant
transactions/balances with related parties as follows:

(@) Transactions with entities controlled (or jointly controlled as
joint venture) by CCM Trust, and certain discretionary trusts of
which four (2015: four) directors of the Company are among the
discretionary beneficiaries at the end of the reporting period. The

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

HE2015FE4 1B E2015F 11 AR AR EE
Z2015F3AB B L FENEBERNEE
NEHENT IS ERFBRM 120 HE -

¥k Abraham Holdings Limited + Beaufort Holdings
Limited + Hanbright Assets Limited * HK Resort
International Limited * HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd
RERBBEHEFGR QAN Ltﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
MEBAR BEARMAERFRHHAR
MR -

ARREERS L%%ZEIJ‘%“TK’EI%Fi

ﬁf?ﬁEK%;ZKEIWE Rk /N
T&/\**"T s ARAEER '#Wﬁﬁﬂ
ERp-=N 6%%*“7&/\**”7 STERB
ﬁ’éﬁﬁo

BRI SE33FT S 2 B FTE 5N - B AR AT P /BB
NAEITEMBEERA -

48. BB S R 5

BRINFT FE38(a) T BE 2 R 5 MR & B A5 AR
%ﬁﬁ?iﬁifﬁ B n 2 RSN AREF AR
EITZERRS/EHRAT

(@) ECCMTrust k& T BB (E7E (R & H
AARRAIEA (2016 - IR)EEHEBIB
REAN)ESZER(EIARENZ262R
_J)LTTZX% ZEEENZEEREAN

trusts have controlling beneficial interests in these entities and NBEEE SRR
the Company:
2016 2015
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEAT
Transactions with the entities: HZEEBIR S
Rental income received EUWE 2 A 6.4 6.2
Management service fee received BB ERREE 1.2 4.3
Other services provided iR 2 Eth AR 7 0.2 0.2
Transactions with the entities that are HZEER RS (THEREE
entered into by Hanison group: HIVAE
Construction income received B E 2 I A - 7.5
Project management income and site BUE 2 T8 B & 1R U A AR B R
supervision service income received PR 75 U A 1.7 4.0
Project management income and site AEEARINRZEEEEBRKAR
supervision service income from A48 BS B AR A UL A
a joint venture 0.9 1.6
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Bt 35 3R AR Y 5

(b) Transactions with Hanison group: (o) HEBEER RS
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT
Construction service fees (note) e 30.1 -

Balance with Hanison group by 8 Bt 7 B s 5 B Y A B
a related party:

Advance from a non-controlling shareholder  3E1Z IR AR B 2 v 3 - 76.2

Note: During the year, the Group has construction service fees paid to Hanison
group of HK$32.3 million (2015: HK$81.5 million) of which HK$2.2 million (2015:
HK$81.5 million) has been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group:

BIaE s RAFE  REBEREBERITOZERES
RBRIFEBT(2015F 1 81.5EBET) 228 &%
TL(2015%F : 816 E&B L) ENRA M B MR P L8 -

© BAEBEBEARNMAERFZRS

2016 2015

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

Rental income received from a joint venture A& & A RIUEL Z FA & W A 0.5 0.4
Management fee and other operating service B4 ARIMMZ BB B K&

fees received from an associate Ha &L RisE 0.3 1.1

Management fee and other operating service M& & QA alllz EEE &

fees received from a joint venture Ha &L Ris & 29.7 28.8
Construction income received from a joint A2 QR WE ZZEW A

venture 21.5 -

Interest income received from an associate  [A1 5 4 2 7 U EL 2 F & Uk A 0.2 0.2

Interest income received from a joint venture  [A] & & 2~ & 4 B 2 F B U A 9.8 10.2

Rental expenses to an associate MEERAZNcHEER (0.1) 0.4)




(d) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group sold a
residential property to a Non-executive Director of the Company
at a consideration of HK$40.5 million (2016: nil).

(e) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

(d) REZ2015F3A31HILFE AEEMRA
KRB —ZIFERTEETHE—HEEME

KRB AHLA05B BB (20164F  £) -

e TEEREAEMNE

EENHEMBTEEEEKRERFA B

management during the year is as follows: BN
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBET aBEET
Short-term employee benefits HHEERT
Fees fidkea 1.8 1.7
Salaries and other benefits FekHMET 20.0 19.3
Performance related incentive payments 4B R 13.8 13.8
35.6 34.8
Post-employment benefit BER 2R A
Retirement benefits schemes contribution RAKAE T ET & ALK 0.2 0.4
Equity-settled share-based payments AN EE AR D BER 2R - 1.6
35.8 36.8

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

EXZRTIBETRABZHMEhFHEES SR
E@EBETRBALRTIZBLEREE -

189



_Z 90 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2015/2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bf % 3R 3% B 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 2201643 A31H I F /&

49. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

49. EEA R T 2 BEARR
x2EH

RBEHRR ARARB ZMBRRAKRZE

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BB
2016 2015
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEKRE 11.5 10.7
Interests in subsidiaries (Note 50) B8~ B4 %= (Y 5£50) 12,128.4 10,724.3
Other assets HE&EE 112.2 112.2
Amounts due from joint ventures FEWE L ANTIHIAE 468.8 460.6
12,720.9 11,307.8
Current assets MEE E
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFEBEREMEREE
other financial assets 100.0 43.7
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNRS 2,329.3 1,021.9
2,429.3 1,065.6
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables, provisions and ENESERR BREREFTER
accrued charges 24.7 19.8
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI ENGIE 5,754.7 4,638.5
Bank and other loans due within one year —FREEBAZEITREMER 192.5 1,742.4
5,971.9 6,400.7
Net current liabilities mEBEFRE (3,542.6) (5,335.1)
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBEE 9,178.3 5,972.7
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank and other loans due after one year —FRBPZRITREMER 6,131.4 2,753.9
Net assets BEFE 3,046.9 3,218.8
Capital and reserves BEARK
Share capital A% 7 337.5 337.5
Reserves (Note 51) 18 (M sE51) 2,709.4 2,881.3
Equity attributable to the owners RATHEE ANEIE#ER
of the Company 3,046.9 3,218.8

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17 June 2016 and is signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

ERR
I EERE FAREHE

BE
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director
#EO0H
HITEF

KRB ZHBEMRAREEEETER2016F6
R17TEH#EREETZE YHTIIESERE



50. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

50. X AT B A RER

2016 2015

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBER BEET

Unlisted shares, at cost ELETG  BERAE 2,604.6 2,688.0
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B /B A R 38

Interest bearing portion (note) s EED (M) 3,370.3 2,684.9

Non-interest bearing portion R EEB D 6,153.5 5,351.4

12,128.4 10,724.3

Note: The amounts are unsecured, bear interest at the prevailing market
borrowing rates and have no fixed terms of repayment.

51. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

=

°

Fak - ZEHAR/BER BRTHSIERN LGB RE
& R

i

Flé

51. XD B &S
{£% 15 o

Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve profits Total
EXEE
% 12 5 8 f# ZEHEF st
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET HEAR BEET HEAR
At 1 April 2014 MR2014F 4 A1 H 1,637.9 3.1 1,082.0 2,623.0
Profit and total comprehensive 72N £ & 35 F1 &
income for the year T HWREE - - 501.3 501.3
Dividends paid 2R S - - (243.0) (243.0)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F 3 A31H 1,5637.9 3.1 1,340.3 2,881.3
Profit and total comprehensive 75 4F & % 7l &
income for the year THEHNEBE - - 84.8 84.8
Dividends paid BIRR S - - (94.5) (94.5)
Dividend by way of LNEMD IR 2 FER
distribution in specie (note) Bk 2 % B (BT %) - - (162.2) (162.2)
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H 1,537.9 3.1 1,168.4 2,709.4

Note: The amount represents the carrying amount of the investment in Hanison
recorded at the Company’s books. Details of the distribution in specie in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements amounting to HK$914.1 million are set
out in Note 1.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders, subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out of
the accumulated profits of the Company, which amounted to
HK$1,168.4 million (2015: HK$1,340.3 million) as at 31 March
2016.

Misk: R BERECARAEFLRZNEBREZE
EE BERAEESREVBBREZENORZSER
QUABE BB FBHAM -

BERSHEANTEFE2E(KEL) AR
Al 2 B E A H o R T AR R kM AR R K
B BERTHEBEEAMIABKERMA
BREmE  MERIKEE  NARIZAEBR
NEERHEEBIRZES - BREAQA
ZHBERMA  ARAFREERR2016F
3A31B 2 K& F1,168.4 5 &% L (2015
F:1,3403B BB L) PREFURERES -
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RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31 March
HZE3ASMBLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERBT BEET BEET AEET BEB
Turnover - 4,238.5 5,421.9 4,207.5 5,298.3 2,656.8
Profit from operations 2@ s 1,311.8 1,959.1 1,463.3 1,264.1 933.7
Finance costs B 158 R (172.0) (202.4) (173.0) (122.5) (68.6)
Share of results of associates 9 (5 Bt & A 7] ¥ 4% (2.3) 9.2 0.3 92.0 29.8
Share of results of joint DA E QR EE
ventures 155.2 15.9 (103.7) 282.3 95.0
Profit before taxation R o AT 58 F 1,292.7 1,781.8 1,186.9 1,515.9 989.9
Taxation Fi1E (150.0) (198.7) (130.9) (177.8) (69.1)
Profit for the year AN E FE % 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0 1,338.1 920.8
Attributable to: T FEAG
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE DN 783.9 910.0 834.6 998.3 746.9
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR HE = 358.8 673.1 221.4 339.8 173.9
Profit for the year N JE % 7 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0 1,338.1 920.8
N
FINANCIAL POSITION B 78 AR R
At 31 March
M3A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERBRT BEST BBEAT BESAT BAEAR
Total assets BE®RE 27,766.9 29,2437 284151  26,686.6 24,873.0
Total liabilities BfERHE (9,507.4) (9,461.1) (9,828.1) (9,011.1)  (8,528.1)
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR HE = (2,208.2) (3,054.9 (2,391.1) (2,183.5)  (1,855.0)
Equity attributable to the KARER A
owners of the Company JE (5 #E = 16,056.3 16,727.7 16,1959  15492.0 14,489.9




A. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER

DEVELOPMENT

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TENEFR

At 31 March 2016 7201653 431 H

A FERR/IBRP YR

Expected Attributable
Gross floor Stage of completion Nature interest to
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) completion date of property the Group
BEEEE &g
#R (EFHFR) ZRABER FEHERA YEME iR
1. The remaining phases, KU |1 1y = &
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island BT & H
(a) Residential [Ea=2 273,061  Construction 2017-2018  Residential 50%
under progress/ =
planning in
progress
TiRgErTH/
HREETH
(o) Commercial mE 64,072  Planning in 2018 Commercial 50%
progress [EES
REETH
(c) Recreation 3 12,228  Planning in 2018 Recreation 50%
progress |52
REEITH
(d) Others (note) Efh (M5 367,289 Not yet No definite plan  Retained for future 50%
commenced MEFFTE development
WA T BIERBBRER
2. Lot no. 1613 in Demarcation FRAEFEN 3,731 Internal fitting 2016 Residential 100%
District no. 222, Kap Pin Long, L EHEF2225; out work in F=
Sai Kung, New Territories b B 161358 progress
NEEE TR
HEATH
3. Tuen Mun Town Lot no. 498, FREM 24,014  Construction 2017  Residential/ 75%
Wu On Street, Area 44, Fa4@ME s (site area) under progress Commercial
Tuen Mun, New Territories 5 P9 T B 408 5% (A MEE) ITRR#ETH FE/EE
4. Xixi Wetland Area in the FETIE 552,925  Planning in 2018 Residential 100%
Yu Hang District, Hangzhou City, i T 82 171 [& (site area)  progress F=E
Zhejiang Province, the PRC Giip=8=8:1) (GhEmEE) REETH
5. Roppongi 4 Chome, Tokyo, BARR 26,373  Construction 2017 Residential 51%
Japan ANAKRET A (site area)  under progress F=
(EmE) IRRETH
Note: The Discovery Bay Project has a total site area of approximately 70 million e : M= 2B LMEEBNATOEE TR - 2 T3

sq. ft.. The remaining development area comprises a total of about 367,289 sq. ft.

of gross building area for recreational development.

R L B IR EMIRA367,280F FIRZ RAEERAM -
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Particulars of Major Properties 3 E ¥ 25 15

At 31 March 2016 72201653 H31H

B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES

B. BAREBEVWEFERES

L ONER =S

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interestto Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
BEEEE rE

BR (FHFR) PEMHE EihEERz BEER

6. 2 houses located at Bijou Hamlet, RNE s EEmeE 5,392 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 2EIEEER =  HA

7. 4 houses located at Headland Village, KU L o =2 R 10,251  Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 4IETEEF B F= FH

8. 11 units comprising lowrise KU gy 5878 16 18,043  Residential 100% Medium
and duplex apartments located at BB (RIEEFRE [E=2 st
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, KRB AEK)
Lantau Island

9. 1 highrise apartment located at AR (L)1 = B 1 1,068 Residential 100% Medium
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay, 11E = BB F=E HHR
Lantau Island

10. 283 highrise apartments located at RNE L= ERRE 15,118 Residential 100% Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 23 &l /= FE B8 AL F=x H HS
Lantau Island

11. 6 midrise apartments and 1 combined unit KU o =2 6,373 Residential 100% Medium
located at DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, 181 5 JE 15 6 1 B B AL F=E Lt
Lantau Island Ko 1 {8 53 88 AL

12. 2 lowrise apartments located at KU o =2 2,483  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, BB — ER F=x HHS
Lantau Island 2 fEME i &8 fif

13. 1 lowrise apartment located at KR L)1y = & 1,315  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, BB B F=E # H
Lantau Island 1 {(E {5 J88 &5 iz

14. 1 lowrise apartment located at KU =8 eEFE 976 Residential 100%  Medium
La Vista, Discovery Bay, 1 {EE B2 B8 i = b
Lantau Island

15. 14/F of Century Tower Il and BB LB FRESR 3,663 Residential 100% Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 on Level 1, 158 R1SRAtE 2 REN F=E = B
Century Tower, 1 and 1A 1418 Rt 2 KE
Tregunter Path, The Peak, Hong Kong F1EEEHZ12REN

16. 5 highrise apartments located at NS 5,477  Residential 100% Medium
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung, EXEF F=E # EA
Lantau Island 518 = B B L

17. 2 highrise apartments located at KU LR 1,838 Residential 100% Medium
Tung Chung Crescent, Tung Chung, IR R *=E # EA

Lantau Island

21E = B B {7



Descriptions

EREEEREEGRAT 2015/2016 Fik

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interest to Category

area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease

BEEEE wEH

B (FHFR) YEHH EiEERz HEER

18. 6 highrise apartments located at VAT 4,524  Residential 100% Medium
Seaview Crescent, Tung Chung, IR R x= i Hf
Lantau Island 618 = B B L

19. 7 residential units and 9 car parking FELEETRER 16,407 Residential 100% Long
spaces of Chelsea Residence, 111 551038 7 169 5% F=E & B
No. 169 of Lane 1038, RRERE_E
Huashan Road, Changning District, 7TEEFEEM ROEEN
Shanghai, the PRC

20. 2 highrise apartments located at KU |1 a0 == 7 75 1 1,438 Residential 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, 2 fE &= BB B AL = R Hf
Lantau Island

21. Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo, HARRR 81,624 Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Horizon Place Akasaka F=E KA FERE

22. Souei Park Harajuku, Tokyo, AARRER 14,040 Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Souei Park Harajuku £ KA FERE

23. Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, Tokyo, BARR 27,314 Commercial 100%  Freehold
Japan Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku [EES KA EERE

24. Commercial Centre, KUt =8 180,910 Commercial 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island R [SES  Ef

25. Shop 401 on Ground Floor, R |1 1y 5 72 785 18 7,417  Commercial 50%  Medium
Coastline Villa, Peninsula Village, WEET I N 401 F [HES R Hf
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

26. Commercial Centre, Yi Pak, RIER o= — A 160,276  Commercial 50% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EELaEN [EES R

27. West Gate Tower, NERDEKEHTR 146,531  Industrial 100% Medium
7 Wing Hong Street and R B85 Iz FH
8 King Lam Street, Cheung Sha Wan, AEBEP L
Kowloon

28. CDW Building, AR E IR 27-37 9 982,777  Industrial (note) 100% Medium
382-392 Castle Peak Road, 1L 38 382-392%% T (M) +
27-37 Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, NG N
New Territories

29. 325 car parking spaces AP 8 R R 225 N/A  Commercial 100% Medium
at Tuen Mun Central Square, B RES THEA B O
22 Hoi Wing Road, Tuen Mun, 32518 Bz
New Territories

30. 3 units of DANS, MAZEINE AilT2-65% 6,837 Industrial 100% Medium
2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, Tsuen Wan, DANG 3 1 8 fif I% HH

Note: The Group has obtained approval to convert the property from industrial to

New Territories

commercial use and the refurbishment works are underway.

M AEECRSENERTXERHEREOI
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C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

C. BEHEYWE

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interest to Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
BEEEE rE
#BR (FHFR) PEMHHE EiEEz HEEA
31. Remaining units of Positano, KRR |1 1y = 7 11,964  Residential 50% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island IR 88 T B8 (L F=E + HA
32. Remaining units of RZEHEA 7,225  Residential 100%  Freehold
The Sukhothai Residences, The Sukhothai (net saleable {£=E KA HEHE
Bangkok, Thailand Residences & T & fiZ area)
CEERAERE)
33. Elite House, FREEETRER 233,763 Residential 100% Long
No. 1310 Ding Xi Road, EEE1310% T=x =3
Changning District, LR
Shanghai, the PRC
34. Remaining units of City One, FEMTTE ZET 511,721  Residential 100% Long
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, BEEE e {28 F=x K
the PRC T E
D. OTHER PROPERTIES D. Hiz¥x
Attributable
Site area interest to
Descriptions (sq.ft.) Nature of property the Group
i 88 T & K
L) (FFR) M¥EMHE iR
35. The remaining portion of Lot no. 373 KU L T2 H) 5835257 23,400 Residential 100%
and Lot no. 374 in Demarcation District B 373 5% 84 EX ]2 374 5% (retained for future development)
no. 352, Lantau Island FEBEBEER)
36. Lot nos. 1735, 1737, 1979 and HAMELENFIH 145,764  Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 1978 and 0 EZ 17355% « 1737 5% - (no definite plan)
2012 in Demarcation District no. 91, 1979 5% JA } 197855 K& B By (R [E] 2 5 &)
Fanling, New Territories 20125% Z &8 7 L ER
37. Various lots in Demarcation District R =72 147,668  Agricultural lots 50%
no. 363, Sam Pak, Lantau Island L= HE 3635 F THER (no definite plan)
B e (& E 5T 8D
38. Section B and the remaining portion FEM b ER EE55EBEE I 57,935  Agricultural lots 100%
of Lot no. 5, Section A and the FREL - BEFRARR MR ER (no definite plan)
remaining portion of Lot no. 65 and LA 615 - 665% - 6758 B HE B (& 5T 8))
Lot nos. 61, 66, 67 and 69, Peng Chau & 695%
39. The remaining portion of Section C M 3 R 25354 5% &2 35,266  Agricultural lots 100%
and the remaining portions of 3465ECE 7 B MR R (no definite plan)
Lot nos. 354 and 346, Peng Chau BH R (REEE)
40. Various lots in Demarcation District K U 11) 41 7K Diana Farm 222,593  Golf course 50%
no. 354, Diana Farm, Hang Sui, L2 LFEI545EE T ER (completed)
Lantau Island mBRNS(RI)
41. The remaining portion of Lot no. 317 FREPILELHE1825 1,394  Agricultural lots 50%

in Demarcation District no. 132,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

HER 317 8RS B

(no definite plan)
EAHBE (EE &)
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